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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

OVERVIEW

Ryder System, Inc. (Ryder), a Florida corporatiomided in 1933, is a global leader in transpomtadiod supply chain management
solutions. We operate in two business segmentst Management Solutions (FMS), which providesdelivice leasing, commercial rental,
contract maintenance, and contract-related maintenaf trucks, tractors and trailers to customergjpally in the U.S., Canada and the U.K.;
and Supply Chain Solutions (SCS), which providesmehensive supply chain consulting solutions idiclg dedicated, distribution, and
transportation services in North America and ASiar customers range from small businesses to latgmational enterprises.

For financial information and other informationathg to each of our business segments and abogeographic areas, see Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations,” of this re@od Note 29, "Segment Reporting,” in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

MISSION AND STRATEGY

Ryder's mission is to provide innovative fleet ngaraent and supply chain solutions that are reljaafe and efficient, enabling our
customers to deliver on their promises. We sealetiver valuable solutions that will compel custea® outsource their fleet management and
supply chain needs to us. Our strategy is to gromfleet management and supply chain outsourcingcss by targeting private fleets (FMS)
and key industries (SCS) with innovative solutiamgerational excellence, best in class talent afatrnation technology. This strategy is
supported by:

« offering innovative products, solutions and supgervices that will create and strengthen custoglationships;

« delivering operational excellence through contirsiptoductivity and process improveme

« attracting, developing and retaining the bdsita and fostering a culture where leaders entfagje people to innovate, pursue Ryder’s
mission and build on its values; and

« deploying technology that will enable growth whitlgproving operational efficiencie

INDUSTRY AND OPERATIONS

Fleet Management Solutions

Value Proposition

Through our FMS business, we provide our custométsa variety of fleet solutions that are desigt@émprove their competitive
position. By outsourcing these services to uscogtomers can focus on their core business, imghmieefficiency and productivity, and lower
their costs. Our FMS product offering is comprisétbnger-term full service leasing and contractntenance services; shortemm commercit
truck rental; flexible maintenance services; andesadded fleet support services such as insuraebigle administration and fuel services. In
addition, we provide our customers with accesauchmase a large selection of used trucks, traetagrailers through our used vehicle sales
program.

Market Trends

The U.S. commercial fleet market is estimated ttuite approximately 7.4 million vehiclésof which approximately 900,000 are in the
commercial lease and rental market. The Canadiameocial fleet market is estimated to be approxifyaE00,000 vehicle® of which
approximately 23,000 vehicl€are in the commercial lease and rental market. I Ke commercial lease and rental market is estith&de
include approximately 200,000 vehicl€#A significant portion of the fleet market consisfsvehicles privately owned by companies that
provide all or a portion of the transportation $exg for themselves rather than outsourcing thesgces to third parties such as Ryder.

Over the last several years, many key trends hege keshaping the transportation industry, whiclstrengly believe increase the value
of our product offering. Because of increased dehfanefficiency and reliability, companies thatmand manage their own fleet of vehicles
have put greater emphasis on the quality of threivgntive maintenance and safety programs. Thetergince and operation of commercial
vehicles has become more complicated and expemsiyairing companies to spend a significant ameofitime and money to keep up with new
technology, diagnostics, retooling and trainingré@sed regulation and active enforcement effgrfedberal and state governments require n
stringent and costly operational processes andsigler Fluctuating energy prices and alternatived fachnologies make it difficult for
businesses to predict and manage fleet costslyitta tightened credit market has limited somsilesses’ access to capital.

(1) US Fleet as of June 2013, Class 3-8, SourteP&lk
(2) Canada Private Fleet as of December 2013 , £8&8, Source: RL Polk

(3) Canada Outsourced Fleet Market as of Decemb&BZlass 3-8, Source: RL Polk
(4) UK Lease and Rental HGV Market, Projectiondecember 2013, Source: The Society of Motor Wkturers & Traders (SMMT) 2010
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Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2013 , our glaid& Business accounted for 63% of our consolidatgdrrue.

U.S. Our FMS customers in the U.S. range from smallri®ssies to large national enterprises operatingvid@ variety of industries, the
most significant of which are food and beveragmdportation and warehousing, housing, businesparsdnal services, and industrial. At
December 31, 2013, we had 532 operating locat®xduding ancillary storage locations, in 49 stated Puerto Rico. A location typically
consists of a maintenance facility or “shop”, odficfor sales and other personnel, and in many casesnmercial rental vehicle counter. Our
maintenance facilities typically include a senvigiand for fueling, safety inspections and preliaminmaintenance checks as well as a shop for
preventive maintenance and repairs. We also op&6dtéocations on-site at customer properties, wpiimarily provide vehicle maintenance.

Canada. We have been operating in Canada for over 5Gy@amDecember 31, 2013 , we had 34 operatingilmtsithroughout 8
Canadian provinces. We also operated 13 mainterfanitiies on-site at customer properties in Canad

Europe. We began operating in the U.K. in 1971. At Decendde 2013 , we had 5perating locations primarily throughout the U.Ke'
also managed a network of 4@tlependent maintenance facilities in the U.K.eve our customers when it is more effective thawviging the
service in a Ryder location. In addition to ouritgh FMS operations, we supply and manage vehielggipment and personnel for military
organizations in the U.K. and Germany.

FMS Product Offerings

Full Service Leasing Through our full service lease product line, pvovide customers with the vehicle, vehicle nmeiahce services,
supplies, and related equipment necessary for tiperaf the vehicles while our customers furnisk anpervise their own drivers and dispatch
and exercise control over the vehicles. Our fullise lease customers receive the following besefit

» We are able to leverage our vehicle buying pdaethe benefit of our customers because we pgrchdarge number of vehicles
from a limited number of manufacturers. Once weehsigned an agreement with the customer, we acagelivieles and components
that are custom engineered to the customer’s rqeints and lease the vehicles to the customeef@ds generally ranging from
three to seven years for trucks and tractors guidaily ten years for trailers.

» We provide a complete maintenance program deditmreduce vehicle downtime through a prevenmtiantenance plan that is
based on vehicle type and time or mileage intergilgen our continued focus on improving the efficy and effectiveness of our
maintenance services, particularly in light of affiag technology and increased regulation, we pewidr full service lease
customers with a cost effective alternative to ri@iming their own fleet of vehicles.

» Our customers have access to our extensive rietfanaintenance facilities and trained technisifor maintenance, vehicle repairs,
24-hour emergency roadside service, and replaceveditles for vehicles that are temporarily ouseifvice.

» We mitigate residual risk exposure for our custanterough our maintenance expertise and retail uskitle sales netwol

» Customers have an opportunity to enhance ttegidsrd full service lease with additional flegport services including our fuel and
related services as described below; liability rasee coverage under our existing insurance pslamel related insurance services;
safety services including safety training, drivertification, and loss prevention consulting; védigse and other tax reporting,
permitting and licensing, and regulatory compliaineluding hours of service administration); eovimental services; and access to
RydeSmar®, a full-featured GPS fleet location, tracking, amthicle performance management system amyter FleetCAREY,
our web-based tool that provides customers witfi 2dtess to key operational and maintenance marmegémormation about their
fleets.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, full setei@ee revenue accounted for 48% of our FMS totedmee.

Commercial Rental We target rental customers that have a nesdpplement their private fleet of vehicles on erskerm basis (one
day up to one year in length), either becauseadaeal increases in their business or discretegiojhat require additional transportation
resources. Full service lease customers utilizeeommercial rental fleet to handle their peak @ssaal business needs. Although a portion of
our commercial rental business is purely occasionahture, we focus on building long-term relagibips with customers so that we become
their preferred source for commercial vehicle risnt@ur rental representatives assist in selectinghicle that satisfies a customer’s needs and
supervise the rental process, which includes ei@tof a rental agreement and a vehicle inspectioaddition to vehicle rental, we may extend
liability insurance coverage under our existingigieb to our rental customers as well as the benefiour comprehensive fuel services progr
For the year ended December 31, 2013 , commeszitdIrrevenue accounted for 18% of our FMS totamee.




Contract Maintenance Through our contract maintenance product liveeprovide customers with all or certain of thantenance
services provided under a full service lease. @utract maintenance customers commit to utilizingextensive network of maintenance
facilities and trained technicians to maintain ¢léicles they own or lease from third parties. \&e also customize the services to include
ancillary maintenance and/or fleet support servidehicles covered under this offering are typicakrviced at our own facilities. However,
based on the size and complexity of a customez&t flwve may operate an on-site maintenance faatlitige customer’s location. For the year
ended December 31, 2013, contract maintenanceueaccounted for 4% of our FMS total revenue.

The following table provides information regarditig number of vehicles and customers by FMS prodlifieting at December 31, 2013 :

U.S. Foreign Total
Vehicles Customers Vehicles Customers Vehicles Customers
Full service leasing 98,90( 10,50( 24,00( 2,40( 122,901 12,9C
Commercial rentdP 29,00( 31,70( 9,20( 6,00( 38,20( 37,7C
Contract maintenandé 33,30( 1,30( 4,10( 20C 37,40( 1,5C

(1) Commercial rental customers include customers veimbed a vehicle for more than 3 days during the yed includes approximate8,800full service lease custome
(2) Contract maintenance customers include approxirg@850full service lease custome

Contract-Related Maintenance Our full service lease and contract mainteeanustomers periodically require additional maiatere
and repair services that are not included in thdliservice lease or contract maintenance corgrdair example, additional maintenance and
repair services may arise when a customer damageased vehicle. In addition, because of our egstelationships with the customer, we may
provide service on their owned vehicles and ch#tigeeustomer on an hourly basis for work perfornidservicing all of our customers’
maintenance needs, we create stronger, long-tdatioreships to provide a wide range of outsourcalytions.

More recently, we have contracted with large peviiet operators and for-hire carriers to provitentenance on demand, particularly in
geographic areas where these customers do notlgivewn maintenance operations. Although theremtfor on-demand maintenance
services includes the basic terms and conditioriseomaintenance program that is designed to rheeatustomers' specific needs, all
maintenance is performed only when and as requésgtdte customer. This product allows us to engeitfe customers that have traditionally
chosen to own and maintain their fleet of vehickas. the year ended December 31, 2013, contréatetemaintenance revenue accounted for

5% of our FMS total revenue.

Fuel Services. We provide our FMS customers with access tedlitiel at competitive prices at over 450 of oaimtenance facilities
across the United States and Canada. We also priwatiservices such as fuel planning, fuel taxortépg, centralized billing, fuel cards and f
monitoring. Although fuel sales do not have a digant impact on our FMS margin as it is largelgass-through cost to customers, we believe
allowing customers to leverage our fuel buying poise significant and valuable benefit to our onsérs. For the year ended December 31,
2013, fuel services revenue accounted for 24%ofd/S total revenue.

Used Vehicles. We primarily sell our used vehicles at one af 58 retail sales centers throughout North Ame(it8 of which are co-
located at an FMS shop), at our branch locatioriBrough our website atww.Usedtrucks.Ryder.contypically, before we offer used vehicles
for sale, our technicians assure that theyRarad Read§, which means that the vehicles have passed a eb@psive, multi-point performance
inspection based on specifications formulated thhoour maintenance program. Our retail sales cettieoughout North America allow us to
leverage our maintenance expertise and strong begndation to realize higher sales proceeds thame wholesale market. Given our focus on
maximizing sales proceeds, we generally sell oadwehicles through retail centers for prices icems of book value. However, the extent to
which we are able to realize a gain on the salesefl vehicles is dependent upon various otherrigdteluding the general state of the used
vehicle market, the age and condition of the vehatlthe time of its disposal and vehicle deprexiatates.




FMS Business Strategy

Our FMS business strategy is to be the leadingigeowf fleet management outsourcing servicesifiit| medium and heavy duty
vehicles. Our strategy will be achieved if we aghi¢he following goals and priorities:

« Drive fleet growth by (1) successfully implemiagtsales and marketing initiatives designed topalmprivate fleet operators and for-
hire carriers to outsource all or some portiorheiit fleet management needs to us; (2) offeringwative products, solutions and
support services that will create and strengthenared existing customer relationships; and (3) detiny targeted acquisitions;

 Deliver a consistent, industry-leading and affctive maintenance program to our customersiiireontinued process improvement
and re-design, productivity initiatives, and teclogy improvements; and

« Optimize asset utilization and management, @algily with respect to our rental fleet, used ehbperations and maintenance facility
infrastructure.

Competition

As an alternative to using our fleet managememices, most companies choose to provide thesecgsrfor themselves, although some
may choose to obtain similar or alternative sewvitem other third-party vendors.

Our FMS business segment competes with compareglprg similar services on a national, regional &rcal level. Many regional and
local competitors provide services on a nationali¢hrough their participation in various coopemtprograms. Competitive factors include
price, equipment, maintenance, service and geoirapkierage. We compete with finance lessors asamwith truck and trailer manufacturers
and independent dealers who provide full serviesdeproducts, finance leases, extended warrantytenaince, rental and other transportation
services. With the growth of our on-demand maimeegroduct, we will also face competition from m@ed maintenance providers who are
hired to coordinate and manage the maintenance@é fleets of vehicles through a network of thpedty maintenance providers. Value-added
differentiation of the full service leasing, maingace and commercial rental service, as well asra@d commitment to offer innovative
products and solutions, such as natural gas vehicées been and will continue to be our emphasis.

Supply Chain Solutions

Value Proposition

Through our SCS business, we offer a broad rangeotative logistics management services thatlasigned to optimize a customer’s
supply chain and address key customer businesgesawgnts. The organization is aligned by induststieals (Automotive, Industrial,
Consumer Packaged Goods, Hi-Tech and Retail) toletiae teams to focus on the specific needs af tistomers. Our SCS product offerings
are organized into four categories: dedicated sesyidistribution management, transportation manageand professional services. These
offerings are supported by a variety of informatiechnology and engineering solutions that aretegial part of our other SCS services. These
product offerings can be offered independentlysoamintegrated solution to optimize supply chéiectiveness. A key aspect of our value
proposition is our operational execution, whiclamsimportant differentiator in the marketplace.

Market Trends

Global logistics is approximately an $8.3 trilliBhmarket, of which approximately $643 billiétis outsourced. Logistics spending in the
markets we are targeting in North America and Asjaates to approximately $3.2 trillion , of whic2i7$ billion is outsourced. Outsourced
logistics is a market with significant growth opponity. More sophisticated supply chain practicesraquired as supply chains expand and
become more complex, product needs continue tifgnate and companies look for lower cost supplgichalternatives. In addition, disruptions
from unexpected events such as natural disasteesdzaused companies to focus on risk managemeneiofsupply chains. The more
complicated the supply chain or the product regquéets, the greater the need for companies toeititie expertise of supply chain providers.

(1) Armstrong & Associates Global logistics costsh&d-party logistics revenue report, May 2013




Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2013 , our gloB8l I8usiness accounted for 37% of our consolidaeenue.

U.S. At December 31, 2013, we had 473 SCS custagmyunts in the U.S., most of which are large eniss that maintain large,
complex supply chains. Most of our core SCS busioggrations are geographically located to maxireffieiencies and reduce costs. At
December 31, 2013 , managed warehouse space tatgleakimately 28 million square feet for the UaBd Puerto Rico. We also concentrate
certain logistics expertise in locations not assted with specific customer sites. For example,caurier procurement, contract management,
freight bill audit and payment services and tramgtimn optimization and execution groups operatieod our logistics centers in Novi, Michig
and Fort Worth, Texas.

Mexico. At December 31, 2013, we had 99 SCS customeuats and managed warehouse space totaling ap@t@tn® million square
feet. Our Mexico operations offer a full range @Sservices and manage approximately 9bt@ider crossings each month between Mexicc
the U.S. and Canada, often highly integrated withdistribution and transportation operations.

Canada. At December 31, 2013, we had 59 SCS customer atsand managed warehouse space totaling appretjniamillion
square feet. Given the proximity of this markebtw U.S. and Mexico operations, the Canadian ojpasare highly coordinated with their U.S.
and Mexico counterparts, managing cross-bordesp@mation and freight movements.

Asia. Asiais a key component of our retail strateglyere we have a network of owned and agent affiseth headquarters in Shangt
At December 31, 2013 , we had 40 SCS customer atcand managed warehouse space totaling appretyin2s0,000 square feet, primarily
in Singapore.

SCS Product Offerings

Dedicated ServicesDedicated services are generally offered on a stdonke basis or as part of an integrated supplin@wution to our
customers. The dedicated services offering comlilmeesquipment, maintenance and administrativeceesof a full service lease with drivers
and additional services. This combination providestomers with a dedicated transportation solutiahis designed to increase their
competitive position, improve risk management artdgrate their transportation needs with their alvasupply chain. Additional services
include routing and scheduling, fleet sizing, safeegulatory compliance, risk management, techyobnd communication systems support
including on-board computers, and other technigppsrt. These additional services allow us to gteviigh service levels and efficient routing.
They also address the challenging labor issuesiased with maintaining a private fleet of vehigleach as driver recruitment and turnover,
government regulation (including hours of serviegulations), Department of Transportation (DOT)isuaind workers' compensation. Our
dedicated services solution offers a high degrespetialization to meet the needs of customers suigihisticated service requirements such as
tight delivery windows, high value or time sensitiireight, closed-loop distribution, multi-stop irients, specialized equipment and integrated
transportation needs. Although a significant paortdd our dedicated services operations are loctedstomer facilities, our dedicated business
utilizes and benefits from our extensive networlkebfS facilities. For the year ended December 31320approximately 57% of our SCS
revenue was related to dedicated services.

Distribution Management Our SCS business offers a wide range of seswvielating to a customer’s distribution operatjdresn
designing a customer’s distribution network to ngang distribution facilities. Services within thadilities generally include managing the flow
of goods from the receiving function to the shigpfanction, coordinating warehousing and transpiomaor inbound and outbound material
flows, handling import and export for internatiosaipments, coordinating just-in-time replenishm&ntomponent parts to manufacturing and
final assembly, and providing shipments to custodigribution centers or end customer delivery fsiAdditional valueadded services such
light assembly of components into defined unitttifk), packaging and refurbishment are also predid-or the year ended December 31, 2013
distribution management solutions accounted for 81%ur SCS revenue.

Transportation Management Our SCS business offers services relatindl tsspects of a customer’s transportation netw@k: team of
transportation specialists provides shipment plagaind execution, which includes shipment optinireioad scheduling and delivery
confirmation through a series of technological amt-based solutions. Our transportation consultamtkiding our freight brokerage
department, focus on carrier procurement of all @saaf transportation with an emphasis on truck-th&sasportation, rate negotiation, and
freight bill audit and payment services. In additiour SCS business as well as our FMS businesglproustomers with capacity management
services that are designed to meet backhaul opptiesiand minimize excess miles. For the year émkxrember 31, 2013 , we purchased
and/or executed over $4.6 billion in freight moeasour customers' behalf. For the year ended DeeeB1 2013 , transportation management
solutions accounted for 7% of our SCS revenue.




Professional Services In conjunction with providing the SCS coreviegs described previously, our SCS business offeariety of
knowledge-based services that support every aspaoctustomer’s supply chain. Our SCS professiomasavailable to evaluate a customer’s
existing supply chain to identify inefficienciesasll as opportunities for integration and improwst Once the assessment is complete, we
work with the customer to develop a supply chaiategy that will create the most value for the oostr and their target clients. Once a
customer has adopted a supply chain strategy, ©8rl&gistics team, supported by functional expants representatives from our information
technology, real estate and finance groups, wagktteer to design a strategically focused supplyncbalution. The solution may include both a
network design that sets forth the number, locagiot function of key components of the network anidhnsportation solution that optimizes
mode or modes of transportation and route seledtoaddition to providing the distribution andrisportation expertise necessary to implement
the supply chain solution, our SCS representatiaascoordinate and manage all aspects of the cas®supply chain provider network to
assure consistency, efficiency and flexibility. Foe year ended December 31, 2013, knowledge-lmséessional services accounted for 686
our SCS revenue.

SCS Business Strategy

Our SCS business strategy is to offer our custoiéfesentiated functional execution and proacsedutions from deep expertise in key
industry verticals. The strategy revolves arouraftilowing interrelated goals and priorities:

 Providing customers with a differentiated qualifyservice and best execution through reliable #didle supply chain solutior
« Developing capabilities that can be applied aniizati in our targeted industry vertici
 Creating a culture of innovation that fostersiraad high value solutions for our customexgdply chain neec

 Focusing on continuous improvement and standardizatnc

Successfully implementing targeted sales and mackstrategie:

Competition

As an alternative to using our services, most cangsachoose to internally manage their own suppdires and logistics operations,
although some may choose to obtain similar ordtire services from other third-party vendors.

In the SCS business segment, we compete with @ frangber of companies providing similar servicasheof which has a different set of
core competencies. We compete with a handful gelamulti-service companies across all of our seroiferings and industries. We also
compete against other companies on specific seoffeeéngs (for example, in transportation managetnaistribution management or dedicated
services) or in a specific industry. We face d#fgrcompetitors in each country or region wherg thay have a greater operational presence.
Competitive factors include price, service, makmtwledge, expertise in logistics-related technglagd overall performance (e.g. timeliness,
accuracy, and flexibility).

ACQUISITIONS

In addition to our continued focus on organic groveicquisitions play an important role in enhananggrowth strategy. In assessing
potential acquisition targets in our FMS businexggent, we look for companies that would createeséthrough operating synergies, leveraging
our existing facility infrastructure, improving ogeographic coverage and diversifying our custdoase. In our SCS business segment, we
focus on adding capabilities and product offeripggentially expanding into new industries, divBfisig our customer base within our current
industries, and improving our competitive position.

CYCLICALITY

Ryder's business is impacted by economic and madketitions. In a strong economic cycle, theregisegally more demand for our fleet
management and supply chain services. In a weadlatile economy, demand for our services decreassdss inconsistent and considerably
more unpredictable. Because of these factors, we ¢@ntinued to focus on increasing the diversitgur customer base and strengthening our
long-term business partnerships with our custonfdtBough we believe these efforts help mitigate ilnmediate impact of an economic
downturn, during a protracted or severe economientiarn, customers are often unwilling to commiatéull-service lease or long-term supply
chain contract. Because commercial rental and vskitle sales are transactional, they are moréoayéh nature, and results can vary
significantly in both the short- and long-term. Weeve a disciplined and centralized approach ta asaeagement that allows us to manage the
size, mix and location of our operating fleet asddivehicle inventories.




ADMINISTRATION

Our financial administrative functions for the Uad Canada, including credit, billing and collens are consolidated into our Shared
Services Center operations, a centralized proggssinter located in Alpharetta, Georgia. Our Sh&edices Center also manages contracted
third parties providing administrative finance aupport services outside of the U.S. in order tluce ongoing operating expenses and
maximize our technology resources. This centrabmatesults in more efficient and consistent cdizied processing of selected administrative
operations. Certain administrative functions ase glerformed at the Shared Services Center focustomers. The Shared Services Center’s
main objectives are to enhance customer servioadtrprocess standardization, create an orgamzdtiructure that will improve market
flexibility and allow future reengineering effottis be attained more easily at lower implementatiosts.

REGULATION

Our business is subject to regulation by variodeffal, state and foreign governmental entities. D08 and various federal and state
agencies exercise broad powers over certain aspeats business, generally governing such acéigsids authorization to engage in motor
carrier operations, safety and financial reportiWg are also subject to a variety of requiremehtgtional, state, provincial and local
governments, including the U.S. Environmental Ritid@ Agency and the Occupational Safety and Hefsdbiministration, that regulate safety,
the management of hazardous materials, water digehiand air emissions, solid waste disposal andelease and cleanup of regulated
substances. We must comply with licensing and atbguirements imposed by the U.S. Department of éland Security and U.S. Customs
Service as a result of increased focus on homedaadrity and our Customs-Trade Partnership Agdiesbrism certification. We may also
become subject to new or more restrictive regutatimposed by these agencies or other authorélasg to carbon controls and reporting,
engine exhaust emissions, drivers’ hours of sergeeurity and ergonomics.

ENVIRONMENTAL

We have a long standing commitment to sound enwieotial practices that reduce risk and build vatwei$ and our customers. We have
a history of adopting “green” designs and procebsesuse they are efficient, cost effective trartation solutions that improve our bottom line
and bring value to our customers. We have mainda@meenvironmental mission since 1991 and havetagdgperiodically as regulatory and
customer needs have changed. Our environmentalpelilects our commitment to supporting the gadilsustainable development,
environmental protection and pollution preventiorour business. We have adopted proactive envirotahstrategies that have advanced
business growth and continued to improve our perémce in ways that reduce emission outputs andamaental impact. Our environmental
team works with operating employees to developadinister programs in support of our environmeptdicy and to help ensure that
environmental considerations are integrated iftbudiness processes and decisions.

In establishing appropriate environmental objectiaad targets for our wide range of business éietvaround the world, we focus on (1)
the needs of our customers; (2) the communitieghich we provide services; and (3) relevant lawd i@gulations. We regularly review and
update our environmental management proceduresnforchation regarding our environmental activitissoutinely disseminated throughout
Ryder. In 2012 , we substantially expanded ourrenwental sustainability reporting with the pubtioa of our 2011 Corporate Sustainability
Report that includes expanded and enhanced disegsas well as new metrics related to our enviemmai performance for the years 2009
through 2011. The Report details our sustainalbdinless practices and environmental strategiesgoowe energy use, fuel costs and reduce
overall carbon emissions. In addition, we have rtatily responded to the Carbon Disclosure Prqi@etP) since 2008, disclosing direct and
indirect emissions resulting from our operationsttBof these reports are publicly available onabepany website at www.ryder.com by
clicking on About Us and then selecting Sustairigbil

SAFETY

Our safety culture is founded upon a core commitrteethe safety, health and wéléing of our employees, customers and the commt
a commitment that has made us a long-standing indiesder in safety.

Safety is an integral part of our business stratEgpause preventing injuries and collisions impsoemployee quality of life, eliminates
service disruptions to our customers, increaseés@fty and improves customer satisfaction. Asra ealue, our focus on safety is imbedded in
our day-to-day operations, reinforced by many ggfebgrams and continuous operational improvemedtsaipported by a talented and
dedicated safety organization.




Training is a critical component of our safety perg. Monthly safety training delivered by locatissfety committees cover specific and
relevant safety topics and managers receive asafiety leadership training. Quarterly and remetd@hing is also delivered online to each
driver through our highly interactive Ryder Pro-TARE comprehensive lesson platform. Regular safehabioral observations are conducted by
managers throughout the organization everyday emedial training and coaching takes place on-tlo¢-$ge also deploy state-of-the-art safety
technologies in Ryder vehicles and our safety msdicequire that all managers, supervisors and@mapb incorporate safe processes in all
aspects of our business. Monthly safety scoreamelracked and reviewed by management for progpessd key safety objectives. Our
proprietary web-based safety tracking system, RS@et", delivers proactive safety programs tailored tergvocation and helps measure s
activity effectiveness across the organization.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2013 , we had approximately 28fa0Qime employees worldwide, of which 27,300 wemployed in North America,
1,300 in Europe and 300 in Asia. Currently we emplpproximately 6,400 drivers and 5,200 technici&¥ie have approximately 17,800 hourly
employees in the U.S., approximately 3,300 of whinkhorganized by labor unions. Those employeesnizgd by labor unions are principally
represented by the International Brotherhood ohT&ars, the International Association of Machingtd Aerospace Workers and the United
Auto Workers, and their wages and benefits are maeeby 93 labor agreements that are renegotiaeddically. Although we have never
experienced a material work stoppage or strikeselewents can potentially occur given the typdausfnesses in which we currently engage.
consider that our relationship with our employeegadod.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Name Age Position
Robert E. Sanchez 48 Chair, President and Chief Executive Officer
Art A. Garcia 52 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
Dennis C. Cooke 49 President, Global Fleet Management Solutions
Robert D. Fatovic 48 Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer anarfidrate Secretary
Cristina A. Gallo-Aquino 4C  Vice President, Controller and Chief AccountingiCdf
Gregory F. Greene 54 Executive Vice President and Chief Administrativiiicer
John H. Williford 57 President, Global Supply Chain Solutions
Karen M. Jones 51 Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer

Robert E. Sanchez was appointed Chair of RydesdBion May 2013 and promoted to Chief Executiveig@ffin January 2013.
Previously, Mr. Sanchez served as President anef Cierating Officer from February 2012 to Decen®@t2. He also previously served as
President, Global Fleet Management Solutions frept&nber 2010 to February 2012 and as Executive Riiesident and Chief Financial
Officer from October 2007 to September 2010. He pleviously served as Executive Vice Presidei@mpdrations, U.S. Fleet Management
Solutions from October 2005 to October 2007 an8exsor Vice President and Chief Information Offieem January 2003 to October 2005.
Mr. Sanchez joined Ryder in 1993 and has held varaiher positions of increasing responsibilitgjudling leadership positions in both of
Ryder's business segments.

Art A. Garcia has served as Executive Vice Predidad Chief Financial Officer since September 2G@viously, Mr. Garcia served as
Senior Vice President and Controller since Oct@®85 and as Vice President and Controller sinceuae 2002. Mr. Garcia joined Ryder in
December 1997 and has held various other positiithén Corporate Accounting.

Dennis C. Cooke has served as President, Global Mlanagement Solutions since February 2012. RuslipMr. Cooke served as Sen
Vice President and Chief of Operations, U.S. anda@a Fleet Management Solutions since July 201dr. ®rjoining Ryder, Mr. Cooke held
various positions with General Electric (GE) anldted companies, including Vice President and Gardanager of GE Healthcare’'s Global
MRI business from 2000 to 2005. He then serve@rasident and Chief Executive Officer of GE’s Ségis Homeland Protection business
from 2005 to 2009, and continued serving in thadesrfrom 2009 to 2011 after the business was esdjby the Safran Group and became
Morpho Detection, Inc.

Robert D. Fatovic has served as Executive ViceitReas Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretinge May 2004. He previously
served as Senior Vice President, U.S. Supply Chakerations, Hifech and Consumer Industries from December 2002a402004. Mr. Fatovi
joined Ryde’s Law department in 1994 as Assistant Division &&®l and has held various other positions withénlthw department including
Vice President and Deputy General Counsel.

Cristina A. Gallo-Aquino has served as Vice Prasid€ontroller and Chief Accounting Officer sincepfember 2010. Previously,
Ms. Gallo-Aquino served as Assistant Controllenfrlovember 2009 to September 2010, where she wspsnsible for Ryder’'s Corporate
Accounting, Benefits Accounting and Payroll Accangtdepartments. Ms. Gallo-Aquino joined Ryder @02 and has held various positions
within Corporate Accounting.




Gregory F. Greene has served as Chief Adminise&difficer since September 2010, as Executive ViesiBent since December 2006
as Chief Human Resources Officer since Februarg.2Rfeviously, Mr. Greene served as Senior VicsiBeat, Strategic Planning and
Development from April 2003 to February 2006. Mre€éne joined Ryder in August 1993 and has sina\eious positions within Human
Resources.

John H. Williford has served as President, Glohgi@y Chain Solutions since June 2008. Prior toifgj Ryder, Mr. Williford founded
and served as President and Chief Executive Offit&olden Gate Logistics LLC from 2006 to June 0brom 2002 to 2005, he served as
President and Chief Executive Officer of Menlo Vdevide, Inc., the supply chain business of CNF, From 2005 to 2006, Mr. Williford was
engaged as an advisor to Menlo Worldwide subsedoehe sale of Menlo Forwarding to United Parcaiv&e.

Karen M. Jones joined Ryder in September 2013r Rripining Ryder, Ms. Jones was Chief Marketinffic@r for NRG/Reliant Energy,
Inc from 2010 to 2013. Previously, Ms. Jones sea&&enior Vice President of Marketing and Corgo@dmmunications for DHL Express
U.S. from 2006 to 2009 and as Vice President ofektilsing, Brand Management and Promotion from 2002006. In addition, Ms. Jones has
served in key positions responsible for worldwidanal advertising, sponsorship, and strategic aéarfor Hewlett Packard.

FURTHER INFORMATION

For further discussion concerning our businesstteeeformation included in Items 7 and 8 of ttéport. Industry and market data used
throughout Item 1 was obtained through a compitatibsurveys and studies conducted by industryces,iconsultants and analysts.

We make available free of charge through the loreRelations page on our website at www.ryder.comfmnual Report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current report&orm 8-K and all amendments to those reports as asoeasonably practicable after such
material is electronically filed with or furnishéal the Securities and Exchange Commission. Thdguotay read and copy any materials we
have filed with the SEC at the SEC's Public RefeedRoom at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20B48rmation on the operation of the
Public Reference Room may be obtained by calliegSBC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains amietteite that contains our reports,
proxy and information statements, and our other 8i@s. The address of the SEC's web site is wsga.gov.

In addition, our Corporate Governance Guidelinesdiples of Business Conduct (including our Fira@nde of Conduct), and Board
committee charters are posted on the CorporaterGawee page of our website at www.ryder.com.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
The following contains all known material risks tleauld affect our business.

Our business and operating results could be advenyeaffected by uncertain or unfavorable economic ad industry conditions.

Ryder's operating results are affected by cyckcanomic and market conditions in the U.S. andajlgbin a weak or volatile economy,
demand for our contractual services decreases agminconsistent and less predictable as cussoaneroften unwilling to commit to full-
service leases or long-term supply chain contréatsordingly, any sustained weakness in demandppotacted economic downturn can
negatively impact our business. Although custonrmeettainty can serve to increase demand for onsaetional services, including commercial
rental and used vehicles sales, which do not irestmg-term commitments, these product lines aneigdly more cyclical due to their
transactional nature, and results can vary in tiatshort- and long-term.
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2013 was a period of moderate economic recovelyviolg a period of economic softness and uncestaiithough demand for
commercial rental has appeared to stabilize, relgaland may again decline unexpectedly in 2014il&iy although we experienced growtt
full service lease during 2013, our customers mithain cautious about entering into long-termdsa#f uncertainty and lack of customer
confidence around macroeconomic and transportatgustry conditions return, they may impact ounfetgrowth prospects, our business, and
results of operations could be materially adversffgcted, including as follows:

«difficulty forecasting, budgeting and planning dodimited visibility into the spending plans ofrcent or prospective custome
eincreased competition for projects and sales oppiits
*pricing pressure that may adversely affect revemabgross margi
*higher overhead costs as a percentage of re\
eincreased risk of charges relating to asset imgaits; including goodwill and other intangible as!
customer financial difficulty and increased riskusicollectible accounts receivalt
«additional fleet downsizing which could adversehpact profitability
eincreased risk of declines in the residual valifesuo vehicles; an
esudden changes in fuel prices and fuel shortageshwnay adversely impact total vehicle miles dnilay our customer
In addition, volatility in the global credit andhfincial markets may lead to:
eunanticipated interest rate and currency exchaaigefluctuation:
eincreased risk of default by counterparties undgivdtive instruments and hedging agreements
«diminished liquidity and credit availability resig) in higher shorterm borrowing costs and more stringent borrowargis

We bear the residual risk on the value of our vehies.

We generally bear the residual risk on the valueunfvehicles. Therefore, if the market for useligles declines, or there is a concern
regarding the quality, maintenance or conditioowf vehicles, we may obtain lower sales proceeds tige sale of used vehicles. We sell our
used vehicles through various channels, includitagilrsales centers, at our branch locations, titramur website at
www.UsedTrucks.Ryder.cgras well as through the wholesale market. Priaimdj demand for used vehicles varies among sellingrels,
particularly between the retail and wholesale misrkees we generally obtain lower proceeds on vedisbld through wholesale channels. If we
are unable to meet our targeted fleet counts throug projected mix of retail versus wholesale salee may be required to sell more vehicles
than planned by wholesale, which will impact ouesgroceeds.

Changes in residual values also impact the oveoatipetitiveness of our full service lease produng, las estimated sales proceeds are a
significant component of the overall price of teade. Additionally, technology changes and sudtlanges in supply and demand together with
other market factors beyond our control vary frazanto year and from vehicle to vehicle, makindjfficult to accurately predict residual valt
used in calculating our depreciation expense. Algiowe have developed disciplines related to theag@ment and maintenance of our vehicles
that are designed to prevent these losses, thatedssurance that these practices will sufficyerattiuce the residual risk. For a detailed
discussion on our accounting policies and assumgtielating to depreciation and residual valuesag# see the section titled “Critical
Accounting Estimates - Depreciation and Residudli¥ &uarantees” in Management's Discussion andyAisabf Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.

Our profitability could be adversely impacted by ou inability to maintain appropriate commercial rent al utilization rates through our
asset management initiatives.

We typically do not purchase vehicles for our idhvice lease product line until we have an execotatract with a customer. However,
in our commercial rental product line, we purcheskicles and optimize the size and mix of the conasrakrental fleet based upon our
expectations of overall market demand. As a readtbear the risk for ensuring that we have th@@reehicles in the right condition and
location to effectively capitalize on market demamdrder to drive the highest levels of utilizatiand revenue per unit. We employ a sales 1
and operations team on a full-time basis to mamageoptimize this product line; however, their éanay not be sufficient to overcome a
significant change in market demand in the rentiairess.
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Failure to maintain, upgrade and consolidate our iformation technology networks could adversely affdgous, and we may be subject to
cybersecurity risks which may be beyond our control

The success of our strategic initiatives desigodddrease our sales and capture a greater pegeenitéghe outsourced transportation and
supply chain markets is dependent in varying degoeethe timely delivery and the functionality ofdrmation technology systems to support
them. Extended delays or cost overruns in secudegeloping and otherwise implementing technolegiutions to support the new business
initiatives we are developing now, and will be deping in the future, would delay and possibly epeevent us from realizing the projected
benefits of those initiatives.

We are continuously upgrading and consolidatingsystems, including making changes to legacy systesplacing legacy systems with
successor systems with new functionality and agguimew systems with new functionality. These typkactivities subject us to additional
costs and inherent risks associated with replaaitjchanging these systems, including impairmento#gbility to provide our services,
potential disruption of our internal control struiet, substantial capital expenditures, additiodatiaistration and operating expenses, retention
of sufficiently skilled personnel to implement amypkrate the new systems, demands on managemenatichether risks and costs of delays or
difficulties in transitioning to new systems oriofegrating new systems into our current systenus.g9stem implementations may not result in
productivity improvements at a level that outweigies costs of implementation, or at all. In additithe implementation of new technology
systems may cause disruptions in our business tipesand have an adverse effect on our busineksgarations, if not anticipated and
appropriately mitigated.

Advances in technology require increased investsientemain competitive, and our customers mayaatilling to accept higher prices
to cover the cost of these investments, and owtagipn with our customers may suffer if outaggstem failures or delays in timely access to
data occur in legacy information technology systémas support key business processes.

We depend on the proper functioning and availghdftour information systems, including communioat and data processing system
operating our business. It is important that the gaocessed by these systems remains confideasidlpften includes competitive customer
information, confidential customer transaction gataployee records, and key financial and operatimsults and statistics. Portions of our
business utilize information systems that providical services to both our employees and ouramsts. Cyber incidents that impact the
availability, reliability, speed, accuracy, or athpeoper functioning of these systems could hasigaificant impact on our operations. Certain of
our software applications are utilized by thirdtper who provide certain outsourced administrativestions, which may increase the risk of a
cybersecurity incident. Our information systemsp@ected through physical and software safeguasdgell as backup systems considered
appropriate by management. However, it is not grable to protect against the possibility of dameiggated by natural disasters, power loss,
telecommunications failures, cybersecurity atteaokd similar events in every potential circumstathed may arise.

We and the vehicle and equipment manufacturers inwr FMS business rely on a small number of suppliets

We buy vehicles and related equipment from a redtismall number of original equipment manufactsi@®EMSs) in our FMS business.
Further, some of our vehicle manufacturers rela@mall concentration of suppliers for certain ekhparts, components and equipment. A
discrete event in a particular OEM's or suppliastry or location, or adverse regional econotoigditions impacting an OEM or supplier's
ability to provide vehicles or a particular componheould adversely impact our FMS business andtphifity. In addition, our business and
reputation could also be negatively impacted if pasts, components or equipment from one of oupléens suffer from broad-based quality
control issues or become the subject of a prodigztirand we are unable to obtain replacement frarts another supplier in a timely manner.

We derive a significant portion of our SCS revenuérom a relatively small number of customers.

During 2013, sales to our top ten SCS custom@resenting all of the industry groups we serviamaated for 40% of our SCS total
revenue and 39% of our SCS operating revenue (uvevess subcontracted transportation). Additionalpproximately 29% of our global SCS
revenue is from the automotive industry and isaliygmpacted by automotive vehicle production. Tées of any of these customers or a
significant reduction in the services provided ny af these customers could impact our operatiodsaaversely affect our SCS financial resi
In 2010, we further diversified our customer bagh #he acquisition of Total Logistic Control, whiés concentrated in the consumer packaged
goods industry. While we continue to focus our ef@n diversifying our customer base, we may rmosiccessful in doing so in the short-term.

Given the size of our relationships with larger SsbStomers, they can exert downward pricing presand often require modifications to
our standard commercial terms. While we believeangoing cost reduction initiatives have helpedgaie the effect of price reduction
pressures from our SCS customers, there is noaaszithat we will be able to maintain or improvefiability in those accounts.

11




We are also subject to credit risk associated thithconcentration of our accounts receivable from3CS customers. If one or more of
these customers were to become bankrupt, insobrestherwise were unable to pay for the servicesiged by us, we may incur significant
write-offs of accounts receivable or incur leasagset impairment charges that could adverselgtadier operating results and financial
condition.

In addition, many of our customers operate in catlor seasonal industries, or operate in industieluding the food and beverage
industry, that may be impacted by unanticipatedtiveragrowing conditions (such as drought, insectdisease), natural disasters and other
conditions over which we have no control. A downtur our customers' business cycles or unantiaipatents impacting their businesses could
cause a reduction in freight volume shipped bydhmstomers or a reduction in their need for ous S€rvices.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and ourbusiness may suffer if we are unable to adequatefddress potential downward
pricing pressures and other competitive factors.

Numerous competitive factors could impair our &pild maintain our current profitability. These fas include the following:

« our inability to obtain expected customer retent@rels or sales growth targe

* we compete with many other transportation and tagiservice providers, some of which have grezdeital resources than we
« customers may choose to provide the services wadador themselve

» some of our competitors periodically reducertpeices to gain business, and some of our smadlepetitors may have lower cost
structures than we do, which may limit our abitibymaintain or increase prices; and

» because cost of capital is a significant contipetfactor, any increase in either the cost ofaelst or equity as a result of reductions in
our debt rating or stock price volatility could lee@ significant impact on our competitive position.

Our profitability could be negatively impacted if the key assumptions and pricing structure prove to & invalid.

Substantially all of our lease and maintenanceices\and our SCS services are provided under ataélearrangements with our
customers. The pricing structure for our lease@ndract maintenance business is based on cessumgptions regarding capital costs,
maintenance expense over the life of the contrasiglual values, productivity and the mix of fixald variable costs, many of which are derived
from historical data and trends. Under most of @36 contracts, all or a portion of our pricing&séd on certain assumptions regarding the
scope of services, production volumes, operatieffadiencies, the mix of fixed versus variable spgtroductivity and other factors.

If we are incorrect in our assumptions, or as alted subsequent changes in our customers' bissimeexds or operations or market forces
that are outside of our control, these assumptiooge to be invalid, we could have lower margirenthnticipated. Although certain of our SCS
contracts provide for renegotiation upon a matefi@nge, there is no assurance that we will beesgéal in obtaining the necessary price
adjustments.

We may face difficulties in attracting and retaining drivers and technicians and may face issues withur union employees.

We hire drivers primarily for our SCS business seginThere is significant competition for qualifigdvers in the transportation industry.
Additionally, interventions and enforcement under Compliance, Safety, Accountability (CSA) prognanay shrink the industry's pool of
drivers as those drivers with unfavorable scoresdclzave the industry. As a result of driver shges, we could be required to increase driver
compensation, let trucks sit idle, utilize lowelatjty drivers or face difficulty meeting customesrdands, all of which could adversely affect our
growth and profitability.

Similarly, we hire technicians in our FMS businesgment to perform vehicle maintenance servicasofease, contract maintenance and
rental fleets. Recently there has been a decradbe obverall supply of skilled maintenance tectams, particularly new technicians with
qualifications from technical programs and schoatsich could make it more difficult to attract aretain skilled technicians. We have 3,300
employees that are organized by labor unions whesges and benefits are governed by 93 labor agrésrtiet are renegotiated periodically.
Some of the industries in which we currently englagye experienced a material work stoppage, slowdnvstrike. Our business and operati
could be impacted in the event of labor strikework stoppages involving our employees organizethbgr unions in our FMS or SCS busin
segments.
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We operate in a highly regulated industry, and costof compliance with, or liability for violation of, existing or future regulations could
significantly increase our costs of doing business.

Our business is subject to regulation by variodefal, state and foreign governmental agenciesélhgencies could institute new laws,
rules or regulations or issue interpretation changeexisting regulations at any time. We have atsn an increase in proactive enforcement of
existing regulations by some entities. Compliandb wew laws, rules or regulations could substégtimpair labor and equipment productivity
and increase our costs. Conversely, our failuetoply with any applicable laws, rules or regulatido which we are subject, whether actual or
alleged, could expose us to fines, penalties argia litigation liabilities, including costs, sieiments and judgments. We are also subject to
reputational risk and other detrimental businessequences associated with noncompliance, suaghgsyees, customers, agents, suppliers or
other persons using our supply chain or assetsrtorit illegal acts, including the use of companyeds for terrorist activities, or a breach of
data privacy laws, the ongoing development of wiicthe U.S. and other jurisdictions may requiraraies to our data security policies and
procedures to comply with new standards.

DOT and Other Regulatory AuthoritieBhe U.S. Department of Transportation and varidatesand federal agencies exercise broad
powers over our motor carrier operations, safetytae generation, handling, storage, treatmentémbsal of waste materials. We may also
become subject to new or more restrictive regutatimposed by the Department of TransportationQtbeupational Safety and Health
Administration, the Department of Homeland Secuaity U.S. Customs Service, the Environmental Plioteédgency or other authorities,
relating to the hours of service that our drivees/rprovide in any one-time period, homeland segucirbon emissions and reporting and other
matters.

Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration CSA Bram.In 2010, the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Admiristn (FMCSA) began
implementation of the Compliance, Safety, Accouitityglprogram (CSA), a compliance and enforcemeittdtive partnering with State
agencies designed to monitor and improve commeretaicle motor safety. The CSA program includesfey Measurement System (SMS)
that uses roadside inspections and violations @some motor carriers and drivers and publishessaetated to these inspections and violations
that compare the motor carriers and drivers agamsts. The FMCSA established thresholds for ehsbwen different measurement areas that
identify potential safety risks and result in diretervention or enforcement action. Ryder's mli#id scores are below the thresholds, but if
performance changed, we could risk intervention ithay create risk to our operating authority.

Labor.We maintain operations and employees in numeratsssthroughout the U.S., which are governed bgréddgnd state labor and
employment laws and regulations relating to comatims, benefits, healthcare and various workplasees, all of which are applicable to our
employees, and in some cases, independent comgaState labor and employment rules vary fromedtastate and in some states, require us tc
meet much stricter standards than required in cttages. Also, we are or may become subject towarglassction lawsuits related to wage ¢
hour violations and improper pay in certain statégavorable or unanticipated outcomes in any eflwsuits could subject us to increased
costs and impact our profitability.

International.We currently operate in Canada, Europe, MexicoAsid, where we are subject to compliance with I¢t@atk and regulatot
requirements of foreign jurisdictions, includingéd tax laws, and compliance with the Federal GuirRractices Act. Local laws and regulatory
requirements may vary significantly from countryctmuntry. Customary levels of compliance with loegjulations and the tolerance for
noncompliance by regulatory authorities may alsy wradifferent countries and geographical locasioand impact our ability to successfully
implement our compliance and business initiativesartain jurisdictions. Also, adherence to rigartacal laws and regulatory requirements
limit our ability to expand into certain internatil markets and result in residual liability fogée claims and tax disputes arising out of
previously discontinued operations.
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EnvironmentalRegulations governing exhaust emissions that haea Bnacted over the last few years could adveirsgigct our
business. The Environmental Protection Agency (EB#)ed regulations that required progressive tgghgin exhaust emissions from certain
diesel engines from 2007 through 2010. Emissicarsdsirds require reductions in the sulfur contemti@$el fuel since June 2006. Also, the first
phase of progressively stringent emissions stasdatdting to emissions after-treatment devicesimagduced on newly-manufactured engines
and vehicles utilizing engines built after Janukr2007. The second phase, which required an addltaftertreatment system, became effec
after January 1, 2010. We face additional technotitigainges under EPA regulations that will go irffect in 2014 and 2017, which will require
modifications to existing vehicle chassis and eagiombinations. The 2014 and 2017 regulationsregjlire reductions in carbon dioxide,
which can only be reduced by improving fuel econpamd which requires compliance with different esiias standards for both engines and
chassis, based on vocation. OEMs may be requirgdstall additional engine componentry, additioaatodynamics on chassis and low-rolling
resistance tires to comply with the upcoming retjotes, which may result in a shorter useful trefeddnd increased operating costs for
customers and us. Although customers may see réduekconsumption under the new standards, thitddee offset by increased fuel costs on
a per gallon basis. Each of these requirementsigesllt in higher prices for vehicles, diesel eeduel and vehicle maintenance, which are
passed on to our customers, as well as higher emginte costs and uncertainty as to reliabilithefrtew engines, all of which could, over time,
increase our costs and adversely affect our busines results of operations. The new technology aleyimpact the residual values of these
vehicles when sold in the future. Future regulatibother environmental matters, including potdriimits on carbon emissions under climate-
change legislation, could also impact our busiaessprofitability if enacted.

Lease and Other Accounting Ruld3emand for our full service lease product linbased in part on customers' decisions to leaBerrat
than buy vehicles. A number of factors can impduotthier customers decide to lease or buy vehiciekiding economic benefits, accounting
considerations, tax treatment, interest rates aedadional flexibility. In 2013, the Financial Aasating Standards Board issued its latest
proposed update to accounting standards that vimubdve a new approach to lease accounting th&rdifrom current practice. Most notably,
the new approach would eliminate off-balance streatment of leases and require lessees to reeasgd assets on their balance sheets. If the
proposed accounting standard becomes effectiwe ouirent form, it could be perceived to makeitgas less attractive option for some of our
full service lease customers. Other changes inustow rules, estimates, assumptions and accradlst@anges in current financial, tax or
regulatory requirements to which we are subjectctalso negatively impact our business.

Volatility in assumptions and asset values relatetb our pension plans may reduce our profitability and adversely impact current funding
levels.

We historically sponsored a number of defined hiepédns for employees in the U.S., U.K. and offoeeign locations. The retirement
benefits under the defined benefit plans are frdaenon-grandfathered and certain non-union ergesy Our major defined benefit plans are
funded, with trust assets invested in a diversifiedfolio. The cash contributions made to our wedi benefit plans are required to comply with
minimum funding requirements imposed by employeagelitand tax laws. The projected benefit obligatimd assets of our global defined
benefit plans as of December 31, 2013 were $2libbhnd $1.8 billion , respectively. The differenisetween plan obligations and assets, or the
funded status of the plans, is a significant faotatetermining pension expense and the ongoindifignrequirements of those plans.
Macroeconomic factors, as well as changes in invest returns and discount rates used to calcuéatsipn expense and related assets and
liabilities can be volatile and may have an unfabde impact on our costs and funding requiremexitsough we have actively sought to con
increases in these costs and funding requiremlerdagh investment policies and plan contributidghsre can be no assurance that we will
succeed, and continued cost pressure could retdagadfitability of our business and negatively aopour cash flows.

We also patrticipate in ten U.S. multi-employer pengMEP) plans that provide defined benefits tqptyees covered by collective
bargaining agreements. In the event that we withidram participation in one of these plans, thepligable law could require us to make an
additional lump-sum contribution to the plan. Outhdrawal liability for any MEP plan would depend the extent of the plan's funding of
vested benefits. Economic conditions have causeB pl&ns to be significantly underfunded. If theafigial condition of the MEP plans were to
continue to deteriorate, participating employensldde subject to additional assessments.
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We establish self-insurance reserves based on histal loss development factors, which could lead tadjustments in the future based on
actual development experience.

We retain a portion of the accident risk under gkehliability and workers' compensation insuranoegpams. Our self-insurance accruals
are based on actuarially estimated, undiscountetof@laims, which includes claims incurred but reported. While we believe that our
estimation processes are well designed, every atimprocess is inherently subject to limitatioRisictuations in the frequency or severity of
accidents make it difficult to precisely predicethitimate cost of claims. The actual cost of ckagan be different than the historical selected
loss development factors because of safety perfice)gpayment patterns and settlement patternsa 8etailed discussion on our accounting
policies and assumptions relating to our self-iasae reserves, please see the section titled ¢alriticcounting Estimates - Self-Insurance
Accruals” in Management's Discussion and AnalygBionancial Condition and Results of Operations.

Severe weather or other natural occurrences couldesult in significant business interruptions and exenditures in excess of available
insurance coverage.

Our operations may be affected by external factoch as severe weather and other natural occus:enckiding floods, fires, hurricanes
and earthquakes. As a result, our facilities magémaged, our workforce may be unavailable, fogiscmay rise and significant business
interruptions could occur. In addition, the pemfi@nce of our vehicles could be adversely affecieedtreme weather conditions. Insurance to
protect against loss of business and other retaiedequences resulting from these natural occuesescsubject to coverage limitations,
depending on the nature of the risk insured. Tigaiance may not be sufficient to cover all of damages or damages to others and this
insurance may not continue to be available at cormially reasonable rates. Even with insurancenyf matural occurrence leads to a catastrc
interruption of service, we may not be able to gaité a significant interruption in operations.

Our international operations subject us to operatimal and financial risks.

We provide services outside of the U.S., which ectigj our business to various risks, including ckang tariffs, trade restrictions, trade
agreements and taxes; difficulties in managingverseeing foreign operations and agents; foreigrenay fluctuations and limitations on the
repatriation of funds due to foreign currency colstrdifferent liability standards; and intellectpaoperty laws of countries that do not protect
our rights in intellectual property to the sameeextas the laws of the U.S. The occurrence or cuesees of any of these factors may restrict
our ability to operate in the affected region andlecrease the profitability of our operationshiattregion. Also, if we do not correctly anticipate
changes in international economic and politicaldibons, we may not alter our business practicesrie to avoid adverse effects.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Our properties consist primarily of vehicle mairaaoe and repair facilities, warehouses and otlaestate and improvements.

We maintain 606 FMS properties in the U.S., PuRitm and Canada; we own 391 of these and leageitiaining 215. Our FMS
properties are primarily comprised of maintenaraa@ifies generally including a repair shop, rem@linter, fuel service island, administrative
offices, and used vehicle retail sales centers.

Additionally, we manage 174 on-site maintenancéifies, located at customer locations.

We also maintain 128 locations in the U.S. and @armia connection with our domestic SCS businessoat all of our SCS locations are
leased and generally include a warehouse and astnaitive offices.

We maintain 108 international locations (locationsside of the U.S. and Canada) for our internalibusinesses. These locations are in
the U.K., Germany, Mexico, China and Singapore. Miagority of these locations are leased and magy tepair shop, warehouse or
administrative office.

Additionally, we maintain 9 U.S. locations primagriised for Central Support Services. These faslitire generally administrative offices,
of which we own one and lease the remaining eight.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are involved in various claims, lawsuits and mistrative actions arising in the normal cours@of businesses. Some involve claims
for substantial amounts of money and/or claimpfaoritive damages. While any proceeding or litigati@s an element of uncertainty,
management believes that the disposition of sudtensain the aggregate, will not have a matengdact on our consolidated financial condit
or liquidity.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.

16




PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Ryder Common Stock Prices

Stock Price Dividends per
High Low Common Share

2013

First quarter $61.6¢ 50.41 0.31
Second quarter 64.6¢ 52.5¢ 0.31
Third quarter 64.9¢ 55.1% 0.34
Fourth quarter 73.91 56.9: 0.34
2012

First quarter $57.68 51.41 0.29
Second quarter 54.2¢ 33.9¢ 0.29
Third quarter 43.3¢ 32.7¢ 0.31
Fourth quarter 51.01 38.6¢ 0.31

Our common shares are listed on the New York Skoathange under the trading symbol “R.” At Janudkry2014 , there were 8,266
common stockholders of record and our stock pritéhe New York Stock Exchange was $71.19 .
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance ofcammon stock with the performance of the StandaRibor’'s 500 Composite Stock
Index and the Dow Jones Transportation 20 Index fiore year period by measuring the changes imeomstock prices from December 31,
2008 to December 31, 2013.
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=Ryder System, Inc.  $100.00 109.49 143.66 148.28 143.05 215.94
+S&P 500 Index $100.00 126.45 145.52 148.55 172.29 228.04
+Dow Jones Index | $100.00 118.60 150.34 15031 161.58 22842

The stock performance graph assumes for compathsathe value of the Company’s Common Stock anehoh index was $100 on
December 31, 2008 and that all dividends were esited. Past performance is not necessarily anaitodiof future results.
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Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information with regpé& purchases we made of our common stock dtineghree months ended
December 31, 2013 :

Maximum Number

. Total Number of of Shares That May
Total Number Average Price Shares Purchased as Yet Be Purchased
of Shares Paid per Part of Publicly Announced Under the Anti-Dilutive
Purchased® Share Program @ @ Program @ @
October 1 through October 31, 2013 5,38( $59.5¢ — 1,456,07
November 1 through November 30, 2013 2,22( 65.6( — 1,456,07
December 1 through December 31, 2013 717 69.7¢ — 2,000,001

Total 8,31% $62.07 —

(1) During the three months endDecember 31, 2013 , we purchased an aggregate3a¥&hares of our common stock in employee-relaéedactions. Employee-related
transactions may include: (i) shares of commonlstiglivered as payment for the exercise price tibap exercised or to satisfy the option holdeax’ withholding liability
associated with our share-based compensation progrand (ii) open-market purchases by the trustd®yder’'s deferred compensation plans relating t@stments by
employees in our stock, one of the investmentmptwailable under the plans.

(2) In December 2011, our Board of Directors authorizeshare repurchase program intended to mitigageditutive impact of shares issued under our vaiemployee stoc
stock option and employee stock purchase plansetthé December 2011 program, management is aatbdtio repurchase shares of common stock in an @atnmad to
exceed the number of shares issued to employees tedCompany various employee stock, stock option and emplstpet purchase plans from December 1, 2011 thr
December 13, 2013. The December 2011 program legigsegate share repurchases to no more 12 million shares of Ryder common stock. Share @mses of common
stock are made periodically in open-market trangact and are subject to market conditions, legguieements and other factors. Management estakliginearranged
written plans for the Company under Rule 10b5-thefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934 as part oDeeember 2011 program, which allow for share repases during
Ryde’s quarterly blackout periods as set forth in ti@ding plan. For the three months ended DecembeRB13 , we did not repurchase any shares undsrgiogram.

(3) In December 2013, our Board of Directors authorizeshare repurchase program intended to mitigageditutive impact of shares issued under our vaiemployee stoc
stock option and employee stock purchase plansetthé December 2013 program, management is aatbdtio repurchase shares of common stock in an iatnmad to
exceed the number of shares issued to employees tedCompany various employee stock, stock option and emplstpet purchase plans from December 1, 2013 thr
December 31, 2015. The December 2013 program legigsegate share repurchases to no more 12 million shares of Ryder common stock. Share @mses of common
stock are made periodically in open-market trangesrst and are subject to market conditions, legguieements and other factors. Management may astaptearranged
written plans for the Company under Rule 10b5-thefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934 as part oDteeember 2013 program, which allow for share repases during
Ryde’s quarterly blackout periods as set forth in thading plan. We did not repurchase any shares utisisrprogram in 2013.

19




Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table includes information as of Detd®er 31, 2013 about certain plans which provideHerissuance of common stock in
connection with the exercise of stock options atheioshare-based awards.

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Number of Securities to be Future Issuance Under Equ

issued upon Exercise of ~ Weighed-Average Exercise Compensation Plans
Outstanding Options, Price of Outstanding Optior Excluding Securities
Plans Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column (a)
(@ (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrstd
Broad based employee stock plans 2,348,12 @ $49.9¢® 2,594,16:
Employee stock purchase plan — — 462,15:
Non-employee directors' stock plans 158,63¢ @ — 39,80:
Total 2,506,76! $49.9¢ 3,096,11

(1) Includes 630,585 time-vested and performans=daestricted stock awards. Also includes 31,68fopmance-based restricted stock rights not coersid granted under

accounting guidance for stock compensation. Refétdte 23, "Share-Based Compensation”, for addifiamformation.
(2) Includes 158,639 restricted stock units andetiasted restricted stock awards, of which 4,9k tiested restricted stock awards vested in previeassyand are not exercisat

until six months after the director's retirement.
(3) Weighted-average exercise price of outstandiptipns excludes restricted stock awards and retetri stock units.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following selected consolidated financial imf@tion should be read in conjunction with Iltems@ 8 of this report.

Years ended December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(Dollars and shares in thousands, except per stmoents)
Operating Data:

Revenue $ 6,419,28 6,256,96' 6,050,53. 5,136,43! 4,887,25.
Earnings from continuing operations $ 243,19 200,89 171,36¢ 124,60¢ 90,11%
Comparable earnings from continuing operati@hs $ 256,56: 226,81! 180,63( 116,98t 94,63(
Net earning$2) $ 237,79 209,97¢ 169,77 118,17( 61,94¢
Per Share Data:
Earnings from continuing operations -Diluted $ 4.6% 3.91 3.31 2.37 1.62
Comparable earnings from continuing operationsutbd(1) $ 4.8¢ 4.41 3.4¢ 2.22 1.7¢C
Net earnings -Dilute(®?) $ 4.5 4.0¢ 3.2¢ 2.2¢ 1.11
Cash dividends $ 1.3C 1.2C 1.12 1.04 0.9¢
Book value®3) $ 35.5¢ 28.51 25.71 27.4¢ 26.71
Financial Data:
Total assets $ 9,103,78 8,318,97! 7,617,83 6,652,37. 6,259,83
Average assel9) $ 8,618,48 8,123,501 7,251,85. 6,366,64 6,507,43.
Return on average assets (%) 2.8 2.€ 2.3 1.¢ 1.C
Long-term debt $ 3,929,98 3,452,82. 3,107,77 2,326,87 2,265,07.
Total debt $ 4,189,422 3,820,79 3,382,14! 2,747,00: 2,497,69.
Shareholders’ equit{p) $ 1,617,40 1,188,17 1,318,15. 1,404,31. 1,426,99!
Debt to equity (%)3) 221 26C 257 19¢ 17k
Average shareholders’ equi§). (4) $ 1,593,99 1,406,601 1,428,04 1,401,68 1,395,62'
Return on average shareholders’ equity (%) (4) 14.¢ 14.¢ 11.¢€ 8.4 4.4
Adjusted return on average capital (%) (5) 5.7 5.€ 5.7 4.¢ 4.1
Net cash provided by operating activities of cauitiig
operations $ 1,223,08 1,134,12. 1,041,95 1,028,03. 984,95¢
Free cash flow6) $ (386,16) (384,241 (256,779 257,57: 614,09(
Capital expenditures paid $ 2,140,46. 2,133,23! 1,698,58 1,070,09; 651,95:
Other Data:
Average common shares — Diluted 52,07: 50,74( 50,87¢ 51,88 55,09
Number of vehicles — Owned and leased 172,10( 172,50( 169,90( 148,70( 152,40(
Average number of vehicles — Owned and leased 171,20( 173,70( 160,90( 150,70( 159,50(
Number of employees 28,90( 27,70( 27,50( 25,90( 22,90(

(1) Nor-GAAP financial measure. Refer to the sectionditl®verview” and “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” itdm 7 of this report for a reconciliation of comphte earnings
from continuing operations to net earnings fromtamring operations and comparable earnings fromtgaring operations per diluted common share togehings pel
diluted common share.

(2) Netearnings ir2013, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009 included (Igssasings from discontinued operations of $ (Sljiami , or $(0.10) per diluted common share, $9liwil ,
or $0.18 per diluted common share, $(2) milliom $¢0.03) per diluted common share, $(6) milliar $(0.12) per diluted common share, and $(28)iarill or $(0.51) per
diluted common share, respectively.

(3) Shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2013 , 2@11 , 2010 and 2009 reflected after-tax equityrgha of $474 million , $645 million , $595 millip$423 million , and
$412 million , respectively, related to our pensé@md postretirement plans.

(4) Amounts were computed using époint average based on quarterly informati

(5) Our adjusted return on average capital (ROC), a1@AAP financial measure, represents the rate afrregenerated by the capital deployed in our bussn&Ve use ROC as
an internal measure of how effectively we use #pital invested (borrowed or owned) in our operagoRefer to the section titled “Non-GAAP Finandiggasures’in Item 7
of this report for a reconciliation of adjusted ueh on average capital to return on average shatetrs’ equity .

(6) Nor-GAAP financial measure. Refer to the sectionditleéinancial Resources and Liquidity” in Item 7 tifis report for a reconciliation of net cash proeiiby operating
activities to free cash flow.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management's Discussion and Analydi§inancial Condition and Results of Operation®@A) should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statetseand related notes contained in Item 8 of #gi®rt on Form 10-K. The following MD&A
describes the principal factors affecting resultsperations, financial resources, liquidity, catual cash obligations, and critical accounting
estimates. The information presented in the MD&#4oisthe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 @b#l @nless otherwise noted.

OVERVIEW

Ryder System, Inc. (Ryder) is a global leaderamgportation and supply chain management solut@usbusiness operates in highly
competitive markets. Our customers select us baseaimerous factors including service quality, @riechnology, and service offerings. As an
alternative to using our services, customers mapsh to provide these services for themselves agrahoose to obtain similar or alternative
services from other third-party vendors. Our cugipbase includes enterprises operating in a vaofetydustries including automotive,
industrial, food and beverage service, consumetguped goods, transportation and warehousintgdfi-and electronics, retail, housing, busit
and personal services, and paper and publishing.

We operate in two business segments: Fleet Managedodutions (FMS), which provides full servicedes, contract maintenance,
contract-related maintenance and commercial reftalicks, tractors and trailers to customers ppiaity in the U.S., Canada and the U.K.; and
Supply Chain Solutions (SCS), which provides compnsive supply chain consulting, including disttiba and transportation services in Nc
America and Asia. The SCS segment also providesated services, which includes vehicles and dsiearpart of a dedicated transportation
solution in the U.S.

The FMS business segment is our largest segmer8. levenue (net of intercompany eliminations) arsgtsin 2013 were $4.04 billion
and $8.31 hillion , respectively, representing 6&%ur consolidated revenue and 91% of consolidagsats. SCS revenue in 2013 was $2.38
billion , representing 37% of our consolidated rave

In 2013, we delivered revenue and earnings grawtioth business segments. Consolidated revenuwe3freand earnings from
continuing operations grew 21% . In FMS, we inceglsur full service lease fleet by over 2,600 viglsiduring the second half of the year
driven by significantly improved sales activity. Gzommercial rental business also performed wet Wigher pricing and increased U.S.
demand. Additionally, solid used vehicle salesvégtidrove inventories to the lowest levels in tyears. In SCS, we had strong overall
performance and continued growth in our dedicagedices offering. We also improved the spread bemwaur return on capital and cost of
capital.

Total revenue was $6.42 billion , up 3%hile operating revenue from continuing operatitingal revenue less FMS fuel and subcontra
transportation) was $5.27 billion in 2013 , up 4%he increase in total and operating revenue wigerby growth in both the SCS and FMS
business segments. Earnings from continuing opemtiefore taxes (EBT) increased 22% in 2013 t® $3lion . The improvement in EBT
reflects better performance in the FMS and SCSessisegments, lower restructuring and other change lower pension expense.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (Co ntinued)

EBT, earnings and EPS from continuing operationkiged certain items we do not consider indicati’eur ongoing operations and have
been excluded from our comparable earnings meaBheefollowing discussion provides a summary of208&3 and 2012 items which are
discussed in more detail throughout our MD&A anthini the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Continuing Operations

Earnings Before Diluted Earnings
Income Taxes (EBT) Earnings per Share (EPS)
(Dollars in thousands except per share amounts)
2013

EBT/Earnings/EPS from Continuing Operations $368,89¢ $243,19¢ $4.63

Non-operating pension co$ts 24,28t 14,29: 0.2¢

Pension settlement chardés 2,82( 1,711 0.0z
Restructuring and other recoveries, #et (470 (360) (0.02)
Superstorm Sandy recoveriés (600) (374 (0.03)
Foreign currency translation benéfit (1,909 (1,909 (0.09
Comparable $393,02¢ $256,56 $4.88

2012

EBT/Earnings/EPS from Continuing Operations $303,11" $200,89¢ $3.91

Non-operating pension co$ts 31,42¢ 19,37( 0.37

Restructuring and other charges, fet 8,07( 5,26: 0.11

Superstorm Sandy vehicle-related los8es 8,23( 5,117 0.1C

Acquisition-related transaction coéts 36¢ 271 —

Charge related to tax law change in the ¥XK. — 85€ 0.0z
Tax benefit associated with resolution of prior ryte item® — (4,967) (0.10
Comparable $351,20¢ $226,81¢ $4.41

(1) Includes the amortization of actuarial loss gireist cost and expected return on plan assets coenp® of pension and post-retirement costs, whiettied to financial market performance. 2013 also

includes $4 million ($2 million after-tax) or $0.@barge related to an understatement of pensioigatibns. We consider these costs to be outsideftheational performance of the business.

(2) Refer to Note 24, "Employee Benefit Plans, féother discussion.

(3) Refer to Note 5, "Restructuring and Other (Reti@s) Charges,” in the Notes to Consolidated Ficial Statements for additional information.

(4) Refer to Note 26, “Other Items Impacting Conglality,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial$ments.

(5) Non-GAAP financial measure. We believe comparBBT, comparable earnings and comparable earnpegsdiluted common share all from continuing optienras measures provide useful information
to investors because they exclude non-operatingiperosts, which we consider to be those impangdthancial market performance and outside therapenal performance of the business, and other
significant items that are unrelated to our ongogsiness operations.

(6) See Note 14, "Income Taxes,” in the Notes tesClidated Financial Statements for additional imfi@tion.

Excluding the items listed above, comparable egsfrom continuing operations increased 13% to $8Bifon in 2013 and increased
18% to $227 million in 2012 . Comparable EPS framtmuing operations increased 11% to $4.88 peitati common share in 2013 and 18%6
$4.41 per diluted common share in 2012 . EBT graexiteeded the EPS growth during 2013 because #rageznumber of shares outstanding
has increased 3% over prior year reflecting theaichpf stock issuances under employee stock optidnstock purchase plans.

Net earnings (including discontinued operationsjéased 13% in 2013 to $238 million or $4.53 pkrted common share.

Cash provided by operating activities from contirguoperations increased to $1.22 billion in 201®pared with $1.13 billion in 2012
reflecting reduced working capital needs and higiznings. Free cash flow from continuing operatiamas negative $386 million in 2013
compared to negative $384 million in 2012 . Thgtgldecline in free cash flow was driven by a $&8llion sale-lease back transaction in the
prior year partially offset by higher cash from ogang activities. We made pension contributiongygbroximately $96 milliomnd increased o
annual dividend by 10% to $1.36 per share of comstock.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (Co ntinued)

Capital expenditures (accrual basis) increasedal$2118 billion in 2013 reflecting higher investrieto fulfill contractual sales made to
customers growing and renewing their fleets offseplanned lower investments in the commercialaiifeéet. Our debt balance increased 10%
to $4.19 billion at December 31, 2013 due to negdtiee cash flow. Our debt to equity ratio deceea® 221% from 260% in 2012 . Our total
obligations (including off-balance sheet debt)qoity ratio also decreased to 226% from 270% in2201

2014 Outlook

Looking ahead to 2014 , we expect to build on étang) 2013 performance with accelerating revenogvtir and double-digit earnings
improvement. We anticipate revenue growth in adidoict lines. Based on recent sales results andgyeve anticipate continued growth in our
lease fleet with a higher number of vehicles urdieg-term contracts with customers. We are forétgstnother year of record earnings per
share, driven by improved performance in contrddtubservice lease and supply chain solutionsya as commercial rental. We also expect
increasing contributions from new products inclgdour on-demand maintenance and natural gas vadffeléngs. In addition, we anticipate
depreciation benefits associated with strong uséitle pricing realized over the past few yearesehearnings improvements will be partially
offset by a higher tax rate due to increased egsnim higher tax rate jurisdictions. Our strongngags growth will also allow us to make strate
investments in the business to drive future grow#stly, with our leverage ratio now at the low efaur target range, we will begin
implementing our recently announced anti-dilutihare repurchase program to deliver additional vedumur shareholders.

We forecast full-year 2014 comparable earnings feomtinuing operations to be in the range of $50395.45 per diluted share, up 9% to
12% from $4.88 per diluted share in 2013. Full-yemmings comparisons exclude non-operating pemnsists of $0.15 per diluted share in 2014
and $0.28 per diluted share in 2013. Total revdauthe full-year 2014 is forecast to be approxieha$6.8 billion, up 5% from $6.4 billion in
2013. Operating revenue (revenue excluding FMSdudlall subcontracted transportation) for the-yethr 2014 is forecast to be approximately
$5.6 billion, up 6% from $5.3 billion in 2013.

ACQUISITIONS

We completed the following acquisitions from 2042012 (there were no acquisitions in 2013), umnd@ch we acquired a company’s
fleet and contractual customers. The acquisitiggesate under Ryder’'s name and complement our egistarket coverage and service network.
The results of these acquisitions have been indlimeur consolidated results since the dates giiiaition. See Note 3, “Acquisitions,” for
further discussion.

Contractual
Company Acquired Date Vehicles Customers Segment Market
Euroway Ltd. August 1, 2012 1,360 60 FMS U.K.
Hill Hire plc June 8, 2011 13,700 400 FMS U.K.
B.I.T. Leasing April 1, 2011 490 130 FMS California
The Scully Companies January 28, 2011 2,100 200 FMS/SCS Western U.S.
Carmenita Leasing, Inc. January 10, 2011 190 60 FMS California
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (Co ntinued)

FULL YEAR CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Total revenue $ 6,419,28! 6,256,96' 6,050,53. 3% 3%
Operating revenu® 5,270,49. 5,066,32. 4,814,55 4 5
Pre-tax earnings from continuing operations  $ 368,89 303,11 279,38 22 8
Earnings from continuing operations 243,19t 200,89¢ 171,36¢ 21 17
Net earnings 237,79. 209,97! 169,77 13 24
Earnings per common share — Diluted

Continuing operations $ 4.6% 3.91 3.31 18% 18%

Net earnings 4.5 4.0¢ 3.2¢ 11% 25%

(1) We use operating revenue, a non-GAAP financial omeaso evaluate the operating performance of ausibesses and as a measure of sales activity. EMSérvices
revenue, which is directly impacted by fluctuationsarket fuel prices, is excluded from the opeatevenue computation as fuel is largely a pasetigh to our customers
for which we realize minimal changes in profitatyilduring periods of steady market fuel prices. ldoer, profitability may be positively or negativétypacted by rapi
changes in market fuel prices during a short pewdtime as customer pricing for fuel servicesstablished based on market fuel costs. Subconttaraesportation is
deducted from total revenue to arrive at operatiegenue as subcontracted transportation is typjcalpass-through to our customers. We realize nah@hanges in
profitability as a result of fluctuations in subdeected transportation. Refer to the section tit‘Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for a reconciliatioof total revenue to
operating revenue.

Revenue and cost of revenue by source

Total revenue increased 3% in 2013 to $6.42 billind increased 3% in 2012 to $6.26 hillion . Opegatevenue (revenue excluding FMS
fuel and all subcontracted transportation) incréaé in 2013 to $5.27 billion and increased 5%0t2to $5.07 billion . The following table
summarizes the components of the change in revemaepercentage basis versus the prior year:

2013 2012

Total Operating Total Operating
Organic including price and volume 3% 4% 2% 3%
Acquisitions — — 1 2
Total increase 3% 4% 3% 5%

See “Full Year Operating Results by Business Segn@na further discussion of the revenue impaotrf organic growth and
acquisitions.

Lease and Rental

Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Lease and rental revenues $ 2,770,021 2,695,37 2,553,87 3% 6%
Cost of lease and rental 1,915,73 1,890,65! 1,746,05 1% 8%
Gross margin 854,29( 804,71 807,82( 6% —%
Gross margin % 31% 30% 32%

Lease and rental revenues represent full servaseland commercial rental product offerings withun FMS business segment. Revenues
increased 3% in 2013 to $2.77 billion and incre&@¥dn 2012 to $2.70 billion . In 2013 , the ingeavas primarily driven by higher prices on
full service lease vehicles and, to a lesser extegher commercial rental revenue. Commercialalamtvenue increased due to an improvement
in rental pricing (up 3% in 2013 ) partially offdst lower demand in the U.K. In 2012 , the increass primarily driven by higher prices on
lease and commercial rental vehicles, organicskiivice lease fleet growth and the impact of tHeHHie acquisition partially offset by lower
commercial rental demand.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (Co ntinued)

Cost of lease and rental represents the direcs celsited to lease and rental revenues. Thesearestomprised of depreciation of revenue
earning equipment, maintenance costs (primarilgirgarts and labor), and other fixed costs suditasses, insurance and operating taxes.
of lease and rental excludes interest costs framthkefinancing. Cost of lease and rental increddédn 2013 to $1.92 billion and increased 8%
in 2012 to $1.89 billion . In 2013 , the change was to increased maintenance costs and deprecfatio higher lease vehicle investments,
partially offset by lower depreciation of $30 nmlti from changes in the residual value policy aschaller average rental fleet (down 6% in
2013). The increased costs in 2012 were due tgrthath in the lease fleet and refreshment of dasé and rental fleets partially offset by lower
depreciation of $18 million from changes in thadeal value policy.

Gross margin increased to $854 million and grosgjinas a percentage of revenue increased to 31318 . The increase was due to
higher pervehicle pricing, benefits from improved vehicleidesl values and increased utilization on a smalerage rental fleet. Gross mat
declined slightly to $805 million and gross marga percentage of revenue declined to 30% in 20h2 slight decline in 2012 was a result of
lower commercial rental performance from lower fleidlization partially offset by the impact of thll Hire acquisition and improved full
service lease performance.

Services
Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Services revenue $ 2,819,67. 2,707,01: 2,609,17. 4% 4%
Cost of services 2,366,82! 2,274,111 2,186,35: 4% 4%
Gross margin 452,85! 432,89! 422,82: 5% 2%
Gross margin % 16% 16% 16%

Services revenue represents all the revenues as=evith our SCS business segment as well asaobmiraintenance, contract-related
maintenance and other services associated witRM&® business segment. Services revenue increaséa 2043 to $2.82 billion and increased
4% in 2012 to $2.71 billion . In 2013 , the revelnerease was primarily due to new business arngehigolumes in our SCS business segment,
especially around dedicated services, and high&raci-related maintenance revenue in our FMS legsisegment. In 2012 , the revenue
increase was primarily driven by increased voluared new business in our SCS automotive sector igiheéthfuel costs passed through to our
SCS segment customers.

Cost of services represents the direct costs tetatservices revenue and is primarily comprisesiatdries and employee-related costs,
SCS subcontracted transportation (purchased tratasipo from third parties) and maintenance cdStsst of services increased 4% in 2013 to
$2.37 billion and increased 4% in 2012 to $2.2[dwil. In 2013 and 2012 , the cost increase wadada@ increase in revenue. The increase in
2012 also reflects higher medical benefit costwelsas $ 8 million of vehicle-related losses fr@uperstorm Sandy.

Services gross margin increased 5% to $453 miilid?013 and increased 2% to $433 million in 201lighprily due to higher revenue.
Services gross margin as a percentage of revemagmed at 16% in 2013 and 2012 .

Fuel
Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Fuel services revenue $ 829,58t 854,57¢ 887,48: )% (4)%
Cost of fuel services 814,05¢ 838,67. 873,46t (3)% (4)%
Gross margin 15,52¢ 15,90¢ 14,017 (2)% 13%
Gross margin % 2% 2% 2%

Fuel services revenue decreased 3% in 2013 to®dBOn and decreased 4% in 2012 to $855 milliom 2013 , the revenue decrease was
due to lower fuel prices passed through to custenier2012 , the decrease in revenue was due terfgallons sold partially offset by higher
fuel prices passed through to customers.
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Cost of fuel services includes the direct costeaaged with providing our customers with fuel. $heosts include fuel, salaries and
employee-related costs of fuel island attendandsd@preciation of our fueling facilities and equigmh Cost of fuel decreased 3% in 2013 to
$814 million and decreased 4% in 2012 to $839 omilliln 2013 , the cost decrease was due to lavetipfices. In 2012 , the cost decrease was
due to fewer gallons sold.

Fuel services gross margin decreased 2% in 2018arehsed 13% to $16 million in 2012 . Fuel ig&dy a pass-through to customers for
which we realize minimal changes in margin duriegqds of steady market fuel prices. However, fggl/ices margin is impacted by sudden
increases or decreases in market fuel prices darsiwrt period of time as customer pricing foll faestablished based on market fuel costs.
Fuel services gross margin as a percentage of uevemained at 2% in 2013 and 2012 .

Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(In thousands)
Other operating expenses $ 137,91t 135,90: 129,18( 1% 5%

Other operating expenses includes costs relatedrtowned and leased facilities within the FMS bass segment such as depreciation,
rent, insurance, utilities and taxes. These féadliare utilized to provide maintenance to ourdeaantal, contract maintenance and fleet support
services customers. Other operating expensesralkmé the costs associated with used vehicle saldsas writedowns of used vehicles to fair
market value and facilities costs. Other operagigenses increased 1% to $138 million in 2013 ddrégher maintenance costs on FMS
facilities and higher insurance costs partiallysetfby lower operating property depreciation. Otiperating expenses increased 5% to $136
million in 2012 due to higher writedowns on vehgleeld for sale of $10 million .

Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A) $ 790,68: 766,70: 771,24 3% D)%
Percentage of total revenue 12% 12% 13%
Percentage of operating revenue 15% 15% 16%

SG&A expenses increased 3% to $791 million in 284& decreased 1% to $767 million in 2012 . SG&Aemges as a percent of total
revenue remained at 12% in 2013 and decreased4dri2012 . The increase in SG&A expenses in 2@1i8at planned investments in
information technology and higher compensationteel&xpenses. The decrease in SG&A expenses inr2fiéet lower incentive-based
compensation of $31 million partially offset by h&y pension expense and commissions from new aetieity as well as an increase in salaries
and employee-related costs from organic growthaamglisitions. Pension expense, which primarily iotp&G&A expenses, decreased $1
million in 2013 and increased $15 million in 201Phe decrease in pension expense in 2013 primafilgcts higher than expected pension asset
returns in 2012 as well as contributions, partiaffiget by a lower discount rate at December 31228nd 201&nd pension settlement charge
$3 million . In addition, in the fourth quarter 2013 , we determined certain census data useduaraly determine the value of our pension
benefit obligations for the years 1998 to 2012 imascurate. We recorded a one-time, non-cash cludu$4 millionto adjust our pension bene
obligation. The impact of revising our pension Herabligation was not material to our consolidafethncial statements in any individual prior
period, and the cumulative amount is not mateoi@@13 results. The increase in pension expen®@li primarily reflects lower than expected
pension asset returns in 2011 and lower assumaicthseh 2012 .

Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(In thousands)
Gains on vehicle sales, net $ 96,17¢ 89,10¢ 62,87¢ 8% 42%

Gains on vehicle sales, net increased 8% to $9d®mih 2013 due to higher sales volume and higlverage proceeds per unit. Increased
sales volume in 2013 (up 5% ) reflects higher ayetased vehicle inventories and improved saleopagnce. Used vehicle sales inventory
dropped 14% to 7,900 at December 31, 2013 . Gilxaiage proceeds per unit increased 1% in 201&ctift) an increase in average truck
proceeds per unit partially offset by modestly loaeerage tractor proceeds per unit. Gains on leehades, net increased 42% to $89 million in
2012 due to higher sales volume and improved pricin
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Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest expense 137,19¢ 140,55 133,16« (2)% 6%

Effective interest rate 3.5% 3.8% 4.3%

Interest expense decreased 2% to $137 million ¥82Md increased 6% to $141 million in 2012 . Teerease in 2013 was due to a lower
effective interest rate partially offset by higlaeerage outstanding debt. The lower effective @dterate in 2013 primarily reflects the
replacement of higher interest rate debt with d&htances at lower rates. The increase in averatgtanding debt reflects capital spending over
the last twelve months. In 2012 , the increasectslhigher average outstanding debt partiallyeptly a lower effective interest rate.

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Miscellaneous income, net $ 15,37: 11,727 9,09:

Miscellaneous income, net consists of investmestdrime on securities held to fund certain benefihglénterest income, gains and losses
from sales of property, foreign currency transaciains, and non-operating items. Miscellaneousng net improved $4 million in 2013
primarily from higher investment income from setied used to fund certain benefit plans and instegaacoveries, including business
interruption claims primarily related to Superstdgandy. In addition, miscellaneous income, netgased due to a benefit from the recognition
of the accumulated currency translation adjustrireatforeign operation partially offset by loweriggon sales of property. Miscellaneous
income, net improved $3 million in 2012 primarilyelto insurance-related recoveries and higher iecominvestment securities.

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Restructuring and other (recoveries) charges, net $ 470 8,07( 3,65¢

Refer to Note 5, “Restructuring and Other (Rec@grChargesih the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemanta discussion of the
(recoveries) charges.

Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Provision for income taxes $ 125,69 102,21¢ 108,01¢ 23% (5)%

Effective tax rate from continuing operations 34.1% 33.™% 38.7%

Our provision for income taxes and effective incdmerates are impacted by such items as enactdawechanges, settlement of tax
audits and the reversal of reserves for unceréaipositions due to the expiration of statutesroitation. In the aggregate, these items reduced
the effective rate by 1.6% in 2012 and increaseceffective rate by 2.6% in 2011 . These itemswdithave a significant impact on the effective
rate in 2013. Excluding these items, our effectaserate in 2013 and 2012 benefited from lowerifpréax rates. In 2012 , our effective tax rate
also benefited from a higher proportionate amotietonings in lower tax rate jurisdictions.

On January 2, 2013, the U.S. enacted the Amerieapdyer Relief Act of 2012. This enactment alonthwhie 2010 Tax Relief,
Unemployment Insurance Reauthorization and JobtiGreAct (collectively, the “Acts”) expanded andterded bonus depreciation to qualified
property placed in service during 2010 through 20tse changes will continue to significantly reglour U.S. federal tax payments through
2017.

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
(Loss) Earnings from discontinued operations, fi¢do $ (5,409 9,08( (1,599

Refer to Note 4, “Discontinued Operations,” in tetes to Consolidated Financial Statements foseudision of results from discontinued
operations.
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FULL YEAR OPERATING RESULTS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(In thousands)
Revenue:
Fleet Management Solutions $  4,494,68 4,405,32! 4,218,33 2% 4%
Supply Chain Solutions 2,383,06: 2,280,58! 2,206,03! 4 3
Eliminations (458,46, (428,94, (373,83) @) (15)
Total $ 6,419,28 6,256,96' 6,050,53 3% 3%
Operating Revenue:
Fleet Management Solutions $ 3,424,48 3,321,15! 3,135,85 3% 6 %
Supply Chain Solutions 2,063,85! 1,944,51 1,857,54. 6 5
Eliminations (217,849 (199,34¢) (178,84, 9 (11)
Total $ 5,270,49 5,066,32. 4,814,55 4% 5%
EBT:
Fleet Management Solutions $ 344,04¢ 307,62¢ 265,69: 12% 1€ %
Supply Chain Solutions 129,95¢ 115,19¢ 104,89¢ 13 10
Eliminations (35,489 (29,269 (24,217 (21) (21)
438,51 393,55t 346,37 11 14
Unallocated Central Support Services (45,49)) (42,349 (42,549 @) —
Non-operating pension costs (24,28 (31,429 (18,657) 23 (68)
Restructuring and other recoveries (charges), net
and other items 154 (16,66%) (5,789 NM NM
Earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes $ 368,89! 303,11° 279,38 2204 8%

As part of management’s evaluation of segment dipgraerformance, we define the primary measurerokatir segment financial
performance as “Earnings Before Tax” (EBT) fromtimuing operations, which includes an allocatiorCeitral Support Services (CSS), and
excludes non-operating pension costs, restructaniagother (recoveries) charges, net, as desanbidte (5), “Restructuring and Other
(Recoveries) Charges,” and the items discussedia (26), “Other Items Impacting Comparability,’the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The objective of the EBT measurement is to proeidety on the profitability of each business segirend, ultimately, to hold leadership
of each business segment and each operating segitiginteach business segment accountable for #fleitated share of CSS costs. CSS
represents those costs incurred to support alhbasisegments, including human resources, finangegrate services and public affairs,
information technology, health and safety, legal aarporate communications. Segment results araewassarily indicative of the results of
operations that would have occurred had each segmen an independent, stand-alone entity duriegéniods presented. Certain costs are
considered to be overhead not attributable to agynent and remain unallocated in CSS. Includedmitte unallocated overhead remaining
within CSS are the costs for investor relationdyliswaffairs and certain executive compensatior Sete 29, “Segment Reportingi'the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements for a deserigif how the remainder of CSS costs are allocai¢de business segments.

Our FMS segment leases revenue earning equipmergraaides fuel, maintenance and other ancillaryises to our SCS segment. Inter-
segment revenue and EBT are accounted for atsmbdar to those executed with third parties. ERTated to inter-segment equipment and
services billed to customers (equipment contritntere included in both FMS and SCS and then editeih (presented as “Eliminations”). Refer
to Note 29, "Segment Reporting” in the Notes tostdidated Financial Statements for additional infation.
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The following table provides a reconciliation adrits excluded from our segment EBT measure to ¢hasification within our
Consolidated Statements of Earnings:

Consolidated

Description Statements of Earnings Line Item 2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Severance and employee-related benefit (c64ts) Restructuring and other charges  $ 47C (7,20%) (3,162)
Contract termination cosf3 Restructuring and other charges — (86%) (49%)

Restructuring and other recoveries (charges), net 47C (8,070 (3,655
Superstorm Sandy recoveries (los$@s) Cost of services 60C (8,230 —
Non-operating pension costs SG&A (24,285 (31,42 (18,657
Foreign currency translation benéfit Miscellaneous income 1,90¢ — —
Acquisition transaction cosf® SG&A — (36%) (2,139
Pension settlement charge SG&A (2,820 — —

$ (24,13)  (48,09)  (24,44)

(1) See Note 5, “Restructuring and Other (Recoveridgrges,”in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtsfiditional information
(2) See Note 26, “Other Items Impacting Comparabiliiy,'the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtgdditional information
(3) See Note 24, “Employee Benefit Planis,'the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtsfiditional information

Fleet Management Solutions

Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Full service lease $ 2,177,41 2,102,21. 1,996,27. 4% 5%
Contract maintenance 180,28 187,22 182,28 4 3
Contractual revenue 2,357,70:. 2,289,44. 2,178,55! 3 5
Commercial rental 789,49t 772,79 722,55 2 7
Contract-related maintenance 205,25¢ 186,95! 165,62: 10 13
Other 72,03( 71,95¢ 69,12¢ — 4
Operating revenu@ 3,424,48! 3,321,15I 3,135,85 3 6
Fuel services revenue 1,070,20. 1,084,17 1,082,47 1) —
Total revenue $ 4,494,68! 4,405,32! 4,218,33! 2% 4%
Segment EBT $ 344,04¢ 307,62¢ 265,69: 12% 16%
Segment EBT as a % of total revenue 7.7% 7.0% 6.3% 70 bps 70 bps
Segment EBT as a % of operating revefiue 10.0% 9.3% 8.5% 70 bps 80 bps

(1) We use operating revenue and EBT as a percentasfitipg revenue, non-GAAP financial measures, tduate the operating performance of our FMS busrsegment and
as a measure of sales activity. Fuel services n@a@ewhich is directly impacted by fluctuations iarket fuel prices, is excluded from our operatiegenue computation as fi
is largely a pass-through to customers for whichreadize minimal changes in profitability duringrmals of steady market fuel prices. However, paditity may be positively
or negatively impacted by rapid changes in market prices during a short period of time as custopr&ing for fuel services is established basecdwarket fuel costs.
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Total revenue increased 2% in 2013 to $4.49 billind increased 4% in 2012 to $4.41 billion . Opegatevenue (revenue excluding fuel)
increased 3% in 2013 to $3.42 billion and incre&@¥%dn 2012 to $3.32 billion . The following tatdammarizes the components of the change
in revenue on a percentage basis versus the @éor y

2013 2012
Total Operating Total Operating
Organic including price and volume 2% 3% 2% 4%
Acquisitions — — 2 2
Total increase 2% 3% 4% 6%

2013 versus 2012

Full service lease revenue increased 4% in 2018guily reflecting higher prices on new and replaeanvehicles. The higher pricing on
new and replacement vehicles was driven by higbstsmn new engine technology. The average nunilfell service lease vehicles increased
slightly from the prior year. We expect favorahldl ervice lease comparisons to continue next gaararily due to strong sales activity in the
second half of 2013 . Commercial rental revenuecmed 2% in 2013 reflecting increased global temiging (up 3% in 2013 ) and increased
demand in the U.S. partially offset by lower demanthe U.K. We expect favorable commercial rentahparisons next year driven by
increased global pricing and increased demand.r@ctatelated maintenance revenue increased 10%1i8 @ue primarily to our new on-
demand maintenance product initiative and the liteoied prior year acquisition. Contract mainterenevenue decreased 4% in 2013 due to a
higher proportion of trailer maintenance contradés. Fuel services revenue declined 1% in 2013allever prices passed through to
customers.

FMS EBT increased 12% in 2013 to $344 million priityedue to improved full service lease performaaoe the benefit of $30 millicof
lower depreciation due to residual value policyrgfes implemented January 1, 2013 . Full servicgeleamparisons also benefited from
maintenance cost savings due to a younger fleetin@cial rental performance improved 6% in 20131 ftbe prior year reflecting higher
pricing and increased fleet utilization partialiifset by lower performance in the U.K. Rental poWeet utilization was 78.3% in 203.3ip from
74.9% in 2012 . Used vehicle sales results alsodwgul due to stronger volumes partially offsetdyér proceeds per unit.

2012 versus 2011

Full service lease revenue increased 5% in 201€ctefg higher prices on replacement vehicles agdric fleet growth as well as the
impact of the Hill Hire acquisition. The higher girig on new and replacement vehicles was drivehidiyer costs on new engine technology.
Commercial rental revenue increased 7% in 2012ct¥flg higher pricing (up 4% in 20)2s well as the impact of the Hill Hire acquisitid-ue
services revenue was $1.08 billion in 2012 , ungkdrfrom prior year, as higher fuel prices pashenligh to customers were offset by fewer
gallons sold.

FMS EBT increased 16% in 2012 to $308 million priilyadue to lower compensation-related expensegamc growth of the lease fleet
and the impact of the Hill Hire acquisition. Yeateo year comparisons also benefited from improwsstiwehicle sales results. The increase in
EBT was partially offset by lower commercial rentasults. Acquisitions increased FMS EBT by 5% edUgehicle sales results improved
primarily due to stronger volumes on 8% higheripgdg partially offset by increased carrying costsadarger inventory. Although pricing
increased, commercial rental performance decreaeds a result of lower utilization on a 10% largeerage fleet (including trailers). FMS
EBT in 2012 includes a benefit of $18 million resg from residual value changes on revenue earmiuipment.
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The following table provides commercial rental istits on our global fleet:

Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(Dollars in thousands)

Rental revenue from non-lease customers $ 463,89( 442,52 434,04: 5% 2%
Rental revenue from lease custoni8rs $ 325,60t 330,27! 288,51« (L)% 14%
Average commercial rental power fleet size — in

service® ® 28,90( 30,20( 28,50( (4)% 6%
Commercial rental utilization — power fleet 78.3% 74.9% 77.6% 340 bps (270) bps

(1) Represents revenue from rental vehicles providedit@xisting full service lease customers, gemg@dlring peak periods in their operatior
(2) Number of units rounded to nearest hundred andutaled using average coun
(3) Fleet size excluding trailer
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Our global fleet of owned and leased revenue egmduipment and contract maintenance vehicleswsrarized as follows (number of
units rounded to the nearest hundred):

Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
End of period vehicle count
By type:
Trucks® 68,70( 68,80( 68,40( —% 1%
Tractors® 60,20( 58,80( 55,70( 2 6
Trailers®- @ 41,70( 42,70( 43,30( 2 (1)
Other 1,50( 2,20( 2,50( (32) (12)
Total 172,10( 172,50( 169,90( —% 2%
By ownership:
Owned 169,00( 168,00( 166,50( 1% 1%
Leased 3,10¢ 4,50( 3,40( (31) 32
Total 172,10( 172,50( 169,90( —% 2%
By product line®
Full service lease 122,90( 122,40( 121,00( —% 1%
Commercial rental 38,20( 38,00( 39,60( 1 (4)
Service vehicles and other 3,10( 2,90( 3,00( 7 3)
Active units 164,20( 163,30( 163,60( 1 —
Held for sale 7,90( 9,20( 6,30( (14) 46
Total 172,10( 172,50( 169,90( — 2
Customer vehicles under contract maintenance 37,40( 37,80( 35,30( 1) 7
Total vehicles under service 209,50( 210,30( 205,20( —% 2%
Average vehicle count
By product line:
Full service lease 121,40( 121,90( 116,20( —% 5%
Commercial rental 37,70( 40,10( 36,60( (6) 10
Service vehicles and other 3,00 2,90( 2,90( 3 —
Active units 162,10( 164,90( 155,70( 2) 6
Held for sale 9,10( 8,80( 5,20( 3 69
Total 171,20( 173,70 160,90( (1) 8
Customer vehicles under contract maintenance 37,70( 36,50( 34,10( 3% 7%

(1) Generally comprised of Class 1 through Class 6 tgigcles with a Gross Vehicle Weight (GVW) up&®@0 pounds

(2) Generally comprised of over the road on highwaytimes and are primarily comprised of Classes 7 8rgipe vehicles with a GVW of over 26,000 pou

(3) Generally comprised of dry, flatbed and refrigehtgpe trailers

(4) Includes7,700 trailers ( 5,000 full service lease and 2,¢dtnmercial rental), 9,400 trailers ( 6,200 fulireee lease and 3,200 commercial rental) and 10,080ers ( 6,600
full service lease an3,400 commercial rental) as of December 31, 20312 and 2011 , respectively, primarily acquiredpast of the Hill Hire acquisition.

Note: Average vehicle counts were computed using 24-poieage based on monthly information.
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The totals in the previous table include the follmgvnon-revenue earning equipment for the glolesdtf(number of units rounded to the
nearest hundred):

Change
Number of Units 2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
Not yet earning revenue (NYE) 2,80( 2,20( 2,60( 27% (15)%
No longer earning revenue (NLE):
Units held for sale 7,90( 9,20( 6,30( (14) 46
Other NLE units 2,80( 2,80( 2,60( — 8
Total 13,50( 14,20( 11,50( (5)% 23%

NYE units represent new vehicles on hand that aiegbprepared for deployment to a lease customet@the rental fleet. Preparations
include activities such as adding lift gates, padetals, cargo area and refrigeration equipmemt2613 , the number of NYE units increased
compared with prior year reflecting the timing eée replacements and new sales activity. NLE teptgsent all vehicles held for sale and
vehicles for which no revenue has been earnectipitbvious 30 days. Accordingly, these vehicles betemporarily out of service, being
prepared for sale or awaiting redeployment. Foi32@he number of NLE units decreased reflecting louwged vehicle inventories and increa
commercial rental demand in North America. We ekpld= units to remain at similar levels in 2014 .

Supply Chain Solutions

Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Operating revenue:
Automotive $ 573,36 563,49: 469,24! 2% 20%
High-tech 332,57 317,48l 333,60: 5 (5)
Retail and CPG 737,10: 711,18 711,03 4 —
Industrial and other 420,82 352,35t 343,65 19 3
Total operating revenug 2,063,85! 1,944,511 1,857,54. 6 5
Subcontracted transportation 319,20! 336,06t 348,49 (5) (4)
Total revenue $ 2,383,06. 2,280,58 2,206,03 4% 3%
Segment EBT $ 129,95 115,19: 104,89¢ 13% 10%
Segment EBT as a % of total revenue 5.5% 5.1% o 48% 40 bps 30 bps
Segment EBT as a % of operating revefiue 6.3% 5.9% 5.6% 40 bps 30 bps
Memo:
Dedicated services total revenue $ 1,350,44 1,295,09. 1,192,96 4% 9%
Dedicated services operating revefiié@ $ 1,211,95 1,137,37 1,027,19 7% 11%
Average fleet 12,00( 11,50( 11,10( 4% 4%
Fuel costs® $ 269,25 258,88: 223,66:¢ 4% 16%

(1) We use operating revenue and EBT as a percentestipg revenue, noAAP financial measures, to evaluate the opergtedormance of our SCS business segment a
a measure of sales activity and profitability. I8Stransportation management arrangements, we iagsaa principal or as an agent in purchasing spartation on behalf
of our customer. We record revenue on a gross hesén acting as principal and we record revenuearet basis when acting as an agent. As a resuilil tevenue may
fluctuate depending on our role in subcontractehsiportation arrangements yet our profitability raéims unchanged as we typically realize minimal pabflity from
subcontracting transportation. We deduct subcorigddransportation expense from SCS total reveowgrtve at SCS operating revenue, and from deditaervices total
revenue to arrive at dedicated services operatiegenue.

(2) Dedicated services operating revenue excludes disticsubcontracted transportation as follov$138 million , $158 million and $166 million for 28, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

(3) Fuel costs are largely a pe-through to customers and therefore have a diregiaich on revenue

Total revenue increased 4% in 2013 to $2.38 biliind increased 3% in 2012 to $2.28 billion . Opegatevenue (revenue excluding
subcontracted transportation) increased 6% in 203%2.06 billion and increased 5% in 2012 to $idkbn .
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The following table summarizes the components efdiiange in revenue on a percentage basis veespsith year:

2013 2012
Total Operating Total Operating
Organic including price and volume 4% 5% 1% 3%
Fuel cost pass-throughs — 1 2 2
Total increase 4% 6% 3% 5%

We expect favorable revenue comparisons to contiexeyear primarily due to actual and planned salgs activity and higher volumes.

2013 versus 2012

SCS EBT increased 13% in 2013 to $130 million duedw business and increased sales volume. Thmgsimprovement also reflects
unusually high medical benefit costs in the priearyand favorable insurance developments in thremuyear.

2012 versus 2011

SCS EBT increased 10% in 2012 to $115 million dusttonger earnings in the automotive sector awgid@ompensation-related
expenses partially offset by higher medical bergefitts and lower results in the consumer packagedsgand high tech sectors.

Central Support Services

Change
2013 2012 2011 2013/2012 2012/2011
(In thousands)

Human resources $ 18,86¢ 19,25¢ 19,41¢ 2)% D)%
Finance 49,70: 51,26: 49,77 (©)] 3
Corporate services and public affairs 14,89¢ 14,13: 12,96¢ 5 9
Information technology 68,41¢ 60,09 61,59 14 (2)
Health and safety 8,07 7,88 7,54( 2 5
Other 50,30: 41,36¢ 51,37¢ 22 (19)

Total CSS 210,26: 194,00: 202,66( 8 4)
Allocation of CSS to business segments (164,769 (151,659 (160,11)) 9 (5)

Unallocated CSS $ 45,49: 42,34¢ 42 54¢ 7% — 0%

2013 versus 2012

Total CSS costs increased 8% in 2013 to $210 mitlice to planned higher investments in informatemhnology initiatives and higher
compensation-related expenses as a result of irmgroempany performance. Unallocated CSS costsasedein 2013 to $45 million due to
higher compensation-related expenses.

2012 versus 2011

Total CSS costs decreased 4% in 2012 to $194 mitliee to lower compensation-related expenses. drséd CSS costs decreased
slightly in 2012 to $42 million due to lower compation-related expenses offset by higher profeati@es and medical benefits.
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FOURTH QUARTER CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Three months ended
December 31, Change

2013 2012 2013/2012

(Dollars in thousands, except
per share amounts)

Total revenue $ 1,617,72 1,583,53 2%
Operating revenue 1,344,770 1,287,57 4
Pre-tax earnings from continuing operations $ 97,62 81,84( 19%
Pre-tax comparable earnings 107,96 97,91' 10
Earnings from continuing operations 65,94« 54,94! 20
Net earnings 64,60 53,84« 20

Earnings per common share — Diluted

Continuing operations $ 1.2¢ 1.07 16%
Comparable earnings $ 1.3¢ 1.2¢ 7
Net earnings $ 1.22 1.0t 16

Revenue

Total revenue increased 2% in the fourth quart&0df3 to $1.62 billion . Operating revenue (reveexduding FMS fuel and alll
subcontracted transportation) increased 4% indbeH quarter of 2013 to $1.34 billion . The followgy table summarizes the components of the
change in revenue on a percentage basis verspsithgear:

Three months ended December 31, 2013

Total Operating
Organic including price and volume 3% 4%
Fuel D —
Total increase 2% 4%

EBT

EBT increased 19% in the fourth quarter of 201398 million . The increase in EBT was primarilywaém by strong performance in both
the FMS and SCS business segments. See “FourttieQ@qrerating Results by Business Segment” foh&rtliscussion of operating results.

Earnings and Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) fronContinuing Operations

Earnings from continuing operations increased 20%66 million and EPS from continuing operations@ased 16% to $1.24 per diluted
common share in the fourth quarter of 2013 . Egmend EPS from continuing operations in the fogrthrter of 2013 included $5 million , or
$0.10 per diluted common share, of non-operatimgioa costs. Earnings and EPS from continuing dioeisin the fourth quarter of 2012
included $5 million , or $0.10 per diluted commdrae, of Superstorm Sandy vehicle-related lossadulfing these items and other nominal
restructuring and other items, comparable earranglsEPS from continuing operations increased 11$&@ fomillion and 7% to $1.35 per diluted
common share, respectively.

We believe that comparable EBT, comparable earrfiogs continuing operations and comparable EPS ftontinuing operations
measures provide useful information to investorsabse they exclude non-operating pension costshwine consider to be those impacted by
financial market performance and outside the ojmerak performance of the business, and other sigmif items that are unrelated to our
ongoing business operations. See Note 26, “Othardtimpacting Comparability,” for information redarg items excluded from the 2013
results.

Net Earnings and EPS

Net earnings increased 20% in the fourth quart@04B to $65 million or $1.22 per diluted commoargh Net earnings in the fourth
quarter were impacted by losses from discontingeataiions of $1 million in both 2013 and 2QIPhe losses from discontinued operations \
due to adverse legal developments and professambhdministrative fees associated with our discoat South American operations.
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FOURTH QUARTER OPERATING RESULTS BY BUSINESS SEGMEN

Three months ended December 31, Change
2013 2012 2013/2012
(In thousands)
Revenue:
Fleet Management Solutions $ 1,135,47 1,117,67 2%
Supply Chain Solutions 598,65 575,25 4
Eliminations (116,40 (109,39) (6)
Total $ 1,617,72 1,583,53 2%
Operating Revenue:
Fleet Management Solutions $ 875,72: 849,45 3%
Supply Chain Solutions 525,88: 489,11: 8
Eliminations (56,899 (50,999 (12)
Total $ 1,344,70! 1,287,57 4%
EBT:
Fleet Management Solutions $ 98,20¢ 86,04« 14%
Supply Chain Solutions 32,94¢ 31,01( 6
Eliminations (9,709 (8,639 (12)
121,45( 108,41 12
Unallocated Central Support Services (13,48 (20,500 (28)
Non-operating pension costs (8,952 (7,859 (14)
Restructuring and other charges, net and othesitem (1,390 (8,219 NM
Earnings from continuing operations before income$ $ 97,62" 81,84( 19%

Fleet Management Solutions

Total revenue increased 2% to $1.14 billion inftheth quarter of 2013 . Operating revenue (revesxgduding fuel) increased 3% in the
fourth quarter of 2013 to $876 milliarThe following table summarizes the componenthefchange in revenue on a percentage basis ‘e
prior year.

Three months ended December 31, 2013

Total Operating
Organic including price and volume 3% 3%
FMS fuel (@B —
Total increase 2% 3%

Fuel services revenue decreased 3% in the fougthequof 2013 due to lower fuel prices passed fiindo customers. Full service lease
revenue increased 3% in the fourth quarter of Z&riBarily reflecting higher prices on replacemeehicles. The higher pricing on replacement
vehicles was driven by increased costs on new ertgthnology. The quarter-end lease fleet grew, b§@vehicles sequentially versus last
quarter, reflecting stronger than expected saltgitgc Commercial rental revenue increased 6%himfourth quarter of 201i&flecting increase
global rental pricing and increased demand.

FMS EBT increased 14% in the fourth quarter of 2@1898 million primarily due to improved used vehisales results, strong
commercial rental performance and better full seréease results partially offset by higher comp#os-related expenses. Used vehicle sales
results improved due to higher sales volumes atreé#@sed pricing. The improvement in commercialalentis driven by higher pricing and
increased demand in the U.S. Rental power flektation increased to 78.9% for the fourth quadie2013 from 78.2% in the year-earlier
period. Full service lease results improved prityatie to lower depreciation from changes in thredweal value policy, as well as higher prices
on lease vehicles.
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Supply Chain Solutions

Total revenue increased 4% in the fourth quart@0df3 to $599 million . Operating revenue (reveexeuding subcontracted
transportation) increased 8% in the fourth quante&2013 to $526 million . The following table sumrizas the components of the change in
revenue on a percentage basis versus the priar year

Three months ended December 31, 2013

Total Operating
Organic including price and volume 6% 8%
Subcontracted transportation (D) —
Foreign exchange (@B —
Total increase 4% 8%

SCS EBT increased 6% in the fourth quarter of 201$33 million due to new business and increaskss selume. The earnings
improvement was partially offset by $1 million iogts incurred for legal claims.

Central Support Services

Total CSS costs increased 14% in the fourth quaft2013 to $56 million primarily due to planned@stments in information technology
initiatives. Unallocated CSS costs increased 28%arfourth quarter of 2013 to $13 million primgridue to higher compensation-related
expenses and increased spending on public affairs.
FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

Cash Flows

The following is a summary of our cash flows fropeaating, financing and investing activities froontinuing operations:

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)

Net cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 1,223,08: 1,134,12. 1,041,95
Financing activities 393,63! 333,80! 504,20:
Investing activities (1,621,65) (1,504,27) (1,657,17)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 5,55¢ 1,344 3,21¢
Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ 621 (35,000 (107,799

Cash provided by operating activities from contiguoperations increased to $1.22 billion in 201@pared with $1.13 billion in 2012
reflecting reduced working capital needs and higlaenings. The reduced working capital needs wemeapily driven by lower payments to
vendors within trade accounts payable. Cash pravigefinancing activities increased to $394 millior2013 from $334 million in 2012 as a
result of higher stock issuances. Cash used irstimgeactivities increased to $1.62 billion in 2@i8npared with $1.50 billion in 2012 primarily
due to proceeds from a sale-leaseback transaaiopleted in 2012.

Cash provided by operating activities from contiguoperations increased to $1.13 billion in 2012 pared with $1.04 billion in 2011
because of higher earnings. Cash provided by fingractivities decreased to $334 million in 201@1ir$504 million in 2011 due to lower
borrowing needs to fund acquisitions and capitahsiing. Cash used in investing activities decre&s&d.50 billion in 2012 compared with
$1.66 billion in 2011 primarily due to lower acqtign-related spending partially offset by highehicle capital spending.

Our principal sources of operating liquidity aresltdrom operations and proceeds from the saleveige earning equipment. We refer to
the sum of operating cash flows, proceeds frons#bes of revenue earning equipment and operatiopgeply and equipment, collections on



direct finance leases, sale and leaseback of revesuning equipment and other cash inflows asl“tatsh generated.” We refer to the net
amount of cash generated from operating and imgesiitivities (excluding changes in restricted casth acquisitions) as “free cash flow.”
Although total cash generated and free cash fl@nan-GAAP financial measures, we consider thebetomportant measures of comparative
operating performance. We also believe total castegted to be an important measure of total cdkdwis generated from our ongoing busir
activities. We believe free cash flow provides istees with an important perspective on the cashiabla for debt service, acquisitions and for
shareholders after making capital investments redub support ongoing business operations. Ogulzlon of free cash flow may be different
from the calculation used by other companies aacetore comparability may be limited.

The following table shows the sources of our fraghcflow computation:

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,223,08. 1,134,12. 1,041,95
Sales of revenue earning equipment 445,58¢ 405,44( 290,33t
Sales of operating property and equipment 6,78 7,35( 9,90¢
Collections on direct finance leases 70,67 71,89 62,22:
Sale and leaseback of revenue earning equipment — 130,18 37,39t
Insurance recoveries 8,17: — —

Total cash generated 1,754,30. 1,748,99! 1,441,811
Purchases of property and revenue earning equipment (2,140,46) (2,133,23) (1,698,58)

Free cash flow $ (386,16)) (384,24 (256,77)

Free cash flow decreased slightly to negative $88i&n in 2013 compared with negative $384 million2012 as the impacts of higher
cash flows from operations in 2013 were offset fiycpeds from the sale-leaseback transaction coadpiet2012. Free cash flow decreased to
negative $384 million in 2012 compared with nega®257 million in 2011 primarily due to higher velki capital spending partially offset by
higher proceeds from sale (and lease-back) of tevearning equipment. We expect free cash flovdiizo improve to negative $300 million .

Capital expenditures are generally used to purctegnue earning equipment (trucks, tractors aaitts) within our FMS segment.
These expenditures primarily support the full sssvease and the commercial rental product links.l@vel of capital required to support the
service lease product line varies directly with ¢hstomer contract signings for replacement vebiated growth. These contracts are long-term
agreements that result in predictable cash flope#jly over a three to seven year term for trumkd tractors and ten years for trailers. The
commercial rental product line utilizes capital foe purchase of vehicles to replenish and expaadléet available for shorter-term use by
contractual or occasional customers. Operatingestp@nd equipment expenditures primarily relatEMS and SCS spending on items such as
vehicle maintenance facilities and equipment, caempand telecommunications equipment, investmentsdhnologies, and warehouse facili
and equipment.
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The following is a summary of capital expenditures:

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)
Revenue earning equipment:

Full service lease $ 1,823,322 1,548,311 1,067,02!
Commercial rental 275,02 542,30: 622,18:
2,098,34. 2,090,61! 1,689,201

Operating property and equipment 85,86¢ 70,14 70,67
Total capital expenditurés 2,184,20 2,160,76: 1,759,87
Changes in accounts payable related to purchaseseariue earning equipme (43,74Y (27,529 (61,290
Cash paid for purchases of property and revenugrggequipment $ 2,140,46. 2,133,23 1,698,58

(1) Nor-cash additions exclude approximately $6 milliéki,million and $2 million in 2013, 2012 and 20Xrkspectively, in assets held under capital leassslting from the
extension of existing operating leases and otheitas. Capital expenditures also exclude non-cadtiitions of approximately $20 million in 2012 ab@i7 million in 2011
in assets held under capital leases resulting ftbenEuroway acquisition in 2012 and a sale-leas&lieensaction in 2011.

Capital expenditures (accrual basis) increasedal$2118 billion in 2013 reflecting investments wdfifl contractual sales made to
customers renewing and growing their full serviezske fleets with us. Capital expenditures (acdrasis) increased 23% to $2.16 billion in 2012
reflecting higher lease spending partially offsgtdwer commercial rental spending. We expect edpitpenditures to remain at $2.2 billion in
2014 , reflecting a reduction in full service leapending offset by increased investments in tinengercial rental fleet. We expect to fund 2014
capital expenditures with both internally generdteds and additional debt financing.

Working Capital

2013 2012

(In thousands)
Current assets $ 1,062,49. $ 1,040,23
Current liabilities 1,231,13 1,272,66!
Working capital $ (168,640 $ (232,42)

Our net working capital (current assets less ctifiehbilities) was negative $169 million at DecemBé&, 2013 compared with negative
$232 million at December 31, 2012 . The improveniemet working capital was primarily due to higlietys payable outstanding. Our global
revolving credit facility is used primarily to finae working capital needs. See "Financing and (fhading Transactions" for further discuss
on the adequacy of our funding sources to meebperating, investing and financing needs.

Financing and Other Funding Transactions

We utilize external capital primarily to supportrkimg capital needs and growth in our asset-basedugt lines. The variety of financing
alternatives typically available to fund our cabiteeds include commercial paper, long-term andiumederm public and private debt, asset-
backed securities, bank term loans, leasing arraagts and bank credit facilities. Our principal m&s of financing are issuances of comme
paper and medium-term notes.

Our ability to access unsecured debt in the capitakets is linked to both our short-term and léeign debt ratings. These ratings are
intended to provide guidance to fixed income ineesstn determining the credit risk associated \giinticular Ryder securities based on current
information obtained by the rating agencies fronouom other sources. Lower ratings generallyltaa higher borrowing costs as well as
reduced access to unsecured capital markets. Agtada of our short-term debt ratings to a lowervieuld impair our ability to issue
commercial paper. As a result, we would have tp oel alternative funding sources. A downgrade ofdabt ratings would not affect our ability
to borrow amounts under our revolving credit fagilescribed below, assuming ongoing complianch thié terms and conditions of the credit
facility.
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Our debt ratings and rating outlooks at DecembgePB13 were as follows:

Short-term Long-term
Rating Outlook Rating Outlook
Moody’s Investors Service P2 Stable Baal Stable
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services A2 Stable BBB Stable
Fitch Ratings F2 Stable A- Stable

Cash and equivalents totaled $62 million as of Demr 31, 2013, which is available to meet our neagproximately $20 million was
held outside the U.S. as of December 31, 2013saddilable to fund operations and other growthasf-U.S. subsidiaries. Should Ryder
determine to repatriate cash and equivalents hekide the U.S., we may be subject to addition8l. thcome taxes and foreign withholding
taxes. However, our intent is to permanently resttieese foreign amounts outside the U.S. and et plans do not demonstrate a need to
repatriate these foreign amounts to fund our Up8rations.

We believe that our operating cash flows, toget¥itr our access to commercial paper markets aret @tvailable debt financing, will be
adequate to meet our operating, investing and ¢ingmeeds in the foreseeable future. Howevergthan be no assurance that unanticipated
volatility and disruption in commercial paper maseould not impair our ability to access thesekatsr on terms commercially acceptable t
or at all. If we cease to have access to commeuejadr and other sources of unsecured borrowingsyauld meet our liquidity needs by
drawing upon contractually committed lending agreets as described below and/or by seeking otheirigrsources.

At December 31, 2013, we had the following amoantsilable to fund operations under the followiagilities:

(In millions)
Global revolving credit facility $402
Trade receivables program 175

We maintain a $900 million global revolving crefditility with a syndicate of twelve lending instiions led by Bank of America N.A.,
Bank of TokyoMitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., BNP Paribas, Mizuho CorporBank, Ltd., Royal Bank of Canada, Royal Bank adttmd Plc, U.S. Ban
National Association and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. @Qetober 18, 2013, the maturity date of the globablving credit facility was extende
from June 2016 to October 2018. The global facitysed primarily to finance working capital. Irder to maintain availability of funding, we
must maintain a ratio of debt to consolidated natthy of less than or equal to 300% . Net worthdefined in the credit facility, represents
shareholders' equity excluding any accumulatedraitvaprehensive income or loss associated withpeosion and other postretirement plans.
The ratio at December 31, 2013 was 177% .

We also have a $175 million trade receivables msetand sale program, pursuant to which we ultisnaél certain ownership interests
in certain of our domestic trade accounts receesébl receivables conduit or committed purcha$®esuse this program to provide additional
liquidity to fund our operations, particularly whérs cost effective to do so. The program corgairovisions restricting its availability in the
event of a material adverse change to our busosstions or the collectibility of the collateradd receivables. If no event occurs which ca
early termination, the 364-day program will expireOctober 24, 2014.

On February 6, 2013, Ryder filed an automatic stegjfstration statement on Form S-3 with the SHE iegistration is for an
indeterminate number of securities and is effediivehree years. Under this universal shelf regtgin statement, we have the capacity to offer
and sell from time to time various types of sedesitincluding common stock, preferred stock arfat decurities, subject to market demand and
ratings status.

Refer to Note 16, “Debt,” in the Notes to Consdi&thFinancial Statements for further discussiommaddahe global revolving credit
facility, the trade receivables program, the isseasf medium-term notes under this shelf regisirasitatement and debt maturities.
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The following table shows the movements in our dethance:

2013 2012
(In thousands)

Debt balance at January 1 $ 3,820,79i 3,382,14!

Cash-related changes in debt:
Net change in commercial paper borrowings 146,38: (64,75
Proceeds from issuance of medium-term notes 549,03t 698,63!
Proceeds from issuance of other debt instruments 7,95: 47,14:
Retirement of medium-term notes and debentures (250,000 (214,000
Other debt repaid, including capital lease oblmyadi (82,629 (69,93)
370,74 397,08

Non-cash changes in debt:

Fair market value of debt and capital leases assumecquisition — 20,30¢
Fair market value adjustment on notes subject dging (8,559 (5,119
Addition of capital lease obligations 5,69¢ 74C
Changes in foreign currency exchange rates and ontrecash items 73€ 25,63:
Total changes in debt 368,62 438,65:
Debt balance at December 31 $ 4,189,42! 3,820,79i

In accordance with our funding philosophy, we afteto match the aggregate average remaining répriiée of our debt with the
aggregate average remaining re-pricing life ofasgets. We utilize both fixed-rate and variable-tabt to achieve this match and generally
target a mix of 25% - 45% variable-rate debt asragntage of total debt outstanding. The variaslejportion of our total obligations (including
notional value of swap agreements) was 27% and@32&cember 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Ryder’s leverage ratios and a reconciliation ofbatance sheet debt to total obligations were dsvist

% %
2013 of Equity 2012 of Equity
(Dollars in thousands)
On-balance sheet debt $  4,189,42 221% $ 3,820,791 260%
Off-balance sheet debt — PV of minimum lease paymand guaranteed
residual values under operating leases for vehi¢les 94,51¢ 147,98
Total obligations $  4,283,94 226% $  3,968,78 270%

(1) Present value (PV) does not reflect payments wédimirequired to make if we terminated the reldésbes prior to the scheduled expiration da

On-balance sheet debt to equity consists of balsineet debt divided by total equity. Total obligati to equity represents balance sheet
debt plus the present value of minimum lease pajsreend guaranteed residual values under operatisgs for vehicles, discounted based on
our incremental borrowing rate at lease inceptidindivided by total equity. Although total obligams is a non-GAAP financial measure, we
believe that total obligations is useful as it pd@s a more complete analysis of our existing fom@robligations and helps better assess our
overall leverage position. The decrease in ourrbgyeratios in 2013 was due to an increase inquityefrom net earnings and pension actuarial
gains partially offset by increased obligation$uind capital expenditures.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Sale and leaseback transactioRefer to Note 15, “Leases,” in the Notes to Comksdéd Financial Statements for a discussion ofal&-
leaseback transactions.

GuaranteesRefer to Note 19, “Guaranteed;’the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementa fdiscussion of our agreements invoh
guarantees.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments
As part of our ongoing operations, we enter intarggements that obligate us to make future paymerdsr contracts such as debt

agreements, lease agreements and unconditiondigagrobligations. The following table summarizeseogpected future contractual cash
obligations and commitments at December 31, 2013 :

2014 2015-2016 2017-2018 Thereafter Total
(In thousands)

Debt $ 251,31! 1,585,29 1,889,91! 415,81( 4,142,34.
Capital lease obligations 8,12¢ 13,05: 12,76: 4,97¢ 38,91:
Total debt, including capital leasedl) 259,43t 1,598,35! 1,902,68; 420,78 4,181,25.
Interest on debt(2) 123,50: 181,90: 66,71( 76,30( 448,41t
Operating lease<3) 83,84« 107,31 54,00¢ 33,47: 278,64
Purchase obligationd4) 464,30t 27,75¢ 5,70: 521 498,28t
Total contractual cash obligations 671,65¢ 316,97 126,42: 110,29: 1,225,341
Insurance obligations (primarily self-insurance) 125,83! 104,65! 41,96 40,07¢ 312,53!
Other long-term liabilities (5). (6). (7) 4,16: 4,225 3,90¢ 50,65" 62,95¢
Total $ 1,061,091 2,024,20! 2,074,97! 621,81: 5,782,09:

)
@
®

4

®)
(6)

@)

Net of unamortized discount and excludes the faiket value adjustment on notes subject to hed

Total debt matures at various dates through figeslr 2025 and bears interest principally at fixediers. Interest on variable-rate debt is calculabeded on the applicable
rate at December 31, 2013 . Amounts are based istirexdebt obligations, including capital leasesd do not consider potential refinancing of expiridebt obligations.
Represents future lease payments associated witbleg, equipment and properties under operatirgés. Amounts are based upon the general assuntpéibthe lease
asset will remain on lease for the length of tirpecified by the respective lease agreements. Motéfas been given to renewals, cancellations,igent rentals or future
rate changes.

The majority of our purchase obligations are payyasi-go transactions made in the ordinary coursbuginess. Purchase obligations include agreentenpsirchase goods
or services that are legally binding and that speail significant terms, including: fixed or minimm quantities to be purchased; fixed minimum oralde price provisions;
and the approximate timing of the transaction. Tst significant item included in the above tabie purchase obligations related to vehicles. Pusgharders made in the
ordinary course of business that are cancelableex@luded from the above table. Any amounts fochvive are liable under purchase orders for good®ieed are reflected
in our Consolidated Balance Sheets as “Accountapby/ and “Accrued expenses and other current ligigis” and are excluded from the above table.

Represents other lo-term liability amounts reflected in our ConsoliddtBalance Sheets that have known payment str@dmsnost significant items included were asset
retirement obligations and deferred compensatioligakions.

The amounts exclude our estimated pension conimitsit For 2014 , our pension contributions, inchugliour minimum funding requirements as set fortiERYSA and
international regulatory bodies, are expected tdb& million . Our minimum funding requirementeaf014 are dependent on several factors. Howewverestimate that the
undiscounted required global contributions over tiext five years are approximately $473 millioneftax) (assuming expected long-term rate of reteaiized and other
assumptions remain unchanged). We also have pagrdeatunder our other postretirement benefit (OPEBNSs. These plans are not required to be fundeatiivance, but
are pay-as-you-go. See Note 24,“Employee Benedit$}1 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stagets for further discussion.

The amounts exclude $63 million of liabilities asated with uncertain tax positions as we are ueablreasonably estimate the ultimate amount oingnof settlement. See
Note 14 “Income Taxes,” in the Notes to Consolidated FinahStatements for further discussion.
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Pension Information

In past years, we made amendments to defined beetfement plans which froze the retirement biaébr non-grandfathered and
certain non-union employees in the U.S., Canadatantinited Kingdom. As a result of these amendmemin-grandfathered plan participants
ceased accruing benefits under the plan as oepective amendment effective date and began negein enhanced benefit under a defined
contribution plan. All retirement benefits earnedod the amendment effective date were fully prestbiand will be paid in accordance with the
plan and legal requirements. There was no matemjzdct to our financial condition and operatingutessfrom the plan amendments.

Due to the underfunded status of our defined bepkfns, we had an accumulated net pension edfitsge (after-tax) of $474 million and
$645 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respey. The lower equity charge in 2013 reflects thpact of a higher discount rate and
higher than expected asset returns. The total estseen for our U.S. qualified pension plan (ounary plan) was 13% in 2013 .

The funded status of our pension plans is depengent many factors, including returns on investeskts and the level of certain market
interest rates. We review pension assumptions adgudnd we may from time to time make voluntarpteibutions to our pension plans, which
exceed the amounts required by statute. During 2@dtal global pension contributions were $96 imillcompared with $81 million in 2012 .
We estimate 2014 required pension contributionkheil$75 million . The projected present valuesifreated global pension contributions that
would be required over the next 5 years totals@pprately $436 million (pre-tax). Changes in insreates and the market value of the
securities held by the plans could materially cleapgsitively or negatively, the funded statushef plans and affect the level of pension exp
and required contributions in future years. Thamdte amount of contributions is also dependenttpe requirements of applicable laws and
regulations. See Note 24, “Employee Benefit Plaimsthe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemfamtadditional information.

Pension expense totaled $48 million in 2013 comparés49 million in 2012 . The decrease in pensigpense primarily reflects higher
than expected pension asset returns in 2012 aswsvebntributions. The decrease was partially bffgea lower discount rate in 2013 compared
to 2012 and 2013 pension settlement charges ofili8rm Additionally, in the fourth quarter of 281, we determined certain census data us
actuarially determine the value of our pension Beobligations for the years 1998 to 2012 was taate. We recorded a one-time, non-cash
charge of $4 million to adjust our pension benefiigation. We recorded the cumulative adjustmeitiw "Selling, general and administrative
expenses" in our Consolidated Statement of Earrdedhe impact of revising our pension benefitgailbn was not material to our consolidated
financial statements in any individual prior periatid the cumulative amount is not material to 2@EBilts. We expect 2014 pension expense to
decrease approximately $16 million primarily be@aka higher than expected actual return on ptapta in 2013 , as well as the 2013 non-
recurring pension settlement charges and the ameiension benefit obligation adjustment. Our 20ddsion expense estimates are subject to
change based upon the completion of the actuaréysis for all pension plans. See the sectioaditCritical Accounting Estimates — Pension
Plans” for further discussion on pension accoungisigmates.

We participate in ten U.S. mukimployer pension (MEP) plans that provide defineddfits to employees covered by collective bargai
agreements. At December 31, 2013 , approximaté8y0lemployees (approximately 48ftotal employees) participated in these MEP plaihe
annual net pension cost of the MEP plans is equidle annual contribution determined in accordanritie the provisions of negotiated labor
contracts. Our current annualized MEP plan contidiog total approximately $8 million . Pursuanttarent U.S. pension laws, if any MEP
plans fail to meet certain minimum funding thresisolwe could be required to make additional MER plantributions, until the respective lat
agreement expires, of up to 10% of current cortedeequirements. Several factors could cause M&msmot to meet these minimum funding
thresholds, including unfavorable investment penfance, changes in participant demographics, amddred benefits to participants. The plan
administrators and trustees of the MEP plans peouglwith the annual funding notice as requirethty This notice sets forth the funded status
of the plan as of the beginning of the prior yeatrdoes not provide any company-specific infornratio

Employers participating in MEP plans can elect ithdraw from the plans, contingent upon certairunsgnents, and be subject to a
withdrawal obligation based on, among other factitrs MEP plarg unfunded vested benefits. U.S. pension regukafioovide that an employ
can fund its withdrawal obligation in a lump sumowser a time period of up to 20 years based onigue\contribution rates. Based on the most
recently available plan information, obtained irL2Q we estimate our pre-tax contingent MEP plathdvawal obligation to be approximately
$36 million . During 2013, we recorded estimatedgien settlement charges of $3 million for the éxam a U.S. multi-employer pension plan
and a restructured agreement with another U.Si+4emlployer pension plan. These charges were redaxithin "Selling, general, and
administrative expenses" in our Consolidated Statgraf Earnings and are included in the Union-adstened plans expense. See Note 24,
“Employee Benefit Plans,” in the Notes to ConsdldbFinancial Statements for additional information
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Share Repurchase Programs and Cash Dividends

Refer to Note 20, “Share Repurchase Prograimgfie Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemearts fdiscussion on our share repurct
programs.

Cash dividend payments to shareholders of comnumk stere $68 million in 2013, $61 million in 2012nd $58 million in 2011 During
2013, we increased our annual dividend 10% to@bfte3 share of common stock.

Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are expos#ddimations in interest rates, foreign currengghenge rates and fuel prices. We
manage these exposures in several ways, incluidingrtain circumstances, the use of a varietyeoivdtive financial instruments when deemed
prudent. We do not enter into leveraged derivdiivencial transactions or use derivative finangigtruments for trading purposes.

Exposure to market risk for changes in interegtsraiists for our debt obligations. Our interest risk management program objectives
are to limit the impact of interest rate changegamings and cash flows and to lower overall bwimg costs. A hypothetical 100 basis point
change in short-term market interest rates woulthgh annual pre-tax earnings by $10 million . Waaga our exposure to interest rate risk
primarily through the proportion of fixed-rate avafriablerate debt we hold in the total debt portfolio. Frime to time, we also use interest |
swap and cap agreements to manage our fixed-reteaaiable-rate exposure and to better match thecing of debt instruments to that of our
portfolio of assets. See Note 18, “Derivatives,the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementéuftiher discussion on interest rate swap
agreements.

At December 31, 2013, we had $3.01 billion of fixate debt outstanding (excluding capital leagéi) a weighted-average interest rate
of 4.0% and a fair value of $3.13 billion . A hyhpetical 10% decrease or increase in the Decemb&03B market interest rates would impact
the fair value of our fixed-rate debt by approxietai$27 million at December 31, 2013 . Changesénrelative sensitivity of the fair value of
our financial instrument portfolio for these thetaral changes in the level of interest rates aimaily driven by changes in our debt maturities,
interest rate profile and amount.

At December 31, 2013, we had $1.14 billion of @hke-rate debt, including the impact of interet swaps, which effectively changed
$400 million of fixed-rate debt instruments to LIB&ased floating-rate debt. Changes in the fauevalf the interest rate swaps were offset by
changes in the fair value of the debt instrumentkreo net gain or loss was recognized in earnifigs.fair value of our interest rate swap
agreements at December 31, 2013 was recordedetsaaget totaling $8 million . The fair value of eariable-rate debt at December 31, 2013
was $1.15 billion . A hypothetical 10% increasenarket interest rates would have impacted 2013gcearnings from continuing operations
approximately $1 million .

We are also subject to interest rate risk with @espo our pension and postretirement benefit akibgs, as changes in interest rates will
effectively increase or decrease our liabilitiesoggated with these benefit plans, which also tesnlchanges to the amount of pension and
postretirement benefit expense recognized eachderi

Exposure to market risk for changes in foreignency exchange rates relates primarily to our foreigerations’ buying, selling and
financing in currencies other than local curreneied to the carrying value of net investments ieifn subsidiaries. The majority of our
transactions are denominated in U.S. dollars. Tieipal foreign currency exchange rate risks taclhwe are exposed include the Canadian
dollar, British pound sterling and Mexican peso. kvenage our exposure to foreign currency exchaatgerisk related to our foreign operations
buying, selling and financing in currencies otheart local currencies by naturally offsetting asa@ts liabilities not denominated in local
currencies to the extent possible. A hypotheticéfloum 10% strengthening in the value of the dotiative to all the currencies in which our
transactions are denominated would result in aedeerto pre-tax earnings from continuing operatifrzgproximately $8 million . We also use
foreign currency option contracts and forward agrests from time to time to hedge foreign curremapsactional exposure. We generally do
not hedge the translation exposure related to euinmestment in foreign subsidiaries, since weehaw near-term intent to repatriate funds from
such subsidiaries.

Exposure to market risk for fluctuations in fueices relates to a small portion of our service @mts for which the cost of fuel is integral
to service delivery and the service contract da¢$ave a mechanism to adjust for increases indiets. At December 31, 2013 , we also had
various fuel purchase arrangements in place torertlivery of fuel at market rates in the evenfuel shortages. We are exposed to fluctua
in fuel prices in these arrangements since nottleecfrrangements fix the price of fuel to be puselda Increases and decreases in the price of
fuel are generally passed on to our customers lfidchwwe realize minimal changes in profitabilityrohg periods of steady market fuel prices.
However, profitability may be positively or negaly impacted by sudden increases or decreasesrketriael prices during a short period of
time as customer pricing for fuel services is dghbd based on market fuel costs. We believe xpesire to fuel price fluctuations would not
materially impact our results of operations, cdstv$ or financial position.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Refer to Note 25, “Environmental Matters,” in thetls to Consolidated Financial Statements for eudison surrounding environmental
matters.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimatesasslmptions. Our significant
accounting policies are described in the NotesansGlidated Financial Statements. Certain of tipedieies require the application of subjective
or complex judgments, often as a result of the needake estimates about the effect of mattersateainherently uncertain. These estimates
assumptions are based on historical experiencegelsan the business environment and other fatiatsve believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Different estimates that could Heeen applied in the current period or changesdratitounting estimates that are reasonably
likely can result in a material impact on our fig&h condition and operating results in the curiemd future periods. We review the
development, selection and disclosure of thesieakihccounting estimates with Ryder’s Audit Contegton an annual basis.

The following discussion, which should be readanjanction with the descriptions in the Notes t;m€alidated Financial Statements, is
furnished for additional insight into certain acoting estimates that we consider to be critical.

Depreciation and Residual Value Guaranté&® periodically review and adjust the residual ealand useful lives of revenue earning
equipment of our FMS business segment as desdribiédte 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Padis — Revenue Earning Equipment,
Operating Property and Equipment, and Depreciatio’ “Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciesResidual Value Guarantees and
Deferred Gains,” in the Notes to Consolidated ForStatements. Reductions in residual values the price at which we ultimately expect to
dispose of revenue earning equipment) or usefeslivill result in an increase in depreciation exsgeover the life of the equipment. Based on
the mix of revenue earning equipment at Decembg@13 , a 10% decrease in expected vehicle rdsidiises would increase depreciation
expense in 2014 by approximately $116 million . M‘dew residual values and useful lives of revesaming equipment on an annual basis or
more often if deemed necessary for specific grafmsir revenue earning equipment. Reviews are padd based on vehicle class, generally
subcategories of trucks, tractors and trailers bight and usage. Our annual review is establishdanong-term view considering historical
market price changes, current and expected futar&ehprice trends, expected life of vehicles ideld in the fleet and extent of alternative uses
for leased vehicles (e.g., rental fleet, and SG8iegtions). As a result, future depreciation exgeerates are subject to change based upon
changes in these factors. While we believe that#ng/ing values and estimated sales proceedev¥enue earning equipment are appropriate,
there can be no assurance that deterioration imoaciz conditions or adverse changes to expectatibhgure sales proceeds will not occur,
resulting in lower gains or losses on sales.

At the end of each year, we complete our annudtweuf the residual values and useful lives of rexeearning equipment. Based on the
results of our analysis, we adjust the residualesmlnd useful lives of certain classes of ourmegearning equipment effective January 1. The
following are the increases to pre-tax earnings gesult of our residual value reviews:

2014 2013 2012
$25 million $30 million $18 million

Factors that could cause actual results to mateddfer from the estimated results include siggaht changes in the used equipment
market brought on by unforeseen changes in techpdtmovations and any resulting changes in théulees of used equipment.

Depreciation expense was $957 million , $940 milkmd $872 million in 2013 , 2012 and 2QX&spectively. Depreciation expense rel
primarily to FMS revenue earning equipment. Deg@ataon expense increased 2% in 2013 , driven bydrighierage net vehicle investments,
partially offset by $30 million from changes inidigal values. Depreciation expense increased 82012 driven by higher average net vehicle
investments and higher writedowns of $10 millionvemicles held for sale. The increase was part@fset by $18 million from changes in
residual values.
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Pension PlansWe apply actuarial methods to determine the anmeigperiodic pension expense and pension plarditiabion an annual
basis, or on an interim basis if there is an evemqairing remeasurement. Each December, we revitwakbexperience compared with the more
significant assumptions used and make adjustmergrtassumptions, if warranted. In determiningaumual estimate of periodic pension cost,
we are required to make an evaluation of critiaatdrs such as discount rate, expected long-teberofaeturn, expected increase in
compensation levels, retirement rate and mortdlitgcount rates are based upon a duration analfsispected benefit payments and the
equivalent average yield for high quality corpor@ed income investments as of our December 3Lialnmeasurement date. In order to pro
a more accurate estimate of the discount rateaete® our plan, we use models that match projemteefits payments of our primary U.S. plan
to coupons and maturities from a hypothetical pticfof high quality corporate bonds. Long-termeraf return assumptions are based on
actuarial review of our asset allocation strategy lang-term expected asset returns. Investmenagenent and other fees paid using plan
assets are factored into the determination of ass@h assumptions.

As part of our strategy to manage future pensiatscand net funded status volatility, we reguladgess our pension investment strategy.
In the fourth quarter of 2012 , we modified our Up8nsion investment policy and strategy to redbeesffects of future volatility on the fair
value of our pension assets relative to our pergbilities as a result of an asset-liability sfutnder the new strategy, we have increased our
allocation of high quality, longer-term fixed incersecurities and reduced our allocation of equigs$tments as the funded status of the plan
improves. In 2013 , we adjusted our long-term etgubcate of return assumption for our primary Ul&n down to 6.80% from 7.05% based on
the factors reviewed. The composition of our pemsissets was 53% equity securities and alternasisets and 47% debt securities and other
investments. We continually evaluate our mix ofastiments between equity and fixed income secustiesadjust the composition of our
pension assets when appropriate. For 2014, ourctegbeate of return assumption for the fixed incqrogion of our portfolio will mirror the
discount rate in order to align the expected returfixed income securities with the movement i pension liability under our new strategy.

Accounting guidance applicable to pension plansdmé require immediate recognition of the effexta deviation between these
assumptions and actual experience or the revidian estimate. This approach allows the favorabteunfavorable effects that fall within an
acceptable range to be netted and recorded witkdaudmulated other comprehensive loss.” We had dgractuarial loss of $745 million at the
end of 2013 compared with a loss of $1.01 billiothe end of 2012 . The decrease in the net aatuass in 2013 resulted primarily from a
higher discount rate and higher than expected perasiset returns. To the extent the amount of aatggins and losses exceed 10% of the
larger of the benefit obligation or plan assetshsamount is amortized over the average remaiifi@g@xpectancy of active participants or the
remaining life expectancy of inactive participaifitall or almost all of a plan’s participants amactive. The amount of the actuarial loss subject
to amortization in 2014 and future years will b&%5nillion . We expect to recognize approximatedp $nillion of the net actuarial loss as a
component of pension expense in 2014 . The effegears beyond 2014 will depend substantially uperactual experience of our plans.

Disclosure of the significant assumptions usedriiviag at the 2013 net pension expense is predantBlote 24, “Employee Benefit
Plans,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financialetegnts. A sensitivity analysis of 2013 net pensipense to changes in key underlying
assumptions for our primary plan, the U.S. pengian, is presented below.

Effect on
Impact on 2013 Net December 31, 2013

Assumed Rate Change Pension Expense Projected Benefit Obligation
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 6.8(% +/-0.25 —/+ $3.0 million
Discount rate increase 4.1(% +0.25 —$0.3 million — $9 million
Discount rate decrease 4.1(% -0.25 +$ 0.1 million + $49 million
Actual return on assets 6.8(% +/—0.25 —/+ $0.3 million
Contributions at the beginning of the year + 50 million —$3.4 million
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Self-Insurance Accrual§elf-insurance accruals were $290 million and $21Bon as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respelsti The
majority of our self-insurance relates to vehiddility and workers’ compensation. We use a vgradtstatistical and actuarial methods that are
widely used and accepted in the insurance induistegtimate amounts for claims that have been tegdnut not paid and claims incurred but
reported. In applying these methods and assedsigrésults, we consider such factors as frequandyseverity of claims, claim development
and payment patterns and changes in the natungr &fusiness, among other factors. Such factoraraalyzed for each of our business segm
Our estimates may be impacted by such factorscasdees in the market price for medical servicegradictability of the size of jury awards
and limitations inherent in the estimation proc&sing 2013, 2012, and 2011 , we recorded afiemi¢hin earnings of $5 million , $1
million , and $4 million , respectively, from dewpiments in estimated prior years’ self-insured hesgrves. Based on self-insurance accruals at
December 31, 2013, a 5% adverse change in adtokiia loss estimates would increase operatingegp in 2014 by approximately $13
million .

Goodwill ImpairmentWe assess goodwill for impairment, as describddate 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” in the Nate<onsolidated Financial Statements, on an artvagi$ or more often if deemed necessary.
At December 31, 2013, goodwill totaled $384 millioTo determine whether goodwill impairment indiaca exist, we are required to assess the
fair value of the reporting unit and compare ithe carrying value. A reporting unit is a componafrin operating segment for which discrete
financial information is available and managemegutarly reviews its operating performance. In eaihg goodwill for impairment, we have
the option to first assess qualitative factorsetednine whether further impairment testing is seaey.

Our annual impairment test performed as of Apr2@13 did not result in any impairment of goodwille performed a qualitative test for
all of our reporting units. The qualitative testafves an assessment of changes in fair value #ieckast valuation date, in which business
operations and overall economic factors are corsiti@ith a focus on drivers of fair value. Exampdé$actors we considered included the
results of our most recent impairment tests, imgnoents in our financial performance, a lack of iggmt changes in our competitive
landscape, increases in our stock price as compar@delatively stable carrying value since oushrecent impairment tests and improvements
in macroeconomic conditions since 2012.

After performing the qualitative test, we concludieid more likely than not that fair values areaper than carrying values and no
additional testing was performed. As of December2B13, there have been no events or changesimedtances that would change our
conclusion.

Revenue RecognitioWe recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, the services have been rehtere
customers or delivery has occurred, the pricirfikesd or determinable, and collectibility is reagbly assured. In the normal course of business,
we may act as or use an agent in executing trdosaatith our customers. In these arrangementguwatiate whether we should report revenue
based on the gross amount billed to the customen ¢ine net amount received from the customer pfigments to third parties.

Determining whether revenue should be reported@ssgr net is based on an assessment of whetheneveeting as the principal or the
agent in the transaction and involves judgmentdasethe terms of the arrangement. To the exterdre@cting as the principal in the
transaction, revenue is reported on a gross bEsithe extent we are acting as an agent in thedwion, revenue is reported on a net basis. In
the majority of our arrangements, we are acting psncipal and therefore report revenue on a drass. However, our SCS business segment
engages in some transactions where we act as agehthus record revenue on a net basis. The inopaet earnings is the same whether we
record revenue on a gross or net basis. From titime, the terms and conditions of our transpimnatnanagement arrangements may change,
which could require a change in revenue recognitiom a gross basis to a net basis or vice veraan®-GAAP measure of operating revenue
would not be impacted from this change in revempeiting.
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Income TaxeOur overall tax position is complex and requirefid analysis by management to estimate the eggeeialization of
income tax assets and liabilities.

Tax regulations require items to be included intthereturn at different times than the items aféected in the financial statements. As a
result, the effective tax rate reflected in thafinial statements is different than that repomeithé tax return. Some of these differences are
permanent, such as expenses that are not deduantilthe tax return, and some are timing differensesh as depreciation expense. Timing
differences create deferred tax assets and liekiliDeferred tax assets generally represent itkatsan be used as a tax deduction or credit in
the tax return in future years for which we haveady recorded the tax benefit in the financiaesteents. Deferred tax assets amounted to $647
million and $643 million at December 31, 2013 ald 2, respectively. We record a valuation allowdaiocaleferred tax assets to reduce such
assets to amounts expected to be realized. At DemeBi, 2013 and 2012 , the deferred tax valuatilonvance, principally attributed to foreign
tax loss carryforwards in the SCS business segmeist$34 million and $38 million , respectively.datermining the required level of valuation
allowance, we consider whether it is more likelgrtimot that all or some portion of deferred tavetswill not be realized. This assessment is
based on management’s expectations as to whetlfieiesut taxable income of an appropriate charawtdirbe realized within tax carryback and
carryforward periods. Our assessment involves astisnand assumptions about matters that are irtlyeseicertain, and unanticipated events or
circumstances could cause actual results to difben these estimates. Should we change our estiofide amount of deferred tax assets the
would be able to realize, an adjustment to theatan allowance would result in an increase or el@se to the provision for income taxes in the
period such a change in estimate was made.

We are subject to tax audits in numerous jurisoiigiin the U.S. and around the world. Tax auditthbir very nature are often complex
and can require several years to complete. Indhmal course of business, we are subject to clg#kefrom the Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
and other tax authorities regarding amounts ofdaike. These challenges may alter the timing owaitnaf taxable income or deductions, or the
allocation of income among tax jurisdictions. Astp our calculation of the provision for inconsxes on earnings, we determine whether the
benefits of our tax positions are at least morelyilthan not of being sustained upon audit baseth@technical merits of the tax position. For
positions that are more likely than not of beingtained upon audit, we accrue the largest amoutiedbenefit that is more likely than not of
being sustained in our consolidated financial states. Such accruals require management to makeagss and judgments with respect to the
ultimate outcome of a tax audit. Actual resultsldotary materially from these estimates. We adjosse reserves, including any impact on the
related interest and penalties, in light of chagdacts and circumstances, such as progress afatt.

A number of years may elapse before a particulatemBor which we have established a reserve igedidnd finally resolved. The
number of years with open tax audits varies depgndn the tax jurisdiction. The tax benefit thas baen previously reserved because of a
failure to meet the “more likely than not” recogwit threshold would be recognized in our incomeetagense in the first interim period when
the uncertainty is resolved under any one of tlleviadng conditions: (1) the tax position is “moiikdly than not” to be sustained, (2) the tax
position, amount, and/or timing is ultimately sadtthrough negotiation or litigation, or (3) thatste of limitations for the tax position has
expired. Settlement of any particular issue wowddally require the use of cash. See Note 14, “Irc®axes,” in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for further discussion ofdtagus of tax audits and uncertain tax positions.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Bies — Recent Accounting Pronouncements,” in thiedlto Consolidated Financial
Statements for a discussion of recent accountiogqumcements.

NON-GAAP AND SEGMENT FINANCIAL MEASURES

Non-GAAP Financial Measure$his Annual Report on Form 10-K includes informatextracted from consolidated financial information
but not required by generally accepted accountiimgiples (GAAP) to be presented in the financtataments. Certain of this information are
considered “non-GAAP financial measures” as defimge&EC rules. Specifically, we refer to adjustetim on average capital, operating
revenue, FMS operating revenue, FMS EBT as a %efating revenue, SCS operating revenue, SCS ER®asf operating revenue,
dedicated services operating revenue, total casérgted, free cash flow, total obligations, totaigations to equity, comparable earnings from
continuing operations, comparable earnings petatiicommon share from continuing operations andpegable earnings from continuing
operations before income taxes. As required by &H&3, we provide a reconciliation of each non-GAKRncial measure to the most
comparable GAAP measure and an explanation why gesmant believes that presentation of the non-GAA&htial measure provides useful
information to investors. Non-GAAP financial meassishould be considered in addition to, but nat sgbstitute for or superior to, other
measures of financial performance prepared in decae with GAAP.
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The following table provides a numerical recontitia of earnings from continuing operations befioi@me taxes to comparable earnings
from continuing operations before income taxegteryears ended December 31, 2011 , 2010 and 26i2® was not provided within the
MD&A discussion:

2011 2010 2009

(In thousands)
Earnings from continuing operations before incomes$ $ 279,38 186,30 143,76¢
Restructuring and other charges 3,65¢ — 6,40¢
International asset (gain on sale)/impairment — (94€) 6,67¢
Acquisition transaction costs 2,13¢ 4,097 —
Comparable earnings from continuing operationsfedftcome taxes $ 285,17t 189,45¢ 156,85:

The following table provides a numerical recontidia of earnings from continuing operations anchzgys per diluted common share fr
continuing operations to comparable earnings frontinuing operations and comparable earnings petedicommon share from continuing
operations for the years ended December 31, 20@1Q and 2009 which was not provided within the MDdiscussion:

2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Earnings from continuing operations $ 171,36t 124,60t 90,117
Restructuring and other charges 2,48¢ — 4,17¢
Tax law changes and/or benefits from reserve ralgers 5,35( (20,777 (6,339
International (gain on sale)/impairment — (94€) 6,67¢
Acquisition transaction costs 1,991 4,097 —
Tax benefit from acquisition-related transactiostso (56¢) — —
Comparable earnings from continuing operations $ 180,63! 116,98¢ 94,63(
Earnings per diluted common share from continuipgrations $ 3.31 2.37 1.62
Restructuring and other charges 0.0t — 0.07
Tax law changes/or benefits from reserve reversals 0.1c (0.2)) (0.1))
International (gain on sale)/impairment — (0.02) 0.12
Acquisition transaction costs 0.04 0.0¢ —
Tax benefit from acquisition-related transactiostso $ (0.01) — —
Comparable earnings per diluted common share flamirwing operations $ 3.4¢ 2.2z 1.7¢
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The following table provides a numerical recontitin of EBT from continuing operations, earningsnfr continuing operations and
earnings per diluted common share from continuijpgrations to comparable EBT from continuing operetj comparable earnings from
continuing operations and comparable earnings ihged common share from continuing operationsierthree months ended December 31,
2013 and 2012 which was not provided within the MD@&iscussion:

Continuing Operations

Earnings Before Income Diluted Earnings per
Taxes (EBT) Earnings Share (EPS)

(Dollars in thousands except per share amounts)

Three months ended December 31, 2013

EBT/Earnings/EPS from Continuing Operations $97,62° 65,94« $1.2¢
Non-operating pension costs 8,95 5,30¢ 0.1C
Pension settlement charge 1,562 94¢ 0.01
Restructuring and other recoveries, net 172 (137) —

Comparable $107,96! 72,06: $1.3¢

Three months ended December 31, 2012

EBT/Earnings/EPS from Continuing Operations $81,84( 54,94¢ $1.07
Non-operating pension costs 7,85¢ 4,83¢ 0.0¢
Restructuring and other (recoveries) chargess, n (11 36 —
Superstorm Sandy vehicle-related losses 8,23( 5,117 0.1C

Comparable $97,91° 64,93¢ $1.2¢

The following table provides a numerical recontitia of net cash provided by operating activitie$ree cash flow and to total cash
generated for the years ended December 31, 201209%dwhich was not provided within the MD&A dissimn:

2010 2009
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,028,03. 984,95t
Sales of revenue earning equipment 220,84 211,00:
Sales of operating property and equipment 13,84« 4,63¢
Collections on direct finance leases 61,767 65,24
Other, net 3,17¢ 20¢
Total cash generated 1,327,66! 1,266,04.
Purchases of property and revenue earning equipment (1,070,09) (651,95)
Free cash flow $ 257,57 614,09(
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The following table provides a numerical recontidia of total revenue to operating revenue forytears ended December 31, 2013 , 2012

and 2011 which was not provided within the MD&Adission:

Total revenue

FMS fuel services and SCS subcontracted transportegvenue
Fuel eliminations

Operating revenue

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
$ 6,419,28 6,256,96' 6,050,53.
(1,389,40) (1,420,24) (1,430,96)
240,61! 229,59¢ 194,991
$ 5,270,49. 5,066,32. 4,814,55

The following table provides a numerical recontitia of total revenue to operating revenue forttiree months endddecember 31, 20:

and 2012 which was not provided within the MD&Aalission:

Total revenue

FMS fuel services and SCS subcontracted transportegvenue
Fuel eliminations

Operating revenue

Three months ended
December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
$ 1,617,72! 1,583,53
(332,53) (354,36))
59,51 58,39¢
$ 1,344,770 1,287,57.
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With respect to adjusted return on average capiitalfollowing table provides a numerical recomtitn of net earnings and average total
debt used to calculate return on average sharaisoketguity to adjusted net earnings and adjustedame total capital used to calculate adjusted
return on average capital for the years ended DeeeB1, 2013, 2012, 2011 , 2010 and 2009 whichnea provided within the MD&A
discussion:

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands)
Net earning$A] $ 237,79. 209,97! 169,77 118,17 61,94t
Restructuring and other (recoveries) charges, mt a

other itemg? (159 16,66¢ 5,74¢ 6,22¢ 29,94
Income taxes 125,65: 90,91: 108,42! 60,61( 53,73:
Adjusted net earnings before income taxes 363,29: 317,55¢ 283,95( 185,00! 145,62!
Adjusted interest expen&e 140,10( 143,35: 135,12° 132,77 149,96¢
Adjusted income taxe® (177,26 (166,63!) (156,58.) (123,429 (121,759
Adjusted net earnind8] $ 326,12: 294,27 262,49t 194,35. 173,83!
Average total debt $  3,950,53 3,707,09! 3,078,511 2,512,00! 2,691,56!
Average off-balance sheet debt 131,31t 126,06¢ 77,60¢ 114,21: 141,62¢
Average obligations 4,081,84 3,833,16. 3,156,12. 2,626,21 2,833,19
Average shareholders’ equii§] 1,593,991 1,406,60! 1,428,04: 1,401,68. 1,395,62!
Average adjustments to shareholders’ eqtiity (2,08¢) (2,939 4,16¢ 2,05¢ 15,64
Average adjusted shareholders’ equity 1,591,90: 1,403,67. 1,432,21. 1,403,74 1,411,27.
Average adjusted capitfiD] $ 567375 5,236,83 4,588,33. 4,029,95 4,244 47,

Return on average shareholders’ eq[Aly[C] 14.9% 14.9% 11.9% 8.4% 4.4%

Adjusted return on average capita]/[D] 5.7% 5.6% 5.7% 4.8% 4.1%

(1) For 2013, 2012 and 2011, see Note 4, “Discontinuegtaigons,” Note 5, “Restructuring and Other (Recdes) Charges” and Note 26, “Other ltems Impacting
Comparability,” in the Notes to Consolidated FinaaicStatements; 2010 includes $3 million of restmiing and other charges related to our discontiduperations; 2009
includes $23 million of restructuring and other chyes, of which $17 million related to our discontial operations, and a $7 million impairment chaogean international
asset.

(2) Includes interest on ebalance sheet vehicle obligatiol
(3) Calculated by excluding taxes related to restruictyiand other (recoveries) charges, net and ottems, impacts of tax law changes or reserve rel®esa interest expens
(4) Represents sharehold’ equity adjusted for cumulative effect of accounthgnges and tax benefits in the respective per

52




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (Co ntinued)

Segment Financial Measurekhe following table reconciles FMS segment revelougvenue from external customers for the yeatle@n

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 :

Full service lease revenue
Commercial rental revenue

Full service lease and commercial rental revenue
Intercompany revenue

Full service lease and commercial rental revenom fxternal customers$

FMS services revenue
Intercompany revenue
FMS services revenue from external customers

FMS fuel services revenue
Intercompany revenue
Fuel services revenue from external customers

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

$ 2,177,41 2,102,21: 1,996,27.
789,49t 772,79¢ 722,55
2,966,91! 2,875,01. 2,718,83
(196,889 (179,63Y) (164,95Y)
2,770,021 2,695,371 2,553,87
$ 457,57( 446,13¢ 417,02
(20,96() (19,717 (13,89))
$ 436,61( 426,42 403,13t
$ 1,070,20 1,084,17! 1,082,47.
(240,61Y) (229,59) (194,99()
$ 829,58t 854,57¢ 887,48:
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (Co ntinued)

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Forward-looking statements (within the meaninghef Federal Private Securities Litigation Reform 8c1995) are statements that relate
to expectations, beliefs, projections, future pland strategies, anticipated events or trends coimgematters that are not historical facts. These
statements are often preceded by or include thdsvielieve,” “expect,” “intend,” “estimate,” “ardipate,” “will,” “may,” “could,” “should” or
similar expressions. This Annual Report contaime/érd-looking statements including, but not limited statements regarding:

* our expectations as to anticipated revenue andreys trends specifically, total revenue, opatatevenue and product line revenues,
used vehicle sales inventory and volumes, conteagnues, full service lease, commercial rental@miract maintenance growth,
pricing trends in used vehicle sales and commererghl and new SCS business, improved SCS reteletiels, and higher SCS
volumes;

« the continuing benefits of our maintenance initiesi and a newer fle

« our ability to successfully achieve the operadicgoals that are the basis of our business gtesteincluding driving fleet growth,
delivering a consistent, industry-leading and @ffective maintenance program, optimizing assdization and management, providing
differentiated quality of service and best exeautiteveloping broad-based capabilities, creatiogl@re of innovation, focusing on
continuous improvement and standardization andessfally implementing sales and marketing strategie

« impact of losses from conditional obligations arisfrom guarantee

» number of NLE vehicles in inventory and the size@af commercial rental fle

« estimates of free cash flow and capital expenes for 2014

« the adequacy of our accounting estimates arfves for pension expense, compensatiated expense, depreciation and residual
guarantees, rent expense under operating leaffessseance reserves, goodwill impairment, accogthanges and income taxes;

 our ability to meet our operating, investing dimdncing needs in the foreseeable future thranggrnally generated funds and outside
funding sources;

» our expected level of use of outside fundingrses, anticipated future payments under debt, l@adeurchase agreements, and risk of
losses resulting from counterparty default undelgiy and derivative agreements;

« the anticipated impact of fuel price fluctuatiomsaur operations, cash flows and financial posj

* our expectations as to future pension expendeantributions, as well as the continued effedheffreeze of our pension plans on our
benefit funding requirements;

* our expectations relating to withdrawal lialidg and funding levels of mulémployer plan:

« the status of our unrecognized tax benefits relede U.S. federal, state and foreign tax passt

» our expectations regarding the completion and alimoutcome of certain tax auc

« the ultimate disposition of legal proceedings astihgated environmental liabilitie

* our expectations relating to compliance with negutatory requirements; a

 our expectations regarding the effect of the adopdf a recent accounting pronouncen

These statements, as well as other forward-loogiaggments contained in this Annual Report, aredas our current plans and
expectations and are subject to risks, uncertaiatiel assumptions. We caution readers that cémaiortant factors could cause actual results
and events to differ significantly from those exgzed in any forward-looking statements. For a etalescription of certain of these risk
factors, please see “ltem 1A—Risk Factors” of thimual Report.

The risks included in the Annual Report are notaewdtive. New risk factors emerge from time to temne it is not possible for managem
to predict all such risk factors or to assesstgsaict of such risk factors on our business. Asalteno assurance can be given as to our future
results or achievements. You should not place unelisnce on the forward-looking statements comiginerein, which speak only as of the date
of this Annual Report. We do not intend, or assamg obligation, to update or revise any forwardkiog statements contained in this Annual
Report, whether as a result of new informationyifeitevents or otherwise.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
The information required by ITEM 7A is includedlifREM 7 (page 45) of PART Il of this report.
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MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RYDER SYSTEM, INC.:

Management of Ryder System, Inc., together witlkatssolidated subsidiaries (Ryder), is responddrlestablishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial repor@sgdefined in Rules 13a- 15(f) and 15d-15(f) utderSecurities Exchange Act of 1934. Ryder’
internal control over financial reporting is desgno provide reasonable assurance regarding lthbiligy of financial reporting and the
preparation of the consolidated financial statemémt external purposes in accordance with accogmtiinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Ryder’s internal control over financial reporting inclsdfose policies and procedures that (1) pertathetanaintenance of records that
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleetttiansactions and dispositions of the assets déRY2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepiagation of financial statements in accordanch gaterally accepted accounting principles,
and that our receipts and expenditures are beintg maly in accordance with authorizations of Ryslenanagement and directors; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prewveatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitioge or disposition of Ryder’s assets that
could have a material effect on the consolidatedritial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssaibject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of Rydetsah control over financial reporting as of Detem31, 2013 . In making this
assessment, management used the criteria sebfpttie Committee of Sponsoring Organizations ofTtteadway Commission in “Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (1992).” Based onamssessment and those criteria, management deéethiat Ryder maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of Beter 31, 2013 .

Ryder’s independent registered certified publicoaicting firm has audited the effectiveness of Riglieiternal control over financial
reporting. Their report appears on page 58.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC A CCOUNTING FIRM

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF
RYDER SYSTEM, INC.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemfesisrongs, comprehensive income
(loss), shareholders’ equity and cash flows prefgerty, in all material respects, the financialsgimn of Ryder System, Inc. and its subsidiaries
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the resulteofdperations and their cash flows for each efthiree years in the period ended
December 31, 2013 in conformity with accountingipiples generally accepted in the United Statesnoérica. In addition, in our opinion, the
financial statement schedule listed in the accoryipgnindex presents fairly, in all material resgethe information set forth therein when read
in conjunction with the related consolidated finahstatements. Also in our opinion, the Companyta@ned, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2013, based on criteria establishedt@mrial Control-Integrated Framework (1992)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidtee Treadway Commission (COSQO). The Companysagement is responsible for
these financial statements and financial statesargdule, for maintaining effective internal cohtreer financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal coatret financial reporting, included in the accomypag Management’'s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipiig to express opinions on these financial statesen the financial statement schedule, and
on the Company’s internal control over financigdoging based on our integrated audits. We condumte audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdgtard (United States). Those standards requaevte plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether thecfalatatements are free of material misstatemashivhether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all materedpects. Our audits of the financial statemerdsiited examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the @imhstatements, assessing the accounting prircyged and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financééstent presentation. Our audit of internal corax@r financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over finanoggdorting, assessing the risk that a material wesk exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internalrobbised on the assessed risk. Our audits alkaleat performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbdhat our audits provide a reasonable basisuoopinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting principles.
A company'’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thae(iain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettlansactions and dispositions of the assetseofampany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
transactions are recorded as necessary to perapiagation of financial statements in accordanch génerally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the companpeing made only in accordance with authorizat@imanagement and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurancardagg prevention or timely detection of unauthedacquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieproicedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

February 13, 2014
Miami, Florida
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Lease and rental revenues $ 2,770,02 2,695,371 2,553,87
Services revenue 2,819,67. 2,707,01: 2,609,17.
Fuel services revenue 829,58t 854,57¢ 887,48:
Total revenues 6,419,28 6,256,96' 6,050,53.
Cost of lease and rental 1,915,73 1,890,65! 1,746,05
Cost of services 2,366,82 2,274,11 2,186,35:
Cost of fuel services 814,05! 838,67: 873,46t
Other operating expenses 137,91t 135,90 129,18(
Selling, general and administrative expenses 790,68: 766,70: 771,24
Gains on vehicle sales, net (96,17%) (89,109 (62,879
Interest expense 137,19¢ 140,55 133,16«
Miscellaneous income, net (15,377 (11,729 (9,099
Restructuring and other (recoveries) charges, net 470 8,07( 3,65¢
6,050,39 5,953,85! 5771,14

Earnings from continuing operations before incomes$ 368,89! 303,11° 279,38
Provision for income taxes 125,69¢ 102,21¢ 108,01¢
Earnings from continuing operations 243,19t 200,89¢ 171,36¢
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations, h&o (5,409 9,08( (1,599
Net earnings $ 237,79. 209,97¢ 169,77

Earnings (loss) per common share — Basic

Continuing operations $ 4.67 3.9¢ 3.34
Discontinued operations (0.10 0.1¢ (0.09)
Net earnings $ 457 4.11 3.31
Earnings (loss) per common share — Diluted
Continuing operations $ 4.6: 3.91 3.31
Discontinued operations (0.120 0.1¢ (0.09)
Net earnings $ 4,52 4.0¢ 3.2¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@stistents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Net earnings $ 237,79: 209,97¢ 169,77
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Changes in cumulative translation adjustment ahdrpbefore and after tax (21,98Y 29,64 (17,76%)
Amortization of pension and postretirement items 33,21¢ 28,674 17,91°
Income tax expense related to amortization of menand postretirement items (11,739 (10,01¢) (6,419
Amortization of pension and postretirement itene,af tax 21,48( 18,65¢ 11,50:
Change in net actuarial loss and prior service cost 236,85! (109,769 (282,94))
Income tax (expense) benefit related to changetmctuarial loss and prior service cost (86,979 41,017 98,64
Change in net actuarial loss and prior service, castof taxes 149,87t (68,757 (184,30)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes 149,37: (20,459 (190,56¢)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 387,16 189,52! (20,789

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@stistents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2013

2012

Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

(Dollars in thousands, except

per share amount)

Total current assets

Revenue earning equipment, net of accumulated diegicn of $3,596,102 and $3,514,910,
respectively

Operating property and equipment, net of accumdldéepreciation of $991,117 and
$966,220, respectively

Goodwill
Intangible assets
Direct financing leases and other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt and current portion of long-terrhtde
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other non-current liabilities
Deferred income taxes

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock of no par value per share — awbdyi3,800,917; none outstanding,
December 31, 2013 or 2012

Common stock of $0.50 par value per share — awédri400,000,000; outstanding,
December 31, 2013 — 53,335,386; December 31, 2051;371,696

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

61,56: 66,39:
777,37( 775,76
64,29¢ 64,14¢
159,26: 133,93
1,062,49. 1,040,23
6,490,83 5,754,60:
633,82 624,85:
383,71 384,21
72,40¢ 80,47
460,50: 434,59
9,103,78; 8,318,97'
259,43 367,97
475,36 398,98
496,33 505,70
1,231,13 1,272,66!
3,929,98 3,452,82.
655,06 948,93
1,390,88. 1,177,07:
7,207,06i 6,851,49;
26,66 25,68¢
917,53 808,23
1,390,75! 1,221,191
(438,24 (587,619
1,896,71. 1,467,48
9,103,78; 8,318,97!

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@stistents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)

Net earnings $ 237,79: 209,97¢ 169,77
Less: (Loss) earnings from discontinued operatinaspf tax (5,409 9,08( (1,597
Earnings from continuing operations 243,19¢ 200,89¢ 171,36¢
Depreciation expense 957,14 939,67 872,26.
Gains on vehicle sales, net (96,175 (89,109 (62,879
Share-based compensation expense 19,31( 18,86¢ 17,42
Amortization expense and other non-cash charges, ne 56,38¢ 49,20¢ 39,92¢
Deferred income tax expense 113,58: 87,10: 90,01¢

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, natqtiisitions:
Receivables (14,277) 7,107 (92,020
Inventories (841) 72¢ (6,159
Prepaid expenses and other assets (23,119 10,71¢ (25,040
Accounts payable 34,43 (22,807 24,65
Accrued expenses and other non-current liabilities (66,569 (68,26) 12,39¢
Net cash provided by operating activities of comitig operations 1,223,08; 1,134,12. 1,041,95!

Cash flows from financing activities of continuingerations:

Net change in commercial paper borrowings 146,38: (64,757) 46,74¢
Debt proceeds 556,98¢ 745,77 966,40:
Debt repaid, including capital lease obligations (332,62) (283,93) (419,28)
Dividends on common stock (67,720 (61,266) (57,509
Common stock issued 90,64¢ 28,38t 33,35¢
Common stock repurchased — (26,87%) (59,689
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 5,151 1,341 1,71C
Debt issuance costs (5,189 (4,867) (7,53¢)

Net cash provided by financing activities of contirg operations 393,63! 333,80" 504,20:

Cash flows from investing activities of continuiogerations:

Purchases of property and revenue earning equipment (2,140,46) (2,133,23) (1,698,58)
Sales of revenue earning equipment 445 ,58¢ 405,44( 290,33t
Sale and leaseback of revenue earning equipment — 130,18 37,39t
Sales of operating property and equipment 6,782 7,35( 9,90¢
Acquisitions (1,85%) (5,113 (361,92))
Collections on direct finance leases 70,67 71,897 62,224
Changes in restricted cash (10,559 19,20« 3,47¢
Insurance recoveries 8,17¢ — —
Net cash used in investing activities of continuipgrations (1,621,65) (1,504,27) (1,657,17)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 5,55¢ 1,34¢ 3,21¢
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalentsciintinuing operations 621 (35,000 (107,799
Cash flows from discontinued operations:
Operating cash flows (5,799 (3,219 (500)
Financing cash flows _ — (140)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 342 39 (46)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents from discedioperations (5,45)) (3,180 (68¢€)

Decrease in cash and cash equival (4.830 (38.180 (108.48)



Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 66,39: 104,57: 213,05:

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 $ 61,56 66,39: 104,57

See accompanying notes to consolidated financasstents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred
Stock Common Stock Additional Retained Accgrt‘gtélra ted
Amount Shares Par Paid-In Capital Earnings Comprehensive Los Total
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Balance at January 1, 2011 $ — 51,174,75 $ 25,58 735,54( 1,019,78 (376,599 1,404,31:
Net earnings — — — — 169,77 — 169,77
Other comprehensive loss — — — — — (190,56¢) (190,56¢)

Comprehensive loss — — — — — — (20,789

Common stock dividends declared and paid—

$1.12 per share — — — — (57,509 — (57,509

Common stock issued under employee stock

option and stock purchase plahs — 1,157,54 57¢ 32,78( — — 33,35¢

Benefit plan stock purchas@s — (12,57¢) (6) (5817) — — (587)

Common stock repurchases — (1,175,78) (58¢) (16,819 (41,69Y) — (59,102

Share-based compensation — _ — 17,42: — _ 17,42:

Tax benefits from share-based compensation — — — 1,04( — — 1,04(¢

Balance at December 31, 2011 — 51,143,94 25,57. 769,38: 1,090,36: (567,16%) 1,318,15

Net earnings — — — — 209,97 — 209,97¢
Other comprehensive loss _ _ _ _ _ (20,459 (20,45¢)
Comprehensive income — _ — _ — _ 189,52!
Common stock dividends declared and paid—
$1.20 per share — — — — (61,26¢) — (61,26¢€)
Common stock issued under employee stock
option and stock purchase plahs — 782,78 391 27,99t — — 28,38¢

Benefit plan stock purchas@s — (11,110 5) (530) — — (53%)

Common stock repurchases — (543,92) 272 (8,189 (17,889 — (26,349

Share-based compensation — — — 18,86¢ — — 18,86«

Tax benefits from share-based compensation _ _ _ 703 _ _ 702

Balance at December 31, 2012 — 51,371,69 25,68 808,23( 1,221,19 (587,619 1,467,48

Net earnings — — — — 237,79: — 237,79:
Other comprehensive income — _ — _ — 149,37: 149,37
Comprehensive income — _ — _ — _ m
Common stock dividends declared—$1.30 per
share — — — — (68,22¢) — (68,22¢)
Common stock issued under employee stock
option and stock purchase plahs — 1,913,06 95€ 86,21: — — 87,16¢

Benefit plan stock salé® — 50,62: 25 3,45: — — 3,47¢

Share-based compensation — — — 19,31( — 19,31(

Tax benefits from share-based compensation — — — 334 — — 33/

Balance at December 31, 2013 $ — 53,335,38 $ 26,66 917,53¢ 1,390,75 (438,249 1,896,71.

(1) Net of common shares delivered as payment fontbeeise price or to satisfy the holders’ withholglirax liability upon exercise of options.
(2) Represents open-market transactions of cominares by the trustee of Ryder’'s deferred compemsaians.

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@stistents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Consolidation and Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include to@ants of Ryder System, Inc. (Ryder) and all &giin which Ryder has a controlling
voting interest (“subsidiaries”) and variable irggrentities (“VIEs”) where Ryder is determined#the primary beneficiary. Ryder is deemed
to be the primary beneficiary if we have the powedirect the activities that most significantlypact the entitys economic performance and
share in the significant risks and rewards of thigye All significant intercompany accounts andrtsactions between consolidated companies
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Reclassifications

In 2013, we revised our classification of prodire revenue between "Contract maintenance" andti@ot-related maintenance" within
the Fleet Management Solutions revenue in NotéS&gment Reporting.” Prior year amounts have beelassified to conform to the current
period presentation. These reclassifications waradterial to the financial statements taken as@evh

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets requires management to make estimates amuhgtssns that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statementsasa&ccompanying notes. These estimates are basadrmagement’s best knowledge of
historical trends, actions that we may take infthiere, and other information available when thesmidated financial statements are prepared.
Changes in estimates are recognized in accordaiticehs accounting rules for the estimate, whictyscally in the period when new
information becomes available. Areas where theraaifithe estimate make it reasonably possibleabiaial results could materially differ from
the amounts estimated include: depreciation ariduakvalue guarantees, employee benefit plan atiigs, self-insurance accruals, impairment
assessments on long-lived assets (including gobdmdl indefinite-lived intangible assets), revene@ognition, allowance for accounts
receivable, income tax liabilities and contingeabilities.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents represent cash in excess of tupenating requirements invested in short-terterast-bearing instruments with
maturities of three months or less at the dateuoflpase and are stated at cost.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash primarily consists of cash procéreds the sale of eligible vehicles set aside far &cquisition of replacement vehicles
under our like-kind exchange tax program. See Ndte¢'Income Taxes,” for a complete discussion efwkhicle like-kind exchange tax
program. We classify restricted cash within “Prepaipenses and other current assets” if the réstrits expected to expire in the twelve
months following the balance sheet date or witliréct financing leases and other assets” if tiséricion is expected to expire more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date. Thegelsan restricted cash balances are reflected asesting activity in our Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows as they relate to the salé purchases of revenue earning equipment.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, the services have been rehtteceistomers or delivery has
occurred, the pricing is fixed or determinable, antlectibility is reasonably assured. In our ewion of whether revenue is fixed or
determinable, we determine whether the total cohtransideration in the arrangement could changedan one or more factors. These factors,
which vary among each of our segments, are fudiseussed below. Generally, the judgments madthése purposes do not materially impact
the revenue recognized in any period. Sales td&aet from customers and remitted to the applecédoting authorities is accounted for on a
basis, with no impact on revenue.

Our judgments on collectibility are initially estshed when a business relationship with a custasiaitiated and is continuously
monitored as services are provided. We have ataiiig system based on internally developed statsdand ratings provided by third parties.
Our credit rating system, along with monitoring émlinquent payments, allows us to make decisisrte avhether collectibility may not be
reasonably assured. Factors considered duringthéess include historical payment trends, indussigs, liquidity of the customer, years in
business, and judgments, liens or bankruptcies.rVébbectibility is not considered reasonably assuftypically when a customer is 120 days
past due ), revenue is not recognized until casbllected from the customer.
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We generate revenue primarily through the leasgarand maintenance of revenue earning equipnmehbsg providing logistics
management and dedicated services. We classifseganues in one of the following categories:

Lease and rentz

Lease and rental includes full service lease anthoercial rental revenues from our FMS business sagrirull service lease is marketed,
priced and managed as a bundled lease arrangeatgct, includes equipment, service and financing ponents. We do not offer a stand-alone
unbundled finance lease of vehicles. For thesersadboth the lease and service components olidwgefvice leases are included within lease
and rental revenues.

Our full service lease arrangements include leatieadables such as the lease of a vehicle andxbeutory agreement for the
maintenance, insurance, taxes and other servitzededo the leased vehicles during the lease t&rrangement consideration is allocated
between lease deliverables and non-lease delivsrélalsed on management’s best estimate of thivediair value of each deliverable. The
arrangement consideration allocated to lease daliles is accounted for pursuant to accountingagged on leases. Our full service lease
arrangements provide for a fixed charge billing andriable charge billing based on mileage or tis@ge. Fixed charges are typically billed at
the beginning of the month for the services to tmipded that month. Variable charges are typichilied a month in arrears. Costs associated
with the activities performed under our full servieasing arrangements are primarily comprisedladgi, parts, outside work, depreciation,
licenses, insurance, operating taxes and vehitdaning. These costs are expensed as incurredtdacelepreciation. Refer to “Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies — Revenue Earnimgiiment, Operating Property and Equipment, and&sgtion” for information regarding
our depreciation policies. Non-chargeable mainteeaosts have been allocated and reflected witbast of lease and rental” based on the
maintenance-related labor costs relative to aliipeblines.

Revenue from lease and rental agreements is remmahbhased on the classification of the arrangergpitally as either an operating or
direct finance lease (DFL).

» The majority of our leases and all of our reatahngements are classified as operating leasktharefore, we recognize lease and
commercial rental revenue on a straight-line basiit becomes receivable over the term of the leasental arrangement. Lease and
rental agreements do not usually provide for scleedent increases or escalations. However, mastlagreements allow for rate
changes based upon changes in the Consumer Fdie (GPI). Lease and rental agreements also préetdeshicle usage charges ba
on a time charge and/or a fixed per-mile charge. fited time charge, the fixed per-mile charge #redchanges in rates attributed to
changes in the CPI are considered contingent seatal are not considered fixed or determinablé tn&ieffect of CPI changes is
implemented or the equipment usage occurs.

» The non-lease deliverables of our full servieask arrangements are comprised of access totstgbgéhicles, emergency road service,
and safety services. These services are availaldertcustomers throughout the lease term. Accglglimevenue is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

» Leases not classified as operating leases ar@y considered direct financing leases. Wegaize revenue for direct financing leases
using the effective interest interest method, witinbvides a constant periodic rate of return onoltstanding investment on the lease.
Recognition of income on direct finance leasesigpended when management determines that collesftfoture income is not
probable, which is at the point at which the custdsmdelinquent balance is determined to be at(rggnerally over 120 days past due ).
Accrual is resumed, and previously suspended indemexognized, when the receivable becomes cdnatfc current and/or collection
doubts are removed. Cash receipts on impairedtdinance lease receivables are first recordednag#tie direct finance lease receive
and then to any unrecognized income. A direct fieadease receivable is considered impaired, basedment information and events
it is probable that we will be unable to colledtaahounts due according to the contractual termhbefease.

Services

Services include contract maintenance, contraatedimaintenance and other revenues from our FMBdss segment and all SCS
revenues.

Under our contract maintenance arrangements, wedaronaintenance and repairs required to keep izlegh good operating condition,
schedule preventive maintenance inspections arebado emergency road service and substitute eshithe vast majority of our services are
routine services performed on a recurring bas@uinout the term of the arrangement. From timénte,twe provide non-routine major repair
services in order to place a vehicle back in servievenue from maintenance service contracte@grézed on a straight-line basis as
maintenance services are rendered over the terthe oélated arrangements.

64




RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

Contract maintenance arrangements are generalbgelante, without penalty, after one year with 69-arior written notice . Our
maintenance service arrangement provides for ahfyofited charge and a monthly variable charge 8dasemileage or time usage. Fixed
charges are typically billed at the beginning @& thonth for the services to be provided that movieliiable charges are typically billed a month
in arrears. Most contract maintenance agreemeots &r rate changes based upon changes in theT®RIfixed per-mile charge and the
changes in rates attributed to changes in the @&Peaognized as earned. Costs associated witkcthties performed under our contract
maintenance arrangements are primarily compriséabaoir, parts and outside work. These costs areresqul as incurred. Non-chargeable
maintenance costs have been allocated and refleftieid “Cost of services” based on the relativeimenance-related labor costs relative to all
product lines.

Revenue from SCS service contracts is recognizedrages are rendered in accordance with cortgatts, which typically include
discrete billing rates for the services. In cerfa®S contracts, a portion of the contract constiteranay be contingent upon the satisfaction of
performance criteria, attainment of pain/gain shiaresholds or volume thresholds. The contingentiiggoof the revenue in these arrangements
is not considered fixed or determinable until teef@rmance criteria or thresholds have been metahsportation management arrangements
where we act as principal, revenue is reported gross basis, without deducting third-party pureldasansportation costs. To the extent that we
are acting as an agent in the arrangement, reusemaported on a net basis, after deducting puszhasnsportation costs.

Fuel

Fuel services include fuel services revenue fromF®S business segment. Revenue from fuel serisgaesognized when fuel is
delivered to customers. Fuel is largely a passuthindo our customers for which we realize mininfelreges in profitability during periods of
steady market fuel prices. However, profitabilitpyrbe positively or negatively impacted by suddemeases or decreases in market fuel prices
during a short period of time as customer pricimgffiel services is established based on markéthss.

Accounts Receivable Allowance

We maintain an allowance for uncollectible custoneeeivables and an allowance for billing adjustteeelated to certain discounts and
billing corrections. Estimates are updated regylbased on historical experience of bad debts dlinigbadjustments processed, current
collection trends and aging analysis. Accountsherged against the allowance when determined tmbellectible. The allowance is
maintained at a level deemed appropriate basedssrelkperience and other factors affecting cobidityi. Historical results may not necessarily
be indicative of future results.

Inventories
Inventories, which consist primarily of fuel, tiraad vehicle parts, are valued using the lowereifjinted-average cost or market.

Revenue Earning Equipment, Operating Property and l§uipment, and Depreciation

Revenue earning equipment, comprised of vehicldsoaerating property and equipment are initialigoreled at cost inclusive of vendor
rebates. Revenue earning equipment and operatipggy and equipment under capital lease are ligitiecorded at the lower of the present
value of minimum lease payments or fair value. ¥ehiepairs and maintenance that extend the lifeaease the value of a vehicle are
capitalized, whereas ordinary maintenance andnepeé expensed as incurred. The cost of vehiplagement tires and tire repairs are expe
as incurred. Direct costs incurred in connectiothwieveloping or obtaining internal-use software @apitalized. Costs incurred during the
preliminary software development project stagavelt as maintenance and training costs, are expegsécurred.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over theestud their estimated useful lives or the ternhaf related lease, which may include
one or more option renewal periods where failurextercise such options would result in an econgrai@lty in such amount that renewal
appears, at the inception of the lease, to be neddpassured. If a substantial additional investnemade in a leased property during the term
of the lease, we re-evaluate the lease term tordigte whether the investment, together with anyaftess related to non-renewal, would
constitute an economic penalty in such amountrévawal appears to be reasonably assured.
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Provision for depreciation is computed using thaight-line method on all depreciable assets. Degtien expense has been recorded
within "Cost of lease and rental,” "Cost of sergiteand "Cost of fuel services" and "Other opeptrpenses"” depending on the nature of the
related asset.We periodically review and adjusgpgmsopriate, the residual values and useful lofegvenue earning equipment. Our review of
the residual values and useful lives of revenueiegrequipment, is established with a long-termnmi@nsidering historical market price
changes, current and expected future market pecels, expected life of vehicles and extent ofa#tive uses. Factors that could cause actual
results to materially differ from estimates inclualg are not limited to unforeseen changes in teldyy innovations.

We routinely dispose of used revenue earning ecgripras part of our FMS business. Revenue earnimigragnt held for sale is stated at
the lower of carrying amount or fair value lesstsde sell. For revenue earning equipment heldébe, we stratify our fleet by vehicle type
(tractors, trucks, and trailers), weight class, aige other relevant characteristics and creatsetasf similar assets for analysis purposes. Fair
value is determined based upon recent market polataéned from our own sales experience for sdleach class of similar assets and vehicle
condition. Reductions in the carrying values ofiekds held for sale are recorded within “Other apieg expenses” in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings. While we believe our esémaf residual values and fair values of reveraraieg equipment are reasonable, chang
our estimates of values may occur due to changeeimarket for used vehicles, the condition ofwkicles, and inherent limitations in the
estimation process.

Gains and losses on sales of operating propertgguagment are reflected in “Miscellaneous incoret,”

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill on acquisitions represents the excesh@purchase price over the fair value of the ugdeslacquired net tangible and
intangible assets. Factors that contribute to éeegnition of goodwill in our acquisitions inclu@expected growth rates and profitability of
acquired companies, (ii) securing buyer-specifivesgies that increase revenue and profits andatretherwise available to market participants,
(iii) significant cost savings opportunities, (e¥perienced workforce and (v) our strategies fomgh in sales, income and cash flows.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with inde@niseful lives are not amortized, but rather, eséed for impairment at least annually
(April 1 ). In evaluating goodwill for impairment, we havetoption to first assess qualitative factors tieaeine whether further impairment
testing is necessary. Among other relevant everdacumstances that affect the fair value of répg units, we consider individual factors
such as macroeconomic conditions, changes in dusstry and the markets in which we operate asagetiur reporting units' historical and
expected future financial performance. If we codelthat it is more likely than not that a reportingt's fair value is less than its carrying value,
recoverability of goodwill is evaluated using a tatep process. The first step involves a compari$ahe fair value of each of our reporting
units with its carrying amount. If a reporting usitarrying amount exceeds its fair value, the sdiep is performed. The second step involves
a comparison of the implied fair value and carryiadue of that reporting unit’s goodwill. To thetert that a reporting unit’s carrying amount
exceeds the implied fair value of its goodwill,iampairment loss is recognized.

Our valuation of fair value for each reporting usitletermined based on an average of discountecefaash flow models that use ten
years of projected cash flows and various termiahles based on multiples, book value or growthragsions. We consider the current trad
multiples for comparable publicly-traded comparaad the historical pricing multiples for comparalvierger and acquisition transactions that
have occurred in our industry. Rates used to distcoash flows are dependent upon interest ratesh@ncbst of capital at a point in time. Our
discount rates reflect a weighted average cosapital based on our industry and capital struchaljasted for equity risk premiums and size risk
premiums based on market capitalization. Estimaftésture cash flows are dependent on our knowledgkexperience about past and current
events and assumptions about conditions we expestist, including longerm growth rates, capital requirements and usiefed. Our estimate
of cash flows are also based on historical and-éubperating performance, economic conditions atidrzss we expect to take. In addition to
these factors, our SCS reporting units are depemateseveral key customers or industry sectors.ld$eof a key customer may have a
significant impact to one of our SCS reporting sinfflausing us to assess whether or not the eairita@ in a goodwill impairment loss. While
we believe our estimates of future cash flows assonable, there can be no assurance that detieridraeconomic conditions, customer
relationships or adverse changes to expectatiohgurf performance will not occur, resulting ig@dwill impairment loss.

In making our assessments of fair value, we relpumknowledge and experience about past and dwevemts and assumptions about
conditions we expect to exist in the future. Thessumptions are based on a number of factors ingddture operating performance, economic
conditions, actions we expect to take, and pressne techniques. Rates used to discount futute fbass are dependent upon interest rates anc
the cost of capital at a point in time. There ateerent uncertainties related to these factoravaamthgement’s judgment in applying them to the
analysis of goodwill impairment. It is possible tlhasumptions underlying the impairment analyslscliange in such a manner that impairment
in value may occur in the future.
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Identifiable intangible assets not subject to aipatiobn are assessed for impairment using a simpitacess to that used to evaluate
goodwill as described above. Intangible assets fivitte lives are amortized over their respectigéreated useful lives. Identifiable intangible
assets that are subject to amortization are eaat impairment using a process similar to ttsstdito evaluate long-lived assets described
below.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets Other than Goodwiill

Long-lived assets held and used, including revesauring equipment, operating property and equipraedtintangible assets with finite
lives, are tested for recoverability when circumsts indicate that the carrying amount of assejsnmotbe recoverable. Recoverability of long-
lived assets is evaluated by comparing the carrgingunt of an asset or asset group to managentest £stimate of the undiscounted future
operating cash flows (excluding interest charggpgeted to be generated by the asset or asset.dftlse comparisons indicate that the asset
or asset group is not recoverable, an impairmesst i recognized for the amount by which the cagyialue of the asset or asset group exceeds
fair value. Fair value is determined by a quotedkmigprice, if available, or an estimate of progetfuture operating cash flows, discounted L
a rate that reflects the related operating segmewerage cost of funds. Loliged assets to be disposed of including revenuaeimg equipmen
operating property and equipment and indefifiited intangible assets, are reported at the lafiearrying amount or fair value less costs to.

Debt Issuance Costs

Costs incurred to issue debt are generally defemeidamortized as a component of interest expeareetioe estimated term of the related
debt using the effective interest rate method. s=tance costs associated with our global revgleiedit facility are deferred and amortized
a straight-line basis over the term of the facility

Contract Incentives

Payments made to or on behalf of a lessee or cestopon entering into a lease of our revenue egmguipment or contract are deferred
and recognized on a straight-line basis as a redgtucf revenue over the contract term. Amountsg@imortized in the next year have been
classified as “Prepaid expenses and other curssets’ with the remainder included in “Direct ficarg leases and other assets.”

Self-Insurance Accruals

We retain a portion of the accident risk under gkehiiability, workers’ compensation and other irewe programs. Under our insurance
programs, we retain the risk of loss in various ants up to $3 million on a per occurrence basifziBgurance accruals are based primarily on
an actuarially estimated, undiscounted cost oftdaiwhich includes claims incurred but not repartath liabilities are based on estimates.
Historical loss development factors are utilizeghtoject the future development of incurred lossesl, these amounts are adjusted based upon
actual claim experience and settlements. While glieve that the amounts are adequate, there can hssurance that changes to our actuarial
estimates may not occur due to limitations inheetite estimation process. Changes in the actuesienates of these accruals are charged or
credited to earnings in the period determined. Am®estimated to be paid within the next year Hmen classified as “Accrued expenses and
other current liabilities” with the remainder indled in “Other non-current liabilities” in our Corislated Balance Sheets.

We also maintain additional insurance at certainamis in excess of our respective underlying resanfAmounts recoverable from
insurance companies are not offset against theeteccrual as our insurance policies do not edigiigor provide legal release from the
obligation to make payments related to such risdted losses. Amounts expected to be receivedmiitie next year from insurance companies
have been included within “Receivables, net” with temainder included in “Direct financing leased ather assets” and are recognized only
when realization of the claim for recovery is calesed probable. The accrual for the related clambeen classified within “Accrued expenses
and other current liabilities” if it is estimateal be paid within the next year, otherwise it hasrbelassified in “Other non-current liabilities” in
our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Residual Value Guarantees and Deferred Gains

We periodically enter into agreements for the saleé leaseback of revenue earning equipment. Thases contain purchase and/or
renewal options as well as limited guarantees @fdhsor’s residual value (“residual value guamsijeWe review the residual values of reve
earning equipment that we lease from third pagies our exposures under residual value guararntbeseview is conducted in a manner
similar to that used to analyze residual valuesfaimdralues of owned revenue earning equipmentta@eresidual value guarantees are
conditioned on termination of the lease prior sociontractual lease term. For sale and leasebagvehue earning equipment accounted for as
operating leases, the amount of residual valueagiiees expected to be paid is recognized as rpahsg& over the expected remaining term of
the lease. Adjustments in the estimate of residalale guarantees are recognized prospectivelytbheezxpected remaining lease term. While
believe that the amounts are adequate, changes &stimates of residual value guarantees may at@ito changes in the market for used
vehicles, the condition of the vehicles at the efithe lease and inherent limitations in the edtiiomeprocess. See Note 19, “Guarantees,” for
additional information.

Gains on the sale and operating leaseback of reveaitning equipment are deferred and amortizedstraght-line basis over the term of
the lease as an adjustment of rent expense (opgiatises) or depreciation expense (capital lease).

Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes is based on repogtdings before income taxes. Deferred taxeseagnized for the future tax effects
temporary differences between the financial statgroarrying amounts of existing assets and liaédiind their respective tax bases using tax
rates in effect for the years in which the differes are expected to reverse.

The effects of changes in tax laws on deferred#dances are recognized in the period the newlédigis is enacted. Valuation allowanc
are recognized to reduce deferred tax assets tantlbent that is more likely than not to be realidacassessing the likelihood of realization,
management considers estimates of future taxabderia. We calculate our current and deferred taitipp$ased on estimates and assumptions
that could differ from the actual results refleciedcome tax returns filed in subsequent yeadjugtments based on filed returns are recorded
when identified.

We are subject to tax audits in numerous jurisoiigiin the U.S. and around the world. Tax auditthbyr very nature are often complex
and can require several years to complete. Indhmal course of business, we are subject to clg#kefrom the Internal Revenue Services (I
and other tax authorities regarding amounts ofdake. These challenges may alter the timing owaitnaf taxable income or deductions, or the
allocation of income among tax jurisdictions. Weedmine whether the benefits of our tax positioresraore likely than not of being sustained
upon audit based on the technical merits of theptesition. For tax positions that are at least nlitedy than not of being sustained upon audit,
we recognize the largest amount of the benefitithatore likely than not of being sustained in consolidated financial statements. For all o
tax positions, we do not recognize any portiorhefbenefit in our consolidated financial statemehtsthe extent that our assessment of suc
positions changes, the change in estimate is reddrdthe period in which the determination is made

Interest and penalties related to income tax expgsare recognized as incurred and included inviBian for income taxes” in our
Consolidated Statements of Earnings. Accrualsrfopme tax exposures, including penalties and isteegpected to be settled within the next
year are included i“Accrued expenses and other current liabilitiestrvthe remainder included in “Other non-currenbiliies” in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The federal benefit tate income tax exposures is included in “Detemcome taxes” in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

Severance and Contract Termination Costs

We recognize liabilities for severance and contr@achination costs based upon the nature of thietadse incurred. For involuntary
separation plans that are completed within theadimds of our written involuntary separation plew, record the liability when it is probable &
reasonably estimable. For otige termination benefits, such as additional savee pay or benefit payouts, and other exit cestsh as contra
termination costs, the liability is measured armbgmized initially at fair value in the period irhigh the liability is incurred, with subsequent
changes to the liability recognized as adjustmientise period of change. Severance related toipngiiminations that are part of a restructu
plan are recorded within “Restructuring and otmecdveries) charges, net” in the Consolidated Btatts of Earnings. To the extent that
severance costs are not part of a restructuring pie termination costs are recorded as a dicsttaf revenue or within “Selling, general and
administrative expenses,” in the Consolidated 8tatds of Earnings depending upon the nature oélihenated position.
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Environmental Expenditures

We record liabilities for environmental assessmant/or cleanup when it is probable a loss has eemred and the costs can be
reasonably estimated. Environmental liability esti@s may include costs such as anticipated sitiagesonsulting, remediation, disposal, post-
remediation monitoring and legal fees, as apprtgriehe liability does not reflect possible recasgfrom insurance companies or
reimbursement of remediation costs by state agenioig does include estimates of cost sharing ethbr potentially responsible parties.
Estimates are not discounted, as the timing oétiipated cash payments is not fixed or readitgdninable. Subsequent adjustments to initial
estimates are recorded as necessary based uptiorzldnformation developed in subsequent periti$uture periods, new laws or
regulations, advances in remediation technologyaatttitional information about the ultimate remeidiatmethodology to be used could
significantly change our estimates. Claims for taimsement of remediation costs are recorded wieaveey is deemed probable.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Asset retirement obligations (AROSs) are legal adiiions associated with the retirement of long-liesdets. Our AROs are associated with
underground tanks, tires and leasehold improvemehtse liabilities are initially recorded at faalue and the related asset retirement costs are
capitalized by increasing the carrying amount efrslated assets by the same amount as the jaldiiset retirement costs are subsequently
depreciated over the useful lives of the relatesgtas Subsequent to initial recognition, we exp@es®d-to-period changes in the ARO liability
resulting from the passage of time.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We use financial instruments, including forwardtemge contracts, futures, swaps and cap agreetoanenage our exposures to
movements in interest rates and foreign currenchaxge rates. The use of these financial instrusmantifies the exposure of these risks with
the intent to reduce the risk or cost to us. Wadakenter into derivative financial instruments fiading purposes. We limit our risk that
counterparties to the derivative contracts willaddf and not make payments by entering into devigatontracts only with counterparties
comprised of large banks and financial institutitheg meet established credit criteria. We do mpeet to incur any losses as a result of
counterparty default.

On the date a derivative contract is entered inoformally document, among other items, the inéehldedging designation and
relationship, along with the risk management objestand strategies for entering into the derivatigntract. We also formally assess, both at
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether thevaliives we used in hedging transactions are higfigctive in offsetting changes in fair valu
or cash flows of hedged items. Cash flows from\dgives that are accounted for as hedges arefadgisisi the Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows in the same category as the items being ltedyben it is determined that a derivative is righly effective as a hedge or that it has
ceased to be a highly effective hedge, we discoatiredge accounting prospectively.

The hedging designation may be classified as otieeofollowing:

No Hedging Designatiohe gain or loss on a derivative instrument notgieged as an accounting hedging instrument isgreized in
earnings.

Fair Value HedgeA hedge of a recognized asset or liability or areangnized firm commitment is considered a faiueatedge. For fair
value hedges, both the effective and ineffectiveigos of the changes in the fair value of thedive, along with the gain or loss on the he
item that is attributable to the hedged risk, aréhlvecorded in earnings.

Cash Flow HedgeA hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the taditia of cash flows to be received or paid related recognized asset
or liability is considered a cash flow hedge. THedaive portion of the change in the fair valueaodlerivative that is declared as a cash flow
hedge is recorded in “Accumulated other comprelverisiss” until earnings are affected by the vatighin cash flows of the designated hedged
item.

Net Investment HedgeA hedge of a net investment in a foreign operaisoconsidered a net investment hedge. The efeeptrtion of the
change in the fair value of the derivative used ast investment hedge of a foreign operationderded in the currency translation adjustment
account within “Accumulated other comprehensiva lb$he ineffective portion, if any, on the hedden that is attributable to the hedged risk
is recorded in earnings and reported in “Miscellarseincome, net” in the Consolidated Statemenaofiings.
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Foreign Currency Translation

Our foreign operations generally use the localenoy as their functional currency. Assets andlitzs of these operations are translated
at the exchange rates in effect on the balancd daée If exchangeability between the functionatency and the U.S. dollar is temporarily
lacking at the balance sheet date, the first sulesgqate at which exchanges can be made is usehtdate assets and liabilities. Items in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings are transtdttte average exchange rates for the year. Thacinab currency fluctuations is recorded in
“Changes in cumulative translation adjustment ahér before and after tax” in the Consolidatede®teents of Comprehensive Income as a
currency translation adjustment. Upon sale or ugmonplete or substantially complete liquidation nfiavestment in a foreign operation, the
currency translation adjustment attributable ta tyeeration is removed from accumulated other cetmgmsive loss and is reported as part of the
gain or loss on sale or liquidation of the investirfer the period during which the sale or liquidatoccurs. Gains and losses resulting from
foreign currency transactions are recorded in “Blismeous income, net” in the Consolidated StatésnefEarnings.

Share-Based Compensation

The fair value of stock option awards and nonvestedk awards other than restricted stock unitdJ§Sis expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period of the awards. R3&&xensed in the year they are granted. Casls fimm the tax benefits resulting from tax
deductions in excess of the compensation expensgmied for those options (windfall tax benefds? classified as financing cash flows on an
award-by-award basis. Tax benefits resulting framdeductions in excess of share-based compensagiamse recognized are credited to
additional paid-in capital in the Consolidated Baka Sheets. Realized tax shortfalls are first btigainst the cumulative balance of windfall tax
benefits, if any, and then charged directly to medax expense. Tax shortfalls are classified asatipg cash flows on an award-award basis
with no netting of amounts credited to equity framdfall tax benefits.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share is computed using the two-cteetbod. The two-class method of computing earngggshare is an earnings allocation
formula that determines earnings per share for comstock and any participating securities accordtngdividends declared (whether paid or
unpaid) and participation rights in undistributegrengs. Our nonvested stock (time-vested restristeck rights, market-based restricted stock
rights and restricted stock units) issued prid2@&2 are considered participating securities siheeshare-based awards contain a non-forfeitable
right to dividend equivalents irrespective of whestthe awards ultimately vest. Under the two-ctasthod, earnings per common share are
computed by dividing the sum of distributed earsitgcommon shareholders and undistributed earmilhysated to common shareholders by
the weighted average number of common shares odistafor the period. In applying the tvatass method, undistributed earnings are alloc
to both common shares and participating secutisgd on the weighted average shares outstandiimg dloe period.

Diluted earnings per common share reflect the igdueffect of potential common shares from stockams and other nonparticipating
nonvested stock. The dilutive effect of stock opgidgs computed using the treasury stock method;iwdsssumes any proceeds that could be
obtained upon the exercise of stock options woeldded to purchase common shares at the averagetipace for the period. The assumed
proceeds include the purchase price the grantes pag/windfall tax benefit that we receive uposuased exercise and the unrecognized
compensation expense at the end of each period.

Share Repurchases

Repurchases of shares of common stock are madmljpally in open-market transactions and are sailtjemarket conditions, legal
requirements and other factors. The cost of slegmerchases is allocated between common stock éaided earnings based on the amount of
additional paid-in capital at the time of the shaeurchase.

Defined Benefit Pension and Postretirement Benefi®lans

The funded status of our defined benefit pensiangbnd postretirement benefit plans are recogmizte Consolidated Balance Sheets.
The funded status is measured as the differengeebatthe fair value of plan assets and the beoiglffijation at December 31, the measurement
date. The fair value of plan assets representsutirent market value of contributions made to ioeable trust funds, held for the sole benefit of
participants, which are invested by the trust fuids defined benefit pension plans, the benefigation represents the actuarial present value
of benefits expected to be paid upon retiremergdas estimated future compensation levels. Fdrgtoement benefit plans, the benefit
obligation represents the actuarial present valymstretirement benefits attributed to employe®ises already rendered. Overfunded plans,
with the fair value of plan assets exceeding theefieobligation, are aggregated and recorded@sgaid pension asset equal to this excess.
Underfunded plans, with the benefit obligation esdiag the fair value of plan assets, are aggregatddecorded as a pension and
postretirement benefit liability equal to this esse
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The current portion of pension and postretirememiefit liabilities represent the actuarial presaitie of benefits payable within the next
year exceeding the fair value of plan assets (ifléd), measured on a p-by-plan basis. These liabilities are recordedAncrued expenses and
other current liabilities” in the Consolidated Bade Sheets.

Pension and postretirement benefit expense inclseiegce cost, interest cost, expected return an assets (if funded), and amortization
of prior service credit and net actuarial lossvi®ercost represents the actuarial present valpanicipant benefits earned in the current year.
Interest cost represents the time value of monsyassociated with the passage of time. The exgpheetern on plan assets represents the av
rate of earnings expected on the funds invest¢d e invested to provide for the benefits includethe obligation. Prior service credit
represents the impact of negative plan amendmigetsactuarial loss arises as a result of differsrietween actual experience and assumptions
or as a result of changes in actuarial assumptiesactuarial loss and prior service credit nobgrized as a component of pension and
postretirement benefit expense as they arise aognézed as "Change in net actuarial loss and penorice cost, net of tax" in the Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income. These pensipastretirement items are subsequently amortigesdcomponent of pension and
postretirement benefit expense over the remairengce period, if the majority of the employees active, otherwise over the remaining life
expectancy, provided such amounts exceed threshiid are based upon the benefit obligation ovtidae of plan assets.

The measurement of benefit obligations and peraimhpostretirement benefit expense is based anatst and assumptions approved by
management. These valuations reflect the termisegplans and use participant-specific informatiachsas compensation, age and years of
service, as well as certain assumptions, includstgnates of discount rates, expected return angsaets, rate of compensation increases,
interest rates and mortality rates.

Fair Value Measurements

We carry various assets and liabilities at faiueah the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The matifisant assets and liabilities are
vehicles held for sale, which are stated at thestavf carrying amount or fair value less costsalh ;wvestments held in Rabbi Trusts and
derivatives.

Fair value is defined as the exchange price thaidvoe received for an asset or paid to transfbdity (an exit price) in the principal or
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market partitipan the measurement date. Fair value
measurements are classified based on the follofgingalue hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active marketsdentical assets or liabilities that we have thditglio access at the
measurement date. An active market for the asdethility is a market in which transactions foethsset or liability occur with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricinfprmation on an ongoing basis.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices suauaged prices for similar assets or liabilitiegpted prices in markets that
not active; or model-derived valuations or othguits that are observable or can be corroboratertbbgrvable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or lidiei.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liabilitye$é inputs reflect our own assumptions about thenagtions a market
participant would use in pricing the asset or lighi

When available, we use unadjusted quoted marketpto measure fair value and classify such measmnis within Level 1. If quoted
prices are not available, fair value is based upodel-driven valuations that use current markeetas independently sourced market
parameters such as interest rates and currency haes valued using these models are classitiedrding to the lowest level input or value
driver that is significant to the valuation.

Revenue earning equipment held for sale is measuradr value on a nonrecurring basis and is dtatehe lower of carrying amount or
fair value less costs to sell. Investments heldabbi Trusts, derivatives, and contingent consté®rare carried at fair value on a recurring
basis. Investments held in Rabbi Trusts includdargetraded equity securities and mutual funds. Fainesifor these investments are base
quoted prices in active markets. For derivativaes,falue is based on model-driven valuations u#ieg.IBOR rate or observable forward
foreign exchange rates, which are observable atrmmty quoted intervals for the full term of thedircial instrument. Fair value of contingent
consideration is based on significant unobserviaiplets based on contractual provisions and ouraagfiens of what will be paid.
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2. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardaf8dssued accounting guidance on the balance phesstntation of an unrecognized
tax benefit when a net operating loss carryforweaddts. Under this guidance, an unrecognized taefiteor a portion of an unrecognized tax
benefit, should be presented in the financial states as a reduction to a deferred tax assetriet aperating loss carryforward. This guidanc
effective for fiscal years, and interim periodshiitthose years, beginning after December 15, Z08i3. accounting guidance will result in a
reclassification of approximately $40 million frasther non-current liabilities to deferred incomeets Other than the change in presentation
within the Consolidated Balance Sheet, this acéngrguidance will not have an impact on our cortiagkd financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

3. ACQUISITIONS
2012 Acquisition

Euroway Ltd., —On August 1, 2012, we acquired all of the commonlsbf Euroway Ltd., a U.K.-based, full servicedewy, rental and
maintenance company for a purchase price of $2omifind assumed capital lease obligations andafek0 million . Approximately$2 million
of the stock purchase price has been paid ($1lamipiaid in both 2013 and in 2012), and the majaritthe capital lease obligations have been
repaid as of December 31, 2013 . The acquisitioluded Euroway's fleet of approximately 560 fullviee lease vehicles as well as 8@htraci
maintenance vehicles. As of December 31, 2013 ¢dgidloand customer relationship intangibles rela@the Euroway acquisition were $6
million and $3 million, respectively. The combined network operates utideRyder name, complementing our FMS businessaegcoverag
in the U.K. Transaction costs related to the Eusomequisition were $1 millioduring 2012 and were primarily reflected within liBey, genera
and administrative expenses" in our Consolidatete8tents of Earnings.

The purchase price included $0.5 million in congingconsideration to be paid to the seller provickerdain conditions were met by
January 31, 2014. We determined that the paymehteofontingent consideration was not probable &eoember 31, 2013 and recorded a
of $0.5 million .

2011 Acquisitions

Hill Hire plc — On June 8, 2011, we acquired all of the commorkspb&dill Hire plc (Hill Hire), a U.K. based fullexvice leasing, rental
and maintenance company for a purchase price df #2%ion , net of cash acquired, all of which was
paid in 2011. The acquisition included Hill Hirdlset of approximately 8,000 full service lease &ntD0 rental vehicles, and approximatdg
contractual customers. The fleet included 9,700etsa The combined network operates under the Ryame, complementing our business
segment market coverage in the U.K. Transactiotsaetated to the Hill Hire acquisition were $2 lioih during 2011 and were primarily
reflected within “Selling, general and administvatexpenses” in our Consolidated Statements ofiB@s.

The following table provides the final allocatedt faalues of the assets acquired and the liaksliissumed at the date of the Hill Hire
acquisition:

Assets: (In thousands
Revenue earning equipment $ 202,83°
Operating property and equipment 18,78(
Customer relationships and other intangibles 10,13¢
Other assets, primarily accounts receivable 60,17¢

291,92!

Liabilities, primarily accrued liabilities (40,439

Net assets acquired $ 251,49
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During 2012, purchase price adjustments totalechiibn and related to adjustments to the fair eatif revenue earning equipment and
liabilities assumed.

Other Acquisitions— During 2011, we completed thodieer acquisitions of full service leasing anaflservice companies, one of which
included the assets of the seller's SCS busindsscdmbined networks operate under the Ryder neoneplementing our FMS and SCS
business segment market coverage throughout tedJgtates. The purchase price of these acquisitaialed $114 million , of which $1

million , $3 million and $107 million was paid dog 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. Goodwill emstomer relationship intangibles related
to these acquisitions totaled $28 million and $ilfion , respectively. The following table providésther information regarding each of these
acquisitions:

Contractual
Company Acquired Date Acquired Segment Purchase Price Vehicles Customers
Carmenita Leasing, Inc. January 10, 2011 FMS $ 9 million 190 60
The Scully Companies January 28, 2011 FMS/SCS $91 million 2,100 200
B.I.T. Leasing April 1, 2011 FMS $14 million 490 130

Pro Forma Information- The operating results of each acquisition has beguded in the consolidated financial stateménais the dates
of acquisition. The following table provides theaudited pro forma revenues, net earnings and egrpier common share as if the results of the
Hill Hire acquisition had been included in operai@commencing January 1, 2010. This pro forma mésion is not necessarily indicative eitl
of the combined results of operations that actuatiyld have been realized had the acquisition lseesummated during the periods for which
the pro forma information is presented, or of fattesults. Pro forma information for the Eurowaguasition in 2012 and the other acquisitions
in 2011 is not disclosed because the pro formaeffethese acquisitions is not significant.

Year ended December 31,

2011
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenue — As reported $ 6,050,53
Revenue — Pro forma $ 6,118,10.
Net earnings — As reported $ 169,77
Net earnings — Pro forma $ 184,84¢
Net earnings per common share:

Basic — As reported $ 3.31

Basic — Pro forma $ 3.6(

Diluted — As reported $ 3.2¢

Diluted — Pro forma $ 3.5¢

We paid approximately $1 million and $4 million2012 and 2011 , respectively, related to otheriattpns completed in prior years. All
recent acquisitions have been accounted for as@uisition of a business.
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4. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In December 2008, we announced strategic initiatteemprove our competitive advantage and drivg{term profitable growth. As part
of these initiatives, we decided to discontinue $P&rations in South America and Europe. In 20@¢ceased SCS service operations in Brazil,
Argentina, Chile and European markets. Accordingdgults of these operations, financial positiod eash flows are separately reported as
discontinued operations for all periods presentetié Consolidated Financial Statements and nbé&sto.

Summarized results of discontinued operations asr®llows:

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Pre-tax loss from discontinued operations $ (5,450 $ (2,226 $ (1,18%)
Income tax benefit (expense) 46 11,30¢ (406)
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations, hé&o $ (5,409 $ 9,08 $ (1,59)

Results of discontinued operations in 2013 , 20422011 included $5 million , $3 million and $2 loih , respectively, of pre-tax losses
related to adverse legal developments and profeslsémd administrative fees associated with owatiBnued South American operations. As
previously disclosed, we were assessed $5 milbefofe and after tax) in prior years for certamtesbperating tax credits utilized between 2001
and 2003. During 2013, we received an adverseulmgrrelated to this matter. We incurred and gdnillion to the Brazilian tax authority to
settle all of these state operating tax-creditgsaents. Results of discontinued operations in 20d®included $1 million of pre-tax income
related to the sub-lease of a European SCS faadityell as a tax benefit of $11 million resultingm the expiration of a statute of limitations.
Results of discontinued operations in 2011 alstuged $1 million of pre-tax income from a favorapléor year insurance claim development.

The following is a summary of assets and liab#itié discontinued operations:

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
(In thousands)
Total assets, primarily deposits (included in othEsets) $ 3,627 % 4,46(
Total liabilities, primarily contingent accrualsi¢luded in other non-current liabilities) $ 4,501 $ 5,32¢

Although we discontinued our South American operetiin 2009, we continue to be party to variougfel] state and local legal
proceedings involving labor matters, tort claimd éax assessments. We have established loss provifgir any matters where we believe a loss
is probable and can be reasonably estimated. @tapiwith respect to the matters discussed belmwnbtters where a reserve has not been
established and for which we believe a loss isarasly possible, as well as for matters where aerveshas been recorded but for which an
exposure to loss in excess of the amount accrusdsonably possible, we believe that such los#esat have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements.

In Brazil, in addition to the settlement noted abdor tax years 2001 through 2003, we were prelyassessed $5 million (before and
after tax) in prior years for various federal inataxes and social contribution taxes for the 188¥ 1998 tax years. We successfully overtu
these federal tax assessments in the lower caumtgever, there is a reasonable possibility thegetralings could be reversed and we would be
required to pay the assessments. We believe ibie tikely than not that our position will ultim&gebe sustained if appealed and no amounts
have been reserved for these matters. We areeehtiitindemnification for a portion of any resultiliability on these federal tax claims which
honored, would reduce the estimated loss.
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5. RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER (RECOVERIES) CHARGES

The components of restructuring and other (recegggharges, net in 2013 , 2012 and 2011 werdlas/fo

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)
Restructuring and other (recoveries) charges, net:

Severance and employee-related (recoveries) costs $ (470 7,20¢ 3,16:
Contract termination costs — 86¢ 49:
470 8,07( 3,65¢

As mentioned in Note 29, “Segment Reporting,” aumary measure of segment financial performancéueles, among other items,
restructuring and other (recoveries) charges,Hmiever, the applicable portion of the restructgi@md other (recoveries) charges, net that
related to each segment in 2013, 2012 and 2014 agefollows:

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Fleet Management Solutions $ 470 6,44¢ 3,531
Supply Chain Solutions — 1,34¢ 124
Central Support Services — 27¢€ —
Total $ (470 8,07( 3,65¢
2013 Activity

The 2013 recoveries resulted from refining previestimates of employee severance and benefit costs.

2012 Activity

In the second quarter of 2012 , we approved atplatiminate approximately 350 employees, primarilyhe U.S., as a result of cost
containment actions. These actions have been ctadpM/orkforce reductions resulted in a a pre-taarge of $7 million . Restructuring and
other (recoveries) charges, net in 2012 also irdugkverance and employee related costs assowidttettie elimination of certain positions
assumed in the Euroway acquisition offset by bémé&fom refinements in estimates from restructudhgrges in the prior year. During 2012,
also recorded a pre-tax charge of $1 million asgediwith non-essential leased facilities assumekea Hill Hire acquisition.

2011 Activity

During 2011, we eliminated certain positions amchirated non-essential equipment contracts assumtad Hill Hire and Scully
acquisitions, which resulted in a pre-tax charg&4million .
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The following table presents a roll-forward of #etivity and balances of our restructuring reseriresuding discontinued operations for
the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 :

Deductions
Foreign
Beginning Cash Non-Cash Translation Ending
Balance Additions Payments Reduction® Adjustment Balance
(In thousands)
Year ended December 31, 2013:
Employee severance and benefits $ 3,143 84 2,29, 554 (40 34C
Contract termination costs 1,72¢ — 1,36 — (44) 31¢
Total $ 4,87¢ 84 3,66: 554 (89 65¢
Year ended December 31, 2012:
Employee severance and benefits $ 2,607 8,46( 6,711 1,307 98 3,147
Contract termination costs 2,63¢ 1,084 1,51¢ 57t 99 1,72¢
Total $ 5,24¢ 9,54¢ 8,23( 1,88z 197 4,87t

(1) Nor-cash reductions represent adjustments to the reftring reserve as actual costs were less thanimaity estimated

At December 31, 2013, the majority of outstandigsfructuring obligations are required to be pgidbcember 31, 2014 .
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6. RECEIVABLES

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Trade $ 680,34! 670,71
Direct financing leases 79,78 76,39¢
Income tax 2,92( 6,59¢
Insurance? 6,911 17,34¢
Vendor rebates 5,91¢ 5,54
Warranty claims 7,441 4,22¢
Other 11,00t 10,36t
794,32! 791,19
Allowance (16,955 (15,429
Total $ 777,37( 775,76"
(1) The 2012 balance includes $7 milliohinsurance recoveries from Superstorm Sandy.rRefdote 27, "Other Matters," for additional infmation.
7. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
December 31,
2013 2012
(In thousands)
Current deferred tax asset $ 37,43: 29,12¢
Restricted cash 10,65¢ 10z
Prepaid vehicle licenses 49,12: 46,78¢
Prepaid operating taxes 14,32: 13,32:
Prepaid real estate rent 4,507 4,351
Prepaid contract incentives 4,55¢ 4,78¢
Prepaid software maintenance costs 2,81z 3,92¢
Interest rate swap agreement — 1,318
Prepaid insurance 8,79¢ 8,81(
Prepaid sales commissions 10,03: 7,90¢
Other 17,02¢ 13,49¢
Total $ 159,26: 133,93«
8. REVENUE EARNING EQUIPMENT
Estimated December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Useful Accumulated Net Book Accumulated Net Book
Lives Cost Depreciation Value @ Cost Depreciation Value®
(In years) (In thousands)
Held for use:
Full service lease 3—12 $ 7,436,09 (2,537,07) 4,899,01 6,728,74 (2,500,78i) 4,227,96!
Commercial rental 45—12 2,210,86: (747,28) 1,463,58! 2,041,69 (660,35¢) 1,381,34.
Held for sale 439,98: (311,747 128,24 499,07: (353,76%) 145,30t
Total $ 10,086,93 (3,596,10) 6,490,83 9,269,51 (3,514,91) 5,754,60!

(1) Revenue earning equipment, net includes vehiclésriwapital leases ($54 million , less accumulated depreciation of $#tion , at December 31, 2013 and $56 million ,

less accumulated depreciation of $17 million , acBmber 31, 2012 .
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Depreciation expense was $884 million , $867 milémd $800 million in 2013 , 2012 and 2011, respelst At the end of each fiscal
year, we review residual values and useful livesegénue earning equipment. Based on the resultesé analyses, we adjust the estim
residual values and useful lives of certain clas$esvenue earning equipment effective Januarftiheofollowing year. The change in estima
residual values and useful lives increased pre#amings by approximately $30 million in 2013 congobwith 2012 , and approximately $18
million in 2012 compared with 2011 .

9. OPERATING PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

December 31,

Estimated
Useful Lives 2013 2012

(In years) (In thousands)
Land — $ 193,03: 190,35
Buildings and improvements 10 — 40 715,96! 716,74:
Machinery and equipment 3—10 595,24 578,71t
Other 3—10 120,70: 105,25!
1,624,94. 1,591,07.
Accumulated depreciation (991,11) (966,22()
Total $ 633,82t 624,85:

Depreciation expense was $73 million in both 2048 2012 , respectively, and $72 million in 2011.

10. GOODWILL

The carrying amount of goodwill attributable to leaeportable business segment with changes theeesiras follows:

Fleet Supply
Management Chain
Solutions Solutions Total

(In thousands)
Balance at January 1, 2012

Goodwill $ 216,55¢ 189,96¢ 406,52’
Accumulated impairment losses (10,32%) (18,899 (29,227
206,23 171,06¢ 377,30t
Acquisitions 6,03: — 6,03:
Purchase accounting adjustments 21t 97 31z
Foreign currency translation adjustment 32z 2438 56&
Balance at December 31, 2012
Goodwill 223,12¢ 190,30¢ 413,43
Accumulated impairment losses (10,32%) (18,899 (29,227
212,80° 171,40¢ 384,21t
Purchase accounting adjustments 377 — 371
Foreign currency translation adjustment (302 (572 (874
Balance at December 31, 2013
Goodwill 223,20« 189,73t 412,94
Accumulated impairment losses (10,329 (18,899 (29,227
$ 212,88:. 170,83 383,71

Purchase accounting adjustments in 2013 primeelbted to changes in the fair value of acquire@mee earning equipment. We did not
adjust the December 31, 2012 balance sheet asihends are not material.

We assess goodwill for impairment on April 1st atle year or more often if deemed necessary. Foamual goodwill impairment test
April 1, 2013, we performed a qualitative testdirof our reporting units. After performing thealitative assessment, we concluded it is more
likely than not that fair values are greater thamygng values and determined that quantitativerigsvas not necessary.
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)

Indefinite lived intangible assets — Trade name $ 9,08¢ 9,08¢
Finite lived intangible assets:

Customer relationship intangibles 95,68: 95,68:

Other intangibles, primarily trade name 2,25¢ 2,25¢

Accumulated amortization (35,47%) (27,860

62,45¢ 70,077

Foreign currency translation adjustment 862 1,31«

Total $ 72,40¢ 80,47¢

The Ryder trade name has been identified as havirgdefinite useful life. Customer relationshigaingibles are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated usefiddivgenerally 10 - 16 years. We recorded amonizatkpense associated with finite lived
intangible assets of approximately $8 million irL2Q 2012 and 2011 . The future amortization expdéoseach of the five succeeding years
related to all intangible assets that are curraettprded in the Consolidated Balance Sheetsimastd to be as follows at December 31, 2013 :

(In thousands)

2014 $ 6,54¢
2015 6,42¢
2016 6,42(
2017 6,42(
2018 5,94¢

Total $ 31,76

12. DIRECT FINANCING LEASES AND OTHER ASSETS

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)

Direct financing leases, net $ 320,32 315,52¢
Investments held in Rabbi Trusts 32,51¢ 22,42¢
Insurance receivables 14,93 21,69t
Debt issuance costs 16,57( 16,32:
Prepaid pension asset 23,55¢ 6,09(
Contract incentives 20,35t 17,61
Interest rate swap agreements 9,33¢ 15,41
Other 22,90¢ 19,50z

Total $ 460,50: 434,59(

79




RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

13. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Accrued Non-Current Accrued Non-Current
Expenses Liabilities Total Expenses Liabilities Total
(In thousands)

Salaries and wages $ 106,28: — 106,28: 86,77¢ — 86,77¢
Deferred compensation 2,50¢ 31,89¢ 34,40: 1,63( 24,91¢ 26,54¢
Pension benefits 3,66( 292,15! 295,81! 3,30¢ 597,27! 600,58«
Other postretirement benefits 2,414 28,37 30,78¢ 2,68: 37,91¢ 40,59¢
Insurance obligationd 125,83! 186,70( 312,53! 133,45¢ 178,71. 312,17:
Residual value guarantees — 23¢ 23¢ 1,50¢ 13C 1,63¢
Accrued rent 4,37: 3,37- 7,74F 9,24+ 9,40¢ 18,64¢
Environmental liabilities 4,51t 8,54¢ 13,06: 4,201 8,41¢ 12,61¢
Asset retirement obligations 6,144 19,40: 25,547 3,64z 17,11¢ 20,75¢
Operating taxes 94,18¢ — 94,18¢ 91,41¢ — 91,41¢
Income taxes 2,627 62,56¢ 65,19: 8,28¢ 57,59( 65,87¢
Interest 33,65« — 33,65« 35,79¢ — 35,79¢
Deposits, mainly from customers 55,85¢ 6,23¢ 62,09: 51,67 6,23¢ 57,901
Deferred revenue 15,12 — 15,12 21,55) — 21,55%
Acquisition holdbacks 2,01z — 2,012 1,63 2,67: 4,31C
Other 37,15¢ 15,56¢ 52,72 48,88¢ 8,54+ 57,43

Total $ 496,33 655,06: 1,151,39 505,70° 948,93: 1,454,63!

(1) Insurance obligations are primarily comprisefdself-insured claim liabilities.

We retain a portion of the accident risk under gkehiiability and workers’ compensation insurancegsams. Self-insurance accruals are
based primarily on actuarially estimated, undistedrtost of claims, and include claims incurredrimitreported. Such liabilities are based on
estimates. Historical loss development factorauéifized to project the future development of imeut losses, and these amounts are adjusted
based upon actual claim experience and settlemafhide we believe the amounts are adequate, ttarde no assurance that changes to our
estimates may not occur due to limitations inhenetiie estimation process. During 2013, 20122011, we recorded a benefit within earnii
from continuing operations of $5 million , $1 milfi , and $4 million , respectively, from developmienestimated prior years’ self-insured loss
reserves for the reasons noted above.
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14. INCOME TAXES

The components of earnings from continuing opemnatimefore income taxes and the provision for inctares from continuing operations
were as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)
Earnings from continuing operations before incomes:

United States $ 302,68t 241,67 223,20¢
Foreign 66,20t 61,44: 56,17¢
Total $ 368,89! 303,11° 279,38

Current tax expense (benefit) from continuing ofienzs:
Federal® $ 238 (4,157 1,61¢
State® 4,19¢ 11,51 7,78¢
Foreign 7,691 7,75¢ 8,60:
12,11¢ 15,11¢ 18,00

Deferred tax expense from continuing operations:

Federal 98,03¢ 77,81¢ 67,84¢
State 15,39¢ 3,871 17,247
Foreign 14¢€ 5,41 4,92(
113,58: 87,10 90,01¢
Provision for income taxes from continuing openasio $ 125,69¢ 102,21¢ 108,01

(1) Excludes federal and state tax benefits resultinmfthe exercise of stock options and vesting sificted stock awards, which were credited direttl“Additional paid-in
capital.”

A reconciliation of the federal statutory tax ratigh the effective tax rate from continuing opevas follows:

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Percentage of pre-tax earnings)
Federal statutory tax rate 35.C 35.C 35.C
Impact on deferred taxes for changes in tax rates 0.1 — 2.€
State income taxes, net of federal income tax litenef 4.C 4.1 3.6
Foreign rates varying from federal (4.7 (2.9 (2.9
Tax reviews and audits (0.9 (2.7 (0.9
Miscellaneous items, net (0.7 0.1 0.4
Effective tax rate 34.1 33.7 38.7
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Tax Law Changes
The effects of changes in tax laws on deferred#dances are recognized in the period the newldeigis is enacted. The following
provides a summary of the impact of changes ifaas on net earnings from continuing operationsayjurisdiction:

Tax Jurisdiction Enactment Date Net Earnings
(in thousands)

2013

Puerto Rico June 30, 2013 $(503)
United Kingdom July 17, 2013 $485
2012

United Kingdom July 17, 2012 $(856)
Canada June 20, 2012 $(671)
2011

State of Michigan May 25, 2011 $(5,350)
State of Illinois January 13, 2011 $(1,221)

Deferred Income Taxes
The components of the net deferred income taxlifabvere as follows:

December 31,
2013 2012

(In thousands)

Deferred income tax assets:

Self-insurance accruals $ 69,29 52,17"
Net operating loss carryforwards 361,13t 258,80t
Alternative minimum taxes 10,72} 9,67¢
Accrued compensation and benefits 60,03¢ 61,09t
Federal benefit on state tax positions 18,41% 17,92¢
Pension benefits 87,74¢ 204,06
Miscellaneous other accruals 39,41 39,70¢
646,76! 643,46:
Valuation allowance (33,799 (38,187
612,97t 605,27!

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Property and equipment bases difference (1,943,92) (1,734,50)
Other items (22,507 (18,71¢)
(1,966,42) (1,753,22)
Net deferred income tax liability $ (1,353,45) (1,147,94)

(1) Deferred tax assets $37 million and $29 million have been included Prépaid expenses and other current assets” at Déeer81, 2013 and 2012espectively

We do not provide for U.S. deferred income taxeseomporary differences related to our foreign inwesnts that are considered perma
in duration. These temporary differences consisaanily of undistributed foreign earnings of $60@limn at December 31, 2013 . A full foreign
tax provision has been made on these undistrifoteiyn earnings. Determination of the amount déded taxes on these temporary
differences is not practicable due to foreign teedis and exclusions.
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At December 31, 2013 , we had U.S. federal taxceffbnet operating loss carryforwards of $274 omlland various U.S. subsidiaries had
state tax effected net operating loss carryforwafd®57 million both expiring through tax year 2028e also had foreign tax effected net
operating losses of $30 million that are availdbleeduce future income tax payments in severatiti@s, subject to varying expiration rules. A
valuation allowance has been established to redefsgred income tax assets, principally foreignltess carryforwards, to amounts more likely
than not to be realized. We had unused alternatinanum tax credits, for tax purposes, of $11 miiliat December 31, 20B%ailable to reduc
future income tax liabilities. The alternative nmmim tax credits may be carried forward indefinitely

Uncertain Tax Positions

We are subject to tax audits in numerous jurisolidiin the U.S. and foreign countries. Tax auditthieir very nature are often complex
and can require several years to complete. Indh@al course of business, we are subject to ctggtefrom the Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
and other tax authorities regarding amounts ofgakes. These challenges may alter the timing omuainaf taxable income or deductions, or the
allocation of income among tax jurisdictions. Astga our calculation of the provision for incorrexes on earnings, we recognize the tax be
from uncertain tax positions that are at least ntikedy than not of being sustained upon auditgobsn the technical merits of the tax position.
The tax benefit to be recognized is measured asitgest amount of benefit that is greater thawg fiercent likely of being realized upon
ultimate settlement. Such calculations require rgameent to make estimates and judgments with regpéoe ultimate outcome of a tax audit.
Actual results could vary materially from theserastes.

The following is a summary of tax years that ardamger subject to examination:
Federal —audits of our U.S. federal income tax returns éwsed through fiscal year 2008.
State — for the majority of states, tax returns are etbthrough fiscal year 2008.

Foreign — we are no longer subject to foreign tax exanndmat by tax authorities for tax years before 200€anada, 2008 in Brazil,
2008 in Mexico and 2011 in the U.K., which are major foreign tax jurisdictions. Refer to Note BjScontinued Operations," for further
discussion on various assessments related to ouefd&outh American operations.

The following table summarizes the activity relatedinrecognized tax benefits (excluding the feldeeaefit received from state
positions):

December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Balance at January 1 $ 52,27: 62,24" 61,23¢
Additions based on tax positions related to theemiryear 7,60¢ 3,98( 3,77¢
Reductions due to lapse of applicable statutesnitation (3,069 (13,95¢) (2,765
Gross balance at December 31 56,81! 52,27: 62,24
Interest and penalties 5,75¢€ 5,31¢ 6,93:
Balance at December 31 $ 62,56¢ 57,59( 69,18(

Of the total unrecognized tax benefits, $44 milljoet of the federal benefit on state issues) sguts the amount of unrecognized tax
benefits that, if recognized, would favorably affdwe effective tax rate in future periods. Thakamount includes $5 million and $4 million of
interest and penalties, at December 31, 2013 ah® 2@spectively, net of the federal benefit @iestssues. For the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 , we recognized an incombeagfit related to interest and penalties of $lionilin each period, within “Provision for
income taxes” in our Consolidated Statements ofilBgs. Unrecognized tax benefits related to fedstate and foreign tax positions may
decrease by $3 million by December 31, 2014 , ditatare completed or tax years close during 2014 .
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Like-Kind Exchange Program

We have a like-kind exchange program for certaiowfU.S.-based revenue earning equipment. Pursoiéim program, we dispose of
vehicles and acquire replacement vehicles in a fehreby tax gains on disposal of eligible vehigesdeferred. To qualify for like-kind
exchange treatment, we exchange through a qualifiecmediary eligible vehicles being disposed @hwehicles being acquired, allowing us
generally carryover the tax basis of the vehicted §like-kind exchanges”). The program resultsaimaterial deferral of federal and state
income taxes, and a decrease in cash taxes irdparioen we are not in a net operating loss (NOLjtjpm. As part of the program, the proce
from the sale of eligible vehicles are restrictedthe acquisition of replacement vehicles andratpecified applications. Due to the structure
utilized to facilitate the like-kind exchanges, thealified intermediary that holds the proceedsifthe sales of eligible vehicles and the entity
that holds the vehicles to be acquired under tbgram are required to be consolidated in the aceoyipg Consolidated Financial Statements
in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The total assetsnarily revenue earning equipment, and the totallltaes, primarily vehicle accounts payat
held by these consolidated entities are equallirevas these entities are solely structured tditiztei the like-kind exchanges. At December 31,
2013 and 2012 , these consolidated entities hatlaesets, primarily revenue earning equipmentatadi liabilities, primarily accounts payable
of $246 million and $26 million , respectively.

In the second quarter of 2012, we began to restreieind centralize the administration of vehiclechasing, licensing and sales in orde
reduce vehicle acquisition costs as well as realrational efficiencies. During 2012, we wer@iNOL position for tax purposes and were not
realizing any benefits from the like-kind exchamgegram. As a result of those events, effectivellApr2012, we temporarily suspended the
like-kind exchange program. Once we suspendedrtigrgam, tax gains on vehicles sold during thatquevere no longer deferred. Those tax
gains resulted in an immaterial decrease in the Nkthough the suspension did not impact our 2@k2provision or capital spending program,
our cash flows increased by $19 million from thiease of the program's restricted cash.

In the first quarter of 2013, once we had completedrestructuring of the administrative procegsepurchasing and selling vehicles, we
reinstated our like-kind exchange program. Thestaiied program operates, and will provide cashégefits, in the same manner as it did prior
to suspension once we are no longer in a NOL posi®ur cash flow declined $11 milli@s a result of the program's restricted cash. There
no other impacts to cash flow as a result of tliggam's reinstatement.

84




RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

15. LEASES
Leases as Lessor

We lease revenue earning equipment to customepefards ranging from three to seven years fokswand tractors and up to ten years
for trailers. From time to time, we may also letedlities to third parties. The majority of oulakges are classified as operating leases. However
some of our revenue earning equipment leasesassifiéd as direct financing leases and, to allesdent, sales-type leases. The net investmen
in direct financing and sales-type leases consisted

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Total minimum lease payments receivable $ 633,44! 629,91¢
Less: Executory costs (198,754 (201,77)
Minimum lease payments receivable 434,69( 428,14,
Less: Allowance for uncollectibles (501 (703)
Net minimum lease payments receivable 434,18¢ 427,43
Unguaranteed residuals 57,42¢ 60,76¢
Less: Unearned income (91,499 (96,280)
Net investment in direct financing and sales-tygasés 400,11 391,92:
Current portion (79,789 (76,39
Non-current portion $ 320,32 315,52t

Our direct financing lease customers operate ifde wariety of industries, and we have no signiftcaustomer concentrations in any one
industry. We assess credit risk for all of our oustrs including those who lease equipment undectiinancing leases. Credit risk is assessed
using an internally developed model which incorpesaredit scores from third party providers andawn custom risk ratings and is update:

a monthly basis. The external credit scores areldped based on the customer’s historical paymettenms and an overall assessment of the
likelihood of delinquent payments. Our internalirgs are weighted based on the industry that temer operates, company size, years in
business, and other credit-related indicators @mfitability, cash flow, liquidity, tangible netorth, etc.). Any one of the following factors may
result in a customer being classified as high iijsthe customer has a history of late paymentshé customer has open lawsuits, liens or
judgments; iii) the customer has been in busiless than three yearand iv) the customer operates in an industry eithbarriers to entry. Fc
those customers who are designated as high riskypieally require deposits to be paid in advamcerder to mitigate our credit risk.
Additionally, our receivables are collateralizedthg vehicle’s fair value, which further mitigatagr credit risk.

The following table presents the credit risk pefily creditworthiness category of our direct firagdease receivables at December 31,
2013:

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Very low risk to low risk $ 203,55t 193,12
Moderate 164,76: 177,40(
Moderately high to high risk 66,37 57,61¢
$ 434,69 428,14.
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The following table is a rollforward of the allowanfor credit losses on direct financing leaseivadxes for the years end&gcember 3:
2013 and 2012:

(In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 903
Charged to earnings 81z
Deductions (1,012
Balance at December 31, 2012 702
Charged to earnings 20t
Deductions (407)

Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 501

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , the amountrettifinancing lease receivables which were pastvdas not significant and there
were no impaired receivables. Accordingly, thers wa material risk of default with respect to tlrect financing lease receivables as of
December 31, 2013 or 2012 .

Leases as Lessee

We lease vehicles, facilities and office equipmerder operating lease agreements. Rental paymemsrtain vehicle lease agreements
vary based on the number of miles run during thiedeGenerally, vehicle lease agreements spelét/rental payments be adjusted periodi
based on changes in interest rates and provideafty termination at stipulated values. None ofleasing arrangements contain restrictive
financial covenants.

We periodically enter into sale and leaseback &etitns to lower the total cost of funding our @tiems and to diversify our funding
among different types of funding instruments. Thesle-leaseback transactions are often executédhitt-party financial institutions not
deemed to be VIEs. In general, these sale-leasélmdactions result in a reduction in revenueiagrequipment and debt on the balance sheet,
as proceeds from the sale of revenue earning eguipane used primarily to repay debt. Sale-leadetransactions accounted for as operating
leases will result in reduced depreciation and@sieexpense and increased equipment rental expafesdid not enter into any sale-leaseback
transactions during 2013. During 2012 , we completsale-leaseback transaction of revenue earginigraent with a third party and the
leaseback was accounted for as an operating lBeseeeds from the sale-leaseback transaction dd$dl@0 million . During 2011 , we
completed a sale-leaseback transaction of revesnméng equipment with a third party and the leasklveas accounted for as a capital lease.
Proceeds from the sale-leaseback transaction dca/@ million .

Certain leases contain purchase and/or renewalraptas well as limited guarantees for a portiotheflessor’s residual value. Certain
residual value guarantees are conditional on textioin of the lease prior to its contractual le@sent The amount of residual value guarantees
expected to be paid is recognized as rent experselte expected remaining term of the lease. Radscircumstances that impact
managemens estimates of residual value guarantees incluglendirket for used equipment, the condition of tipgi@ment at the end of the le:
and inherent limitations in the estimation proc&ee Note 19, “Guarantees,” for additional inforiorat

During 2013, 2012 and 2011 , rent expense (inolpdent of facilities but excluding contingent r&s) was $ 153 million , $ 148 million ,
and $ 154 million , respectively. During 2013 , 2Ginhd 2011 contingent rental expense comprised of residallesguarantees, payments be
on miles run and adjustments to rental paymentsHanges in interest rates on all other leasechestivas $ 1 million , $1 million , and $2
million , respectively.
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Lease Payments
Future minimum payments for leases in effect atdbewer 31, 2013 were as follows:

As Lessor® As Lessee
Direct
Operating Financing Operating
Leases Leases Leases

(In thousands)

2014 $ 887,60: 105,07: 83,84«
2015 718,42 91,28: 65,93«
2016 568,15! 77,785 41,38:
2017 420,28 59,16: 25,20¢
2018 277,66! 42,02« 28,80:
Thereafter 216,44( 59,36¢ 33,47

Total $ 3,088,58 434,69( 278,64

(1) Amounts do not include contingent rentals, whicly imareceived under certain leases on the basisiles of used or changes in the Consumer Pricexn@entingent rental
from operating leases included in revenue du2013, 2012 and 2011 were $ 318 million , $ 31%ionil, and $ 303 million , respectively. Contingesntals from direct
financing leases included in revenue dur2013, 2012 , and 2011 were $ 11 million in allipds.

The amounts in the previous table related to tasdef revenue earning equipment are based up@etiezal assumption that revenue
earning equipment will remain on lease for the tergf time specified by the respective lease agesdsn The future minimum payments
presented above related to the lease of revennggaquipment are not a projection of future le@senue or expense; no effect has been ¢
to renewals, new business, cancellations, contimgerals or future rate changes.
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16. DEBT

Short-term debt and current portion of long-terrhtde
Short-term debt
Current portion of long-term debt, including capleases
Total short-term debt and current portion of loeg¥t debt
Long-term debt:
U.S. commercial papé?
Canadian commercial pagér
Global revolving credit facility
Unsecured U.S. notes — Medium-term nétes
Unsecured U.S. obligations, principally bank teaans
Unsecured foreign obligations
Capital lease obligations
Total before fair market value adjustment
Fair market value adjustment on notes subject diging ®

Current portion of long-term debt, including capleases
Long-term debt

Total debt

Weighted-Average

Interest Rate

December 31,

December 31,

(1) We had unamortized original issue discounts of $ffomand $9 million at December 31, 2013 and 2Q1@spectively
(2) The notional amount of the executed interest rai@ps designated as fair value hedges was $400miind $ 550 million at December 31, 2013 and 20&3pectively.

Refer to Note 18, "Derivatives", for additionalanfnation.

Maturities of total debt are as follows:

Thereafter

Total
Imputed interest

Present value of minimum capitalized lease payments
Current portion

Long-term capitalized lease obligation

2013 2012 Maturities 2013 2012
(In thousands)

1.7(% 2.21% 2014 $ 1,31¢ 9,82(
258,12: 358,15!¢
259,43 367,97!
0.28% 0.41% 2018 486,93¢ 329,92!
1.12% 1.1%% 2018 11,297 23,16t
—% 1.5¢% 2018 — 8,92¢
3.7¢% 4.0% 2014-2025 3,271,73 2,971,31
1.4%% 1.56% 2015-2018 55,50( 105,50(
1.9% 1.91% 2015-2016 315,55¢ 313,40¢
3.81% 4.08% 2014-2019 38,91 42,01¢
4,179,93 3,794,25:
8,171 16,72¢
4,188,111 3,810,971
(258,12Y) (358,15
3,929,98 3,452,82:
$ 4,189,42 3,820,791

Capital Leases Debt
(In thousands)

2014 $ 9,38t 251,31!
2015 8,09¢ 712,30!
2016 6,50¢ 872,99
2017 7,60z 704,27(
2018 5,801 1,185,64
4,98 415,81(
42,38( 4,142,34.

(3,46¢)

38,91

(8,129

$ 30,78¢
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Debt Facilities

We maintain a $900 million global revolving crefditility with a syndicate of twelve lending instiions led by Bank of America N.A.,
Bank of TokyoMitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., BNP Paribas, Mizuho CorporBank, Ltd., Royal Bank of Canada, Royal Bank adttmd Plc, U.S. Ban
National Association and Wells Fargo Bank, N.AQatober2013, the maturity date of the global credit facilitasvextended from June 201€
October 2018. The global facility is used primatiyfinance working capital but can also be useidgne up to $75 million in letters of credit
(there were no letters of credit outstanding addiesfacility at December 31, 2013 ). At our optithe interest rate on borrowings under the
credit facility is based on LIBOR, prime, federahfls or local equivalent rates. The agreement gusly provided for annual facility fees
ranging from 10.0 basis points to 32.5 basis poifite amended agreement provides for annual fatéés which range from 8.0 basis points to
27.5 basis points and are based on Ryder’s lomg-teedit ratings. The previous annual facility fegs 15.0 basis points. This fee was amended
to 12.5 basis points, which applies to the toteilitst size of $900 million. The credit facility contains no provisions limig its availability in thi
event of a material adverse change to Ryder’s basinperations; however, the credit facility daggain standard representations and
warranties, events of default, cross-default piows and certain affirmative and negative covendnterder to maintain availability of funding,
we must maintain a ratio of debt to consolidatedwaath of less than or equal to 300% . Net woathdefined in the credit facility, represents
shareholders' equity excluding any accumulatedr @t prehensive income or loss associated witlpension and other postretirement plans.
The ratio at December 31, 2013 was 177% . At Deeerdb, 2013 , $402 million was available underdteglit facility, net of outstanding
commercial paper borrowings.

Our global revolving credit facility enables usrédinance short-term obligations on a long-ternmisdaSettlement of short-term commercial
paper obligations not expected to require the fiseoking capital are classified as long-term ashage both the intent and ability to refinance
on a long-term basis. At December 31, 2013 and 2042classified $498 million and $353 million spectively, of short-term commercial
paper as long-term debt.

In February 2013, we issued $250 million of unsedunedium-term notes maturing in February 2019iamtbvember 2013 , we issued
$300 million of unsecured medium-term notes matuiimNovember 2018. The proceeds from these notes used to pay down commercial
paper and for general corporate purposes. If eithtte notes are downgraded following, and asaltef, a change in control, the note holders
can require us to repurchase all or a portion @fréspective notes at a purchase price equal & HdPrincipal plus accrued and unpaid
interest .

We have a trade receivables purchase and saleapnpgursuant to which we sell certain of our doinéstde accounts receivable to a
bankruptcy remote, consolidated subsidiary of Rytheat in turn sells, on a revolving basis, an aship interest in certain of these accounts
receivable to a receivables conduit or committetipasers. The subsidiary is considered a VIE andrisolidated based on our control of the
entity’s activities. We use this program to provadtiitional liquidity to fund our operations, pattiarly when it is cost effective to do so. The
costs under the program may vary based on changeteiest rates. The available proceeds that reagdeived under the program are limite
$175 million . In October 2013, we renewed theereeceivables purchase and sale program. If nat @eeurs which causes early termination,
the 364-day program will expire on October 24, 20The program contained provisions restrictingitailability in the event of a material
adverse change to our business operations or tieetduility of the collateralized receivables. Becember 31, 2013 and 2012 ,armoounts wer
outstanding under the program. Sales of receivalidsr this program will be accounted for as setba@rowings based on our continuing
involvement in the transferred assets.

On February 6, 2013, we filed an automatic shegfatration statement on Form S-3 with the Seesrind Exchange Commission. The
registration is for an indeterminate number of siies and is effective for three years. Under tiissersal shelf registration statement, we have
the capacity to offer and sell from time to timeivas types of securities, including common stqurkferred stock and debt securities, subject to
market demand and ratings status.
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17. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following tables present our assets and ligdsBlithat are measured at fair value on a recubrégis and the levels of inputs used to
measure fair value:

Fair Value Measurements
At December 31, 2013 Using

Balance Sheet Location Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(In thousands)

Assets:
Interest rate swaps DFL and other assets $ — 9,33t — 9,33:
Investments held in Rabbi Trusts:
Cash and cash equivalents 7,101 — — 7,101
U.S. equity mutual funds 16,47¢ — — 16,47¢
Foreign equity mutual funds 4,32 — — 4,32
Fixed income mutual funds 4,61¢ — — 4,61¢
Investments held in Rabbi Trusts DFL and other assets 32,51¢ — — 32,51¢
Total assets at fair value $ 32,51¢ 9,33 — 41,85:
Liabilities:
Interest rate swaps Other non-current liabilities — 1,162 — 1,162
Total liabilities at fair value $ — 1,162 — 1,16
Fair Value Measurements
At December 31, 2012 Using
Balance Sheet Location Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(In thousands)
Assets:
Interest rate swap Prepaid expenses and other
current assets $ — 1,31 — 1,31
Interest rate swaps DFL and other assets — 15,41: — 15,41%
Investments held in Rabbi Trusts:
Cash and cash equivalents 4,05¢ — — 4,05t
U.S. equity mutual funds 10,87: — — 10,87:
Foreign equity mutual funds 2,974 — — 2,974
Fixed income mutual funds 4,52¢ — — 4,52¢
Investments held in Rabbi Trusts DFL and other assets 22,42¢ — — 22,42¢
Total assets at fair value $ 22,42¢ 16,72t — 39,15!
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration Other non-current liabilities — — 47¢ 47¢
Total liabilities at fair value $ — — 47¢ 47¢
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The following table presents our assets that a@sared at fair value on a nonrecurring basis aadetels of inputs used to measure fair
value:

Fair Value Measurements Year ended
At December 31, 2013 Using December 31, 2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Losses®
Assets held for sale:
Revenue earning equipmefit:
Trucks $ — — 13,32¢ $ 9,92¢
Tractors — — 10,33¢ 4,82¢
Trailers — — 723 1,67¢
Total assets at fair value $ — — 24,38t % 16,42¢
Fair Value Measurements Year ended
At December 31, 2012 Using December 31, 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Lossed?
Assets held for sale:
Revenue earning equipméht
Trucks $ — — 14,26: $ 12,85:
Tractors — — 11,61¢ 4,05¢
Trailers — — 58t 1,48¢
Total assets at fair value $ — — 26,467 $ 18,40(

(1) Represents the portion of all revenue earning egeipt held for sale that is recorded at fair valless costs to se
(2) Total losses represent fair value adjustments fiovehicles held for sale throughout the period ¥drich fair value less costs to sell was less ttemying value.

Revenue earning equipment held for sale is stat#tedower of carrying amount or fair value lessts to sell. Losses to reflect change
fair value are presented within “Other operatingenses” in the Consolidated Statements of Earnfmystevenue earning equipment held for
sale, we stratify our fleet by vehicle type (trastdrucks and trailers), weight class, age andrattlevant characteristics and create classes of
similar assets for analysis purposes. Fair valugdesermined based upon recent market prices @otfiom our own sales experience for sales
of each class of similar assets and vehicle candiffherefore, our revenue earning equipment teglddle was classified within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy. During the years ended Deaam3t, 2013 , 2012, and 2011 , we recorded lasseslect changes in fair value of $16
million , $18 million and $9 million , respectively

Total fair value of debt (excluding capital leasdigations) at December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $4ilR8n and $ $3.99 billion ,
respectively. For publicly-traded debt, estimatefaw value are based on market prices. Sincepablicly-traded debt is not actively traded, the
fair value measurement was classified within L&vef the fair value hierarchy. For other debt, failue is estimated based on rates currently
available to us for debt with similar terms and aémng maturities. Therefore, the fair value meament of our other debt was classified within
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The carryimgaunts reported in the Consolidated Balance Slieetash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable and accounts payable approximate faievsecause of the immediate or short-term maggrivf these financial instruments.
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18. DERIVATIVES

From time to time, we enter into interest rate saa@ cap agreements to manage our fixed and valiiatielrest rate exposure and to better
match the repricing of debt instruments to thadwf portfolio of assets. We assess the risk thamgés in interest rates will have either on the
fair value of debt obligations or on the amounfutfire interest payments by monitoring changestierest rate exposures and by evaluating
hedging opportunities. We regularly monitor intémage risk attributable to both our outstandindasecasted debt obligations as well as our
offsetting hedge positions. This risk managemeotgss involves the use of analytical techniquesdyding cash flow sensitivity analysis, to
estimate the expected impact of changes in intesig=t on our future cash flows.

As of December 31, 2013, we have interest rat@swatstanding which are designated as fair vadalgés whereby we receive fixed
interest rate payments in exchange for making bbrimterest rate payments. The differential tgphiel or received is accrued and recognized as
interest expense. The following table providestaitief the swaps outstanding and the related hititgens as of December 31, 2013 :

Weighted-average variable
interest rate on hedged debt

Face value of Aggregate notionz as of December 31

medium- amount of interest
Issuance date Maturity date term notes rate swaps Fixed interest rate 2013 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

May 2011 June 2017 $350,000 $150,000 3.50% 1.44% 1.62%
February 2011 March 2015 $350,000 $150,000 3.15% 1.34% 1.66%
November 2013 November 2018  $300,000 $100,000 2.45% 1.19% —

Changes in the fair value of our interest rate saap offset by changes in the fair value of tHat destrument. Accordingly, there is no
ineffectiveness related to the interest rate swlps.location and amount of (gains) losses on dgvie instruments and related hedged items
reported in the Consolidated Statements of Earnirege as follows:

Location of (Gain) December 31
Loss Recognized in .
Fair Value Hedging Relationship Income 2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Derivative: Interest rate swap Interest expense $ (8,559 (5,119 6,41«
Hedged item: Fixed-rate debt Interest expense 8,55¢ 5,11¢ (6,419
Total $ — — _

Refer to Note 17, “Fair Value Measurements,” factbsures of the fair value and line item captibderivative instruments recorded on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

19. GUARANTEES

We have executed various agreements with thirdgsattiat contain standard indemnifications that neayiire us to indemnify a third
party against losses arising from a variety of eratsuch as lease obligations, financing agreememigonmental matters, and agreements to
sell business assets. In each of these instaregsegnt by Ryder is contingent on the other parityding about a claim under the procedures
outlined in the specific agreement. Normally, thesmedures allow us to dispute the other partigsrc Additionally, our obligations under
these agreements may be limited in terms of theuatrend/or timing of any claim. We have entered intlividual indemnification agreements
with each of our independent directors, throughcivivie will indemnify such director acting in goaaith against any and all losses, expenses
and liabilities arising out of such director’s seevas a director of Ryder. The maximum amountotéptial future payments under these
agreements is generally unlimited.

We cannot predict the maximum potential amountitidre payments under certain of these agreemestading the indemnification
agreements, due to the contingent nature of thengiat obligations and the distinctive provisiohattare involved in each individual agreement.
Historically, no such payments made by us haveshadterial adverse effect on our business. Weueettgat if a loss were incurred in any of
these matters, the loss would not have a matehedrae impact on our consolidated results of oerafbr financial position.
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At December 31, 2013 and 2012 , the maximum detexiié exposure of each type of guarantee and thespmnding liability, if any,
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets wéod@ss:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Maximum Carrying Maximum Carrying
Exposure of Amount of Exposure of Amount of
Guarantee Guarantee Liability Guarantee Liability

(In thousands)
Vehicle residual value guarantees (end of lease)ter operating

leased? $ 24,05¢ $ — 24,55¢ 11
Standby letters of credit 6,23¢ 6,23¢ 6,23¢ 6,23/
Total $ 30,29 % 6,23¢ 30,79: 6,24¢

(1) Amounts exclude contingent rentals associated nggldual value guarantees on certain vehicles luelder operating leases for which the guaranteescareditioned upon
disposal of the leased vehicles prior to the entheif lease term. At December 31, 2013 and 2@k# maximum exposure for such guarantees was appedaly $120 million
and $183 million , respectively, with $0.2 milliand $2 million recorded as a liability at Deceml3dr, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

We have provided partial end of lease term residakle guarantees as part of a sale leasebackttinsin 2012. If the sales proceeds
from the final disposition of the specified vehilere less than the residual value guarantee,ewequired to pay the difference to the lessor.
The leases expire periodically through 2019 . At&maber 31, 2013 , our maximum exposure for suchagtees was approximately $24
million . No liability has been recognized as ofdember 31, 2013 because we do not expect to paguaranteed amounts to the lessor based
on current market conditions. The payments assatiaith the end of lease term residual value guaesrhave been included in our future
minimum lease payments for leases in effect asegeinber 31, 2013 . See Note 15, "Leases," forduittiormation.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012 , we had letterseaficand surety bonds outstanding, which primayilarantee various insurance
activities as noted in the following table:

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Letters of credit $ 210,99 198,22°
Surety bonds 99,48t 95,85¢

Certain of these letters of credit and surety bandsantee insurance activities associated witlramse claim liabilities transferred in
conjunction with the sale of our automotive trangpaisiness, reported as discontinued operatiopsewvious years. To date, the insurance
claims representing per-claim deductibles payabteuthirdparty insurance policies have been paid and comtionle paid by the company t
assumed such liabilities. However, if all or a mortof the estimated outstanding assumed clainappfoximately $6 million at December 31,
2013 are unable to be paid, the third-party insunesly have recourse against certain of the outistghetters of credit provided by Ryder in
order to satisfy the unpaid claim deductibles.002 in order to reduce our potential exposuréésé claims, we drew upon an outstanding
letter of credit provided by the purchaser and tedeposit and corresponding liability, both of gthare outstanding at December 31, 2013 .
Periodically, an actuarial valuation is made inesrth better estimate the amount of outstandingrarxe claim liabilities.

20. SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAMS

In December 2013, our Board of Directors authorizethare repurchase program intended to mitigetdithtive impact of shares issued
under our various employee stock, stock optioneangloyee stock purchase plans. Under the Decenti@ [Fogram, management is
authorized to repurchase shares of common stoak amount not to exceed the number of shares isewerdployees under the Company’s
various employee stock, stock option and employeekspurchase plans from December 1, 2013 througgemMber 31, 2015. The December
2013 program limits aggregate share repurchases toore than 2 million shares of Ryder common stStlare repurchases of common stock
are made periodically in open-market transactionsae subject to market conditions, legal requénets and other factors. Management may
establish prearranged written plans for the Companter Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange A&B84 as part of the December 2013
program, which allow for share repurchases duripdeRs quarterly blackout periods as set forthhia trading plan. We did not repurchase any
shares under this program in 2013.
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In December 2011, our Board of Directors authoriaethare repurchase program intended to mitigetdithtive impact of shares issued
under our various employee stock, stock optioneangloyee stock purchase plans. Under the Deceniidr @ogram, management is
authorized to repurchase shares of common stoak amount not to exceed the number of shares isewerdployees under the Company’s
various employee stock, stock option and employeekspurchase plans from December 1, 2011 througgemMber 13, 2013. The December
2011 program limits aggregate share repurchases toore than 2 million shares of Ryder common stBeking 2012, we repurchased and
retired 543,923 shares under this program at areggte amount of $26 millionWe did not repurchase any shares under this pnogr 2013 ¢
2011.

In December 2009, our Board of Directors authoriaéao-year anti-dilutive share repurchase progreime. December 2009 program
limited aggregate share repurchases to no more2inaitiion shares of Ryder common stock. During 20&e repurchased and retired 1,175,783
shares under this program at an aggregate cos9ainfillion .

21. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The Comprehensive income (loss) presents a meakalechanges in shareholders’ equity except fanges resulting from transactions
with shareholders in their capacity as shareholdérs following summary sets forth the componefi@osumulated other comprehensive loss,
net of tax:

Accumulated

Currency Other
Translation Net Actuarial Prior Service Transition Unrealized Comprehensive
Adjustments Loss® Credit® Obligation® Gain on Derivatives Loss

(In thousands)

January 1, 2011 $ 45,987 (428,53 5,917 34 — (376,599
Amortization — 13,14¢ (1,62 (22 — 11,50¢
Current period change (17,769 (184,30)) — — — (202,069
December 31, 2011 28,21¢ (599,687 4,291 12 — (567,16Y
Amortization — 20,31¢ (1,657 — — 18,65¢
Current period change 29,62¢ (68,757 — — 12 (39,119
December 31, 2012 57,84¢ (648,129 2,63¢ 12 12 (587,619
Amortization — 22,83: (1,340 (12 — 21,48(
Current period change (22,079 147,41 2,46¢ — 94 127,89:
December 31, 2013 $ 35,76¢ (477,88) 3,76( — 10€ (438,249

(1) These amounts are included in the computation Dp@eodic pension cost. See Note 24, "Employeefd?lans,” for further information.

The loss from currency translation adjustments0ib3of $22 million was due to the weakening of @@madian Dollar compared to the U.S.
Dollar, which was partially offset by the strengthg of the British Pound. The currency transla@aijustment in 2012 of $30 million reflects
the strengthening of the Canadian Dollar and thiésBrPound against the U.S. Dollar. The loss fanrency translation adjustments in 2011 of
$18 million was due to the weakening of the Carmadallar compared to the U.S. Dollar.
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22. EARNINGS PER SHARE INFORMATION
The following table presents the calculation ofibasid diluted earnings per common share from nairtg operations:

Years ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Earnings per share — Basic:

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Earnings from continuing operations $ 243,19 200,89¢ 171,36¢
Less: Distributed and undistributed earnings atle¢do nonvested stock (2,179 (2,56¢€) (2,75))
Earnings from continuing operations available tmown shareholders — Basic $ 241,02 198,33 168,61
Weighted average common shares outstanding— Basic 51,617 50,44¢ 50,50(
Earnings from continuing operations per commoneharBasic $ 4.67 3.9¢ 3.34
Earnings per share — Diluted:

Earnings from continuing operations $ 243,19¢ 200,89¢ 171,36¢
Less: Distributed and undistributed earnings atiedtdo nonvested stock (2,159 (2,55€) (2,737)
Earnings from continuing operations available tmown shareholders — Diluted $ 241,03 198,34! 168,63
Weighted average common shares outstanding— Basic 51,617 50,44¢ 50,50(
Effect of dilutive equity awards 454 291 37¢
Weighted average common shares outstanding— Diluted 52,07: 50,74( 50,87¢
Earnings from continuing operations per commoneharDiluted $ 4.6 3.91 3.31
Anti-dilutive equity awards and market-based resireé stocks rights not included above 788 2,27¢ 1,51¢

23. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The following table provides information on shageséd compensation expense and income tax beresfigrized in 2013 , 2012 and
2011:

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Stock option and stock purchase plans $ 8,30¢ 9,46¢ 9,49
Nonvested stock 11,00° 9,39t 7,92¢
Share-based compensation expense 19,31( 18,86¢ 17,42:
Income tax benefit (6,224 (6,309 (5,799
Share-based compensation expense, net of tax $ 13,08¢ 12,55¢ 11,62¢

Total unrecognized pre-tax compensation expenagerkto share-based compensation arrangementsatber 31, 2013 w22 million
and is expected to be recognized over a weightedage period of approximately 1.60 years. The faialalue of equity awards vested during
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 , and@&EL$12 million , $12 million and $23 millionespectively.
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Share-Based Incentive Awards

Share-based incentive awards are provided to emetoynder the terms of various share-based contfmenpkans (collectively, the
“Plans”). The Plans are administered by the Comgtémrs Committee of the Board of Directors. Awardslier the Plans principally include at-
the-money stock options, nonvested stock and caahda. Nonvested stock awards include grants oketdrased, performance-based, and
time-vested restricted stock rights. Under the geofrour Plans, dividends may be paid on our stgtions and nonvested stock awards. We
have historically paid dividends on nonvested simekrds but not on our stock option awards. Divitbeon nonvested stock granted after 2011
are not paid unless the award vests. Upon vegtieggmount of the dividends paid is equal to ttgregpte dividends declared on common
shares during the period from the date of grath@faward until the date the shares underlyingithard are delivered. For grants prior to 2012 ,
participants are entitled to non-forfeitable divideequivalents on such awarded shares, but thestknsfer of these shares is restricted during
the vesting period. There are 2.6 million shareb@ired and available to be granted under thesPdarof December 31, 2013 .

A majority of share-based compensation expenserisrgted from stock options. Stock options are dswahich allow employees to
purchase shares of our stock at a fixed price kStption awards are granted at an exercise prigaléq the market price of our stock at the t
of grant. These awards, which generally vest oird-dach year, are fully vested three years froengitant date. The stock options granted in
2013 have contractual terms of ten years and siptikns granted in 2012 and 2011 have contractualg of seven years.

Restricted stock awards are nonvested stock rightsare granted to employees and entitle the htddghares of common stock as the
award vests. Time-vested restricted stock rigipgally vest in three years regardless of comparjopmance. The fair value of the time-vested
awards is determined and fixed on the grant degedan Ryder’s stock price on the date of grant.

During 2013, performance-based restricted stockdsvaere granted, which include a performance-bassting condition. The awards
are segmented into three performance periods gftaoeand three years. For these awards, 25% - X#5be awards may be earned based on
Ryder's 2013 adjusted return on capital (ROC) nredsagainst a ROC target. If earned, employeegedgbive the grant of stock three years
after the grant date, provided they continue termgloyed with Ryder, subject to Compensation Cotemiapproval. The fair value of the
performance-based restricted stock awards is detechand fixed on the grant date based on Rydertk price on the date of grant. Share-
based compensation expense is recognized on ghdtliie basis over the vesting period, based uperprobability that the performance target
will be met. During 2013, 31,000 performance-basstricted stock rights were also awarded undePthes for which the annual ROC target
will be determined in future years. These awardkhei considered granted under accounting guidésrcgtock compensation once the
Compensation Committee approves the annual RO@ttargl communicates the terms of the awards teetipients.

Market-based restricted stock awards include a etddsed vesting provision. The awards are segmentedhree performance periods
one, two and three years. At the end of each pagbce period, 25% - 125% of the award may be edrvaseld on Ryder's total shareholder
return (TSR) compared to the target TSR of a pemrgover the applicable performance period. Fer2®l3 awards, Ryder's TSR will be
compared to the TSR of a custom peer group. Fa2@ie@ awards, Ryder's TSR will be compared to tBR of the S&P 500. If earned,
employees will receive the grant of stock at the efithe relevant three year performance periodigeal they continue to be employed with
Ryder, subject to Compensation Committee apprdved.fair value of the markdtased awards is determined on the date of gransdrased o
the likelihood of Ryder achieving the market-baseddition. Share-based compensation expense anahest-based restricted stock awards is
recognized regardless of whether the awards vest.

Certain employees also received market-based eeatis as part of our long-term incentive compensgtrogram. The cash awards have
the same vesting provisions as the market-baséitted stock rights granted in the respective gecept that, for 2011, Ryder's TSR must at
least meet the TSR of the 33rd percentile of th® S0 . The cash awards are accounted for astljadivards as the awards are based upon the
performance of our common stock and are settleash. As a result, the liability is adjusted tdaef fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The fair value of the cash awards was @séichusing a lattice-based option pricing valuatiadel that incorporates a Monte-Carlo
simulation. The liability related to the cash avgawehs $2 million and $4 million at December 31,2@hd December 31, 2012 , respectively.
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The following table is a summary of compensatiopesse recognized related to cash awards in additishare-based compensation
expense reported in the previous table.

Years ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)

Cash awards $ 99¢ 1,09¢ 1,88

We grant restricted stock units (RSUs) to non-manant members of the Board of Directors. Once gthrRSUs are eligible for non-
forfeitable dividend equivalents but have no votiigts. The fair value of the awards is determiard fixed on the grant date based on Ryder’s
stock price on the date of grant. The board memdimzives the RSUs upon their departure from theddae initial grant of RSUs will not ve
unless the director has served a minimum ofy@a. When the board member receives the RSUsatleeedeemed for an equivalent numbe
shares of our common stock. Share-based compemsxii@nse is recognized for RSUs in the year tHésRfe granted.

Option Awards
The following is a summary of option activity undrmr stock option plans as of and for the year driglecember 31, 2013 :

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Shares Price Term Intrinsic Value
(In thousands) (In years) (In thousands)
Options outstanding at January 1 3,14¢ % 46.3¢
Granted 391 58.2i
Exercised (1,730 45.2¢
Forfeited or expired (92 49.5¢
Options outstanding at December 31 1,717 $ 49.9¢ 49 $ 40,86:
Vested and expected to vest at December 31 1,65 $ 49.7°F 45 $ 39,73(
Exercisable at December 31 83¢ $ 45.3¢ 32 % 25,28t

The aggregate intrinsic values in the table abepeasent the total pre-tax intrinsic value (théetgénce between the market price of our
stock on the last trading day of the year and deeaése price, multiplied by the number of in-thesay options) that would have been received
by the option holders had all option holders exsaditheir options at year-end. The amount charasedoon the fair market value of our stock.

Information about options in various price rangeBecember 31, 2013 follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Average
Remaining Weighted- Weighted-
Contractual Average Exercise Average Exercise
Price Ranges Shares Term Price Shares Price
(In thousands) (In years) (In thousands)
Less than $45.00 354 2.9 $ 33.14 354 $ 33.14
45.00-50.00 412 4.1 49.3¢ 254 49.3¢
50.00-55.00 413 4.9 53.5i 128 53.4i
55.00 and over 538 6.9 58.7¢ 153 60.07
Total 1,717 4.9 $ 49.9¢ 889 $ 45.3¢
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Restricted Stock Awards
The following is a summary of the status of Rydesvested restricted stock awards as of and &ydlar ended December 31, 2013 :

Time-Vested Market-Based Vested Performance-Based Vested

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

(In thousands) (In thousands) (In thousands)

Nonvested stock outstanding at January 1 440 $ 49.1¢ 387 $ 25.3¢ — $ —
Granted 162 58.3¢ 23 53.6¢€ 16 58.2i
Vested (58) 40.1¢ — — — —
Forfeited (10) 58.8¢ (205) 20.1¢ (1) 58.21
Nonvested stock outstanding at December 31 534 $ 52.5¢ 205 $ 33.71 15 $ 58.27

Stock Purchase Plan

We maintain an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ES®i)h enables eligible participants in the U.S1 &anada to purchase full or
fractional shares of Ryder common stock throughgdhgieductions of up to 15% of eligible compensatiThe ESPP provides for quarterly
offering periods during which shares may be puretiag 85% of the fair market value on either ths fir the last trading day of the quarter,
whichever is less. Stock purchased under the ESRP generally be held for 90 days. The amount afeshauthorized to be issued under the
existing ESPP was 4.5 million at December 31, 20I3ere were 0.5 million unused shares availableetpurchased under the ESPP at
December 31, 2013 .

The following table summarizes the status of Ry&l&SPP:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Shares Price Term Intrinsic Value
(In thousands) (In years) (In thousands)
Outstanding at January 1 — $ —
Granted 194 48.7:
Exercised (194) 48.7:
Forfeited or expired — —
Outstanding at December 31 —  $ — — % —
Exercisable at December 31 —  $ — — % —

Share-Based Compensation Fair Value Assumptions

The fair value of each option award is estimatethendate of grant using a Black-Scholes-Mertotioogpricing valuation model that uses
the weighted-average assumptions noted in the bedbbav. Expected volatility is based on historicalatility of our stock and implied volatility
from traded options on our stock. The risie rate for periods within the contractual lifetlte stock option award is based on the yield eunfve
zero-coupon U.S. Treasury bond on the date thé& stoiion award is granted with a maturity equathte expected term of the stock option
award. We use historical data to estimate stocloomxercises and forfeitures within the valuatiwodel. The expected term of stock option
awards granted is derived from historical exereigeerience under the share-based employee comjpenaaingements and represents the
period of time that stock option awards grantedesqeected to be outstanding. The fair value of midnksed restricted stock awards is estim
using a lattice-based option-pricing valuation mdbat incorporates a Montarlo simulation. Estimates of fair value are mdénded to predi
actual future events or the value ultimately resliby employees who receive equity awards, ancesuiesit events are not indicative of the
reasonableness of the original estimates of fdirevmade by Ryder.
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The following table presents the weighted-averagaimptions used for options granted:

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Option plans:
Expected dividends 2.1% 2.2% 2.2%
Expected volatility 35.1% 40.7% 38.7%
Risk-free rate 0.7% 0.6% 1.7%
Expected term in years 4.3 years 3.7 years 3.6 years
Grant-date fair value $13.97 $14.07 $12.88
Purchase plan:
Expected dividends 2.2% 2.7% 2.4%
Expected volatility 28.0% 32.7% 32.8%
Risk-free rate 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Expected term in years 0.25 years 0.25 years 0.25 years
Grant-date fair value $11.73 $9.53 $10.21

Exercise of Employee Stock Options and Purchase Pia

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arid&4 $30 million , $6 million , and
$9 million , respectively. The total cash receifexnin employees as a result of exercises undehaftkesbased employee compensation
arrangements for the years ended December 31,, 212 and 2011 was $87 million , $28 million , &38 million , respectively. In
connection with these exercises, the tax bendditeated from share-based employee compensatamgaments were $4 million , $1 million ,
and $1 million for the years ended December 3132@D12 , and 2011 , respectively.

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Pension Plans

We historically sponsored several defined benefitgion plans covering most employees not coverathimn-administered plans,
including certain employees in foreign countriese3e plans generally provided participants withefienbased on years of service and career-
average compensation levels. The funding policyHese plans is to make contributions based onaseuvice costs plus amortization of
unfunded past service liability, but not greaterttthe maximum allowable contribution deductiblefémeral income tax purposes. We may,
from time to time, make voluntary contributionsotar pension plans, which exceed the amount reqbyestatute. The majority of the plans’
assets are invested in a master trust that, in mvested primarily in commingled funds whosedstments are listed stocks and bonds. As
discussed under the Pension Amendments sectiohaweefrozen all of our major defined benefit pengitans.

We have a non-qualified supplemental pension pieering certain U.S. employees, which providedrioremental pension payments
from our funds so that total pension payments etiigahmounts that would have been payable fronponcipal pension plans if it were not for
limitations imposed by income tax regulations. Beerued pension liability related to this plan 44 million and $46 million at December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Pension Expense
Pension expense from continuing operations was|msvs:

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Company-administered plans:
Service cost $ 15,99: 15,47¢ 14,71¢
Interest cost 89,68: 94,60¢ 97,52¢
Expected return on plan assets (106,15() (96,342) (101,809
Census data adjustment 3,90¢ — —
Amortization of:
Transition obligation (20) — (32)
Net actuarial loss 35,30: 31,20( 20,22¢
Prior service credit (1,81%) (2,275 (2,27¢)
36,89: 42,66 28,35¢
Union-administered plans 11,22¢ 6,74¢ 5,98¢
Net pension expense $ 48,11¢ 49,41 34,34
Company-administered plans:
u.s. $ 37,63¢ 38,99: 28,97
Foreign (749 3,67¢ (615)
36,89:. 42,66 28,35¢
Union-administered plans 11,22¢ 6,74¢ 5,98¢
$ 48,11¢ 49,41 34,34°

In the fourth quarter of 2013 , we determined ¢ertansus data used to actuarially determine theexa our pension benefit obligations
for the years 1998 to 2012 was inaccurate. We decba one-time, non-cash charge of $4 millionieradjustment of our pension benefit
obligation. We recorded the cumulative adjustmeittiinv"Selling, general and administrative expetise®ur Consolidated Statement of
Earnings as the impact of revising our pension fiieoigligation was not material to our consolidafethncial statements in any individual prior

period, and the cumulative amount is not mateai@@13 results.

The following table sets forth the weighted-averageiarial assumptions used for Ryder’s pensionsgla determining annual pension

expense:
U.S. Plans Foreign Plans
Years ended December 31, Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Discount rate 4.10% 4.90% 5.70% 4.43% 4.76% 5.55%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 3.55% 3.54% 3.55%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 6.80% 7.05% 7.45% 6.57% 6.00% 6.84%
Transition amortization in years — — — — 1 1
Gain and loss amortization in years 23 24 25 26 27 27

The return on plan assets assumption reflects #ighted-average of the expected long-term ratestofn for the broad categories of
investments held in the plans. The expected teng-rate of return is adjusted when there aredomahtal changes in expected returns or in

allocation strategies of the plan assets.
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Pension Amendments

In past years, we made amendments to defined beetfement plans which froze the retirement biaébr non-grandfathered and
certain non-union employees in the U.S., Canadatantinited Kingdom (U.K.). As a result of theseegmiments, non-grandfathered plan
participants ceased accruing benefits under thregdaof the respective amendment effective datdagdn receiving an enhanced benefit under
a defined contribution plan. All retirement berefitarned as of the amendment effective date whyepfeserved and will be paid in accordance
with the plan and legal requirements. There wasaterial impact to our financial condition and aarg results from the plan amendments.

Obligations and Funded Status
The following table sets forth the benefit obligais, assets and funded status associated witreogign plans:

December 31,
2013 2012

(In thousands)

Change in benefit obligations:

Benefit obligations at January 1 2,207,42. 1,967,58i
Service cost 15,99: 15,47¢
Interest cost 89,68: 94,60t
Actuarial (gain) loss (129,259 189,93t
Benefits paid (82,120 (76,742
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 3,03¢ 16,55’

Benefit obligations at December 31 2,104,74 2,207,42.

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at January 1 1,612,92 1,418,04.
Actual return on plan assets 201,01¢ 174,65(
Employer contribution 96,18: 81,11¢
Participants’ contributions 3 52
Benefits paid (82,120 (76,742
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 4,47¢ 15,80¢

Fair value of plan assets at December 31 1,832,49i 1,612,92

Funded status (272,259 (594,49

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance tSteamsisted of:
December 31,
2013 2012
(In thousands)

Noncurrent asset 23,55¢ 6,09(

Current liability (3,660 (3,309

Noncurrent liability (292,159 (597,27
Net amount recognized (272,259 (594,49
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehiensss (pre-tax) consisted of:

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Transition obligation $ — (20
Prior service credit (2,159 (3,077
Net actuarial loss 745,35¢ 1,007,31!
Net amount recognized $ 743,20: 1,004,21

In 2014 , we expect to recognize approximately $ilam of the prior service credit and $25 milliari the net actuarial loss as a compol
of pension expense.

The following table sets forth the weighted-averageiarial assumptions used in determining funtiztlis

U.S. Plans Foreign Plans
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Discount rate 5.00% 4.10% 4.58% 4.43%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.00% 4.00% 3.09% 3.55%

At December 31, 2013 and 2018ur pension obligations (accumulated benefitgattions (ABO) and projected benefit obligations (BE
greater than the fair value of related plan adsetsur U.S. and foreign plans were as follows:

U.S. Plans Foreign Plans Total
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Accumulated benefit obligations $ 1,628,40 1,747,611 445,99 418,24! 2,074,401 2,165,85!
Plans with ABO in excess of plan assets:

PBO $ 1,656,08 1,786,02! 9,30: 83,61¢ 1,665,38! 1,869,64.

ABO $ 1,628,40 1,747,611 7,74( 80,46¢ 1,636,14 1,828,07:

Fair value of plan assets $ 1,369,57. 1,202,56! — 66,49: 1,369,57. 1,269,05!
Plans with PBO in excess of plan assets:

PBO $ 1,656,08 1,786,02! 9,30: 83,61¢ 1,665,38! 1,869,64.

ABO $ 1,628,40 1,747,611 7,74C 80,64¢ 1,636,14 1,828,25:

Fair value of plan assets $ 1,369,57. 1,202,56! — 66,49: 1,369,57. 1,269,05!

Plan Assets

Our pension investment strategy is to generatéahriate of return that is sufficient, coupled wétkisting assets and funding contributions,
to support payment of the ongoing plan obligatiaith an acceptable, appropriate and reasonablé dévetal asset-liability risk. The plans
utilize several investment strategies, includintivety and passively managed equity and fixed ine@tnategies. The investment policy
establishes targeted allocations for each ass&d that incorporate measures of asset and liakigkg. Deviations between actual pension plan
asset allocations and targeted asset allocatioguotr as a result of investment performance &adges in the funded status from time to
time. Rebalancing of our pension plan asset piotfos evaluated periodically and rebalanced ifialcéllocations exceed an acceptable range.
U.S. plans account for approximately 75% of oualtpension plan assets. Equity securities primamidjude investments in both domestic and
international common collective trusts and publithded equities. Fixed income securities primangtude domestic collective trusts and
corporate bonds. Other types of investments inciutlate equity fund-of-funds and hedge fund-ofdsnEquity and fixed income securities in
our international plans include actively and paslsivnanaged mutual funds.

In the fourth quarter of 2012 , we modified our UpBnsion investment policy and strategy to redheeeffects of future volatility on the
fair value of our pension assets relative to ourspmn liabilities as a result of an asset-liabitudy. Under the new strategy, we increase our
allocation of high quality, longer-term fixed incemecurities and reduce our allocation of equidtments as the funded status of the plan
improves.
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The following table presents the fair value of eawdjor category of pension plan assets and thé ¢éweputs used to measure fair value
of December 31, 2013 and 2012 :

Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2013

Asset Category Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(In thousands)
Equity securities:

U.S. companies $ 63,34¢ 63,34¢ — —

U.S. common collective trusts 406,35¢ — 406,35t —

Foreign common collective trusts 431,93 — 431,93 —
Fixed income securities:

Corporate bonds 59,911 — 59,91' —

Common collective trusts 794,43 — 794,43 —
Private equity and hedge funds 76,49¢ — — 76,49¢
Total $ 1,832,49i 63,34¢ 1,692,64 76,49¢

Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2012

Asset Category Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(In thousands)
Equity securities:

U.S. companies $ 76,66( 76,66( — —

U.S. common collective trusts 471,50« — 471,50« —

Foreign common collective trusts 497,31! — 497,31! —
Fixed income securities:

Corporate bonds 61,57: — 61,57: —

Common collective trusts 434,67( — 434,67( —
Private equity and hedge funds 71,20° — — 71,20°
Total $ 1,612,92 76,66( 1,465,06! 71,20°

The following is a description of the valuation imedologies used for our pension assets as wdtlealevel of input used to measure fair
value:

Equity securities— These investments include common and preferreétsied index common collective trusts that tracB.ldnd foreigi
indices. Fair values for the common and prefertedks were based on quoted prices in active magketsvere therefore classified within Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy. The common colleetikusts were valued at the unit prices establislyatie fundssponsors based on the fair ve
of the assets underlying the funds. Since the whitise funds are not actively traded, the faiueaineasurements have been classified within
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Fixed income securities- These investments include investment grade bohdsS. issuers from diverse industries, governnienters,
index common collective trusts that track the BayslAggregate Index and other fixed income invests@rimarily mortgage-backed
securities). Fair values for the corporate bondswalued using third-party pricing services. Theserces determine prices utilizing market
income models which factor in, where applicablensactions of similar assets in active marketasaetions of identical assets in infrequent
markets, interest rates, bond or credit defaulpssyaeads and volatility. Since the corporate ba@mdsiot actively traded, the fair value
measurements have been classified within LeveltBeofair value hierarchy. The common collectivests were valued at the unit prices
established by the funds’ sponsors based on thedhie of the assets underlying the funds. Siheauhits of the funds are not actively traded,
the fair value measurements have been classifigdnalievel 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The otiarestments are not actively traded and fair
values are estimated using bids provided by brokieralers or quoted prices of similar securitieth wimilar characteristics or pricing models.
Therefore, the other investments have been cledsifithin Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Private equity and hedge funds These investments represent limited partnerstigrésts in private equity and hedge funds. The
partnership interests are valued by the genertthgrarbased on the underlying assets in each Turlimited partnership interests are valued
using unobservable inputs and have been classifithch Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The following table presents a summary of changéle fair value of the pension plans’ Level 3 &sfar the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012 :

2013 2012
(In thousands)

Beginning balance at January 1 $ 71,20° 68,54:
Return on plan assets:

Relating to assets still held at the reporting date 4,25¢ (55))

Relating to assets sold during the period 2,19¢ 5,99(

Purchases, sales, settlements and expenses (1,160 (2,775

Ending balance at December 31 $ 76,49¢ 71,20°

The following table details pension benefits expddb be paid in each of the next five fiscal yeard in aggregate for the five fiscal years
thereafter:

(In thousands,

2014 $ 94,44¢
2015 98,89:
2016 105,00t
2017 109,68:
2018 115,41
2019-2023 649,05!

For 2014 , required pension contributions to ourgien plans are estimated to be $75 million .

Multi-employer Plans

We also participate in multi-employer plans thaiyide defined benefits to certain employees covesedollectivebargaining agreemen
Such plans are usually administered by a boartusfaes comprised of the management of the patingocompanies and labor representatives.
The net pension cost of these plans is equal tartheal contribution determined in accordance wighprovisions of negotiated labor contracts.
Assets contributed to such plans are not segregatettherwise restricted to provide benefits oolyptr employees. The risks of participating in
these multi-employer plans are different from sgagimployer plans in the following respects: 1) esesentributed to the multi-employer plan by
one employer may be used to provide benefits td@raps and former employees of other participagimployers; 2) if a participating employ
is no longer able to contribute to the plan, thiinded obligations of the plan may be borne byrémeaining participating employers at annual
contribution rates under the collective bargairaggeements; 3) if there is a mass withdrawal o$turtially all employers from the plan, we
may be required to pay that plan an annual cortabuased on historical contribution levels asspribed by federal statute; and 4) if we chc
to stop participating in some of our multi-emplopéains, we may be required to pay those plans auatiased on the underfunded status of
the plan, which is referred to as a withdrawaliligh

During 2013, we recorded estimated pension settieicharges of $3 million for the exit from a UnRulti-employer pension plan and the
restructured agreement with another U.S. multi-exygal pension plan. These charges were recordethwiBelling, general, and administrative
expenses" in our Consolidated Statement of Earrangds included in the Union-administered plarzesse.
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Our participation in these plans is outlined in thigle below. Unless otherwise noted, the mostteeension Protection Act zone status
available in 2013 and 2012 is for the plan yeadedrDecember 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 ,atesge. The zone status is based on
information that we received from the plan. Amortigen factors, plans in the red zone are generadly than sixty-five percent funded, plans in
the yellow zone are less than eighty percent fupdied plans in the green zone are at least eigityept funded.

Pension Protection Act

Zone Status Ryder Contributions
Employer FIP/RP Status Expiration Date(s) of
Identification Pending/ Surcharge Collective-Bargaining
Pension Fund Number 2013 2012 Implemented” 2013 2012 2011 Imposed Agreement(s)

(Dollars in thousands)
Western Conference

Teamsters 916145047 Green Green No $ 2,18( 1,94: 1,85t No 6/30/14 to 4/1/16
IAM National 51-603129¢ Green Green No 2,987 2,03¢ 1,794 No 4/30/14 to 3/31/17
Automobile Mechanics

Local No. 701 36-6042061 Red Red RP Adopted 1,53( 1,527 1,20: Yes 10/31/14 to 5/31/16
International Association of

Machinists Motor City 38-623714< Red® Red? RP adopted 55¢ 437 392 No 1/31/14 to 3/31/16
Central States Southeast and

Southwest Areas 36-604424: Red Red RP adopted 22€ 22€ 182 No 10/31/15 to 5/31/17
Other funds 92¢ 57t 562

Total contributions 8,40¢ 6,74¢ 5,08¢

Pension settlement charges 2,82( _ _

Union-administered plans $11,22¢ 6,74¢ 5,98¢

(1) The “FIP/RP Status Pending/Implemented” column @adés plans for which a financial improvement pl&tP) or a rehabilitation plan (RP) is either pemdj or has been
implemented.
(2) Plan years ended June 30, 2012 and 2!

Our contributions are impacted by changes in cotued contributions rates as well as changes imtimeber of employees covered by €
plan. Our contributions to the International Assaticin of Machinists Motor City Pension Fund repreed more than 5% of the total plan
contributions for the plan year ended June 30, 2012

Savings Plans

Employees who do not actively participate in pengitans and are not covered by union-administelausgare generally eligible to
participate in enhanced savings plans. These planvéde for (i) a company contribution even if emy#es do not make contributions, (i) a
company match of employee contributions of eligjtdg, subject to tax limits and (iii) a discretiopaompany match. Savings plan costs tot
$35 million in 2013, $33 million in 2012 , and $B8llion in 2011 .

Deferred Compensation and Long-Term Compensation Bhs

We have deferred compensation plans that perngibédiU.S. employees, officers and directors tedafportion of their compensation.
The deferred compensation liability, including Rydeatching amounts and accumulated earnings, tbfdé million and $27 million at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

We have established grantor trusts (Rabbi Trustpjdvide funding for benefits payable under thepdemental pension plan, deferred
compensation plans and long-term incentive comgiemsplans. The assets held in the trusts at Deee®ib 2013 and 2012 amounted to $35
million and $26 million , respectively. The Rabbiu$ts’ assets consist of short-term cash invessraard a managed portfolio of equity
securities, including our common stock. These assetept for the investment in our common storjrecluded in Direct financing leases ai
other assets” because they are available to o@rgleereditors in the event of insolvency. The Bgsécurities are classified as trading securities
and stated at fair value. Both realized and urzedlgains and losses are included in “Miscellanémame, net.” The Rabbi Trusts’ investment
of $2 million and $4 million in our common stock&cember 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively, isctdtl at historical cost and recorded
against shareholders’ equity.
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Other Postretirement Benefits

We sponsor plans that provide retired U.S. and @ianamployees with certain healthcare and liferiasce benefits. Substantially all
U.S. and Canadian employees not covered by uniotnirégtered health and welfare plans are eligibtetie healthcare benefits. Healthcare
benefits for our principal plan are generally pd®d to qualified retirees under age 65 and eligieleendents. This plan requires employee
contributions that vary based on years of servickiaclude provisions that limit our contributiori&ffective January 1, 2014, we made
amendments to our healthcare benefits for earigeest which modified future eligibility requiremarfor non-grandfathered retirees in the U.S.
The post-retirement medical plan was closed on Déee 31, 2013 to participants who were not at lagset52 with 12 years of service as of
December 31, 2013.

Total postretirement benefit expense was as follows

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Service cost $ 981 1,09t 1,29¢
Interest cost 1,58( 1,98( 2,50¢
Amortization of:
Net actuarial (gain) loss (14) (20 231
Prior service credit (237) (237) (237)
Postretirement benefit expense $ 2,31¢ 2,82 3,79
u.s. $ 1,62¢ 2,14: 3,15¢
Foreign 691 682 642
$ 2,31¢ 2,82¢ 3,791

The following table sets forth the weighted-averdigeount rates used in determining annual pogtragnt benefit expense:

U.S. Plan Foreign Plan
Years ended December 31, Years ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Discount rate 4.10% 4.90% 5.70% 4.00% 4.50% 5.25%

Our postretirement benefit plans are not fundea. foHowing table sets forth the benefit obligasamssociated with our postretirement
benefit plans:

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)

Benefit obligations at January 1 $ 40,59¢ 42,99:
Service cost 981 1,09t
Interest cost 1,58( 1,98(
Actuarial gain (9,339 (1,740
Benefits paid (2,515 (3,947
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (52%) 22t

Benefit obligations at December 31 $ 30,78t¢ 40,59¢

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance tSteamsisted of:

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Current liability $ 2,41¢ 2,68:
Noncurrent liability 28,37 37,91¢

Amount recognized $ 30,78¢ 40,59¢
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other compretierisss (pre-tax) consisted of:

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Prior service credit $ (4,98¢) (1,307)
Net actuarial gain (6,239 (859)
Net amount recognized $ (11,22 (2,16¢)

In 2014 , we expect to recognize approximately $fam of the prior service credit as a componehpaostretirement benefit expense. The
amount of net actuarial gain we expect to recogim2914 as a component of total postretiremeneéfieexpense is not material.

Our annual measurement date is December 31 forlb@hand foreign postretirement benefit plans.ufgstions used in determining
accrued postretirement benefit obligations werlokmws:

U.S. Plan Foreign Plan
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Discount rate 5.0(% 4.1(% 4.8(% 4.0%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.0(% 4.0(% 3.0(% 3.5(%
Healthcare cost trend rate assumed for next year 7.25% 7.5(% 6.5(% 7.0(%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed tindgltimate trend rate) 5.0(% 5.0(% 5.0(% 5.0(%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 202: 202: 2017 2017

Changing the assumed healthcare cost trend rat&¥%bg each year would not have a material effadhe accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation at December 31, 2013 or annoatnetirement benefit expense for 2013 .

The following table details other postretirementdfis expected to be paid in each of the nextfiseal years and in aggregate for the
fiscal years thereafter:

(In thousands’

2014 $ 2,462
2015 2,60z
2016 2,70¢
2017 2,75¢
2018 2,80¢
2019-2023 13,13:¢

25. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Our operations involve storing and dispensing petro products, primarily diesel fuel, regulated emenvironmental protection laws.
These laws require us to eliminate or mitigateetfiect of such substances on the environment.dpamrese to these requirements, we continually
upgrade our operating facilities and implementaasiprograms to detect and minimize contaminatioaddition, we have received notices
from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) atiters that we have been identified as a poteptiediponsible party under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatidihiability Act, the Superfund Amendments and iRiearization Act and similar state
statutes and may be required to share in the €¢attanup of 19 identified disposal sites.

Our environmental expenses which are presentednwiither operating expenses” in our Consolidatete®nents of Earnings, consist of
remediation costs as well as normal recurring esggsuch as licensing, testing and waste dispessl These expenses totaled $9 million in
2013 and $7 million in both 2012 and 2011 , respelst. The carrying amount of our environmentabllaies was $13 million at both
December 31, 2013 and 2012 . Capital expenditetated to our environmental programs totaled apprately $1 million , $2 million , and $3
million in 2013, 2012 , and 2011 , respectivelyr@sset retirement obligations related to fueksao be removed are not included above and
are recorded within “Accrued expenses and otheeautiabilities” and “Other non-current liabilis& in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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The ultimate cost of our environmental liabilitesnnot presently be projected with certainty dunéopresence of several unknown
factors, primarily the level of contamination, tiéectiveness of selected remediation methodssttge of investigation at individual sites, the
determination of our liability in proportion to @hresponsible parties and the recoverability chstosts from third parties. Based on
information presently available, we believe that titimate disposition of these matters, althougtemptially material to the results of operations
in any one year, will not have a material adveffeceon our financial condition or liquidity.

26. OTHER ITEMS IMPACTING COMPARABILITY

Our primary measure of segment performance exclogieain items we do not believe are representatitiee ongoing operations of the
segment. Excluding these items from our segmensuneaf performance allows for better year over geanparison.

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment

During 2013, we recognized a benefit of $2 millfoom the recognition of the accumulated currenapdtation adjustment from a FMS
foreign operation which substantially liquidatesliitet assets. This benefit was recorded within €®llaneous income, net” in our Consolidated
Statements of Earnings.

Superstorm Sandy

During 2013, we recognized a benefit of $1 millfoom the recovery of Superstorm Sandy losses.drfdbrth quarter of 2012, we
incurred $8 million of losses for property damage¢hicles owned by full service lease customarsvfach Ryder had liability under certain
agreements. The 2013 benefit and the 2012 chargelwth recorded within “Cost of services” in owrSolidated Statements of Earnings. See
Note 27, "Other Matters" for further discussiontba financial impact from Superstorm San

Acquisition-related Transaction Costs

During 2012 and 2011 , we incurred transactionsctugling $0.4 million and $2 million , respectiveThese charges, which were
primarily reflected within “Selling, general andrathistrative expensest our Consolidated Statements of Earnings, reletebe acquisitions
Euroway in 2012 and Hill Hire in 2011.

27. OTHER MATTERS

On October 28, 2012, Superstorm Sandy caused wigkbproperty damage and flooding to large areéiseoEast Coast and the northeas
United States. As a result of the storm, we inaiardiability of $8 million for property damage vehicles owned by contractual FMS customers
for which Ryder has liability under certain agreamseln December 2012, we enhanced our insuran@zage to mitigate this type of risk in the
future. Additionally, company-owned units with argéng value of $16 million were damaged or comglietestroyed as a direct result of
Superstorm Sandy.

We are a party to various claims, complaints amggedings arising in the ordinary course of outiooimg business operations including
not limited to those relating to commercial and @pment claims, environmental matters, risk manag@matters (e.g. vehicle liability,
workers’ compensation, etc.) and administrativesssents primarily associated with operating talashave established loss provisions for
matters in which losses are probable and can lsemealy estimated. For matters from continuing afi@ns where a reserve has not been
established and for which we believe a loss isarasly possible, as well as for matters where aerveshas been recorded but for which an
exposure to loss in excess of the amount accrusdsonably possible, we believe that such los#esat have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements.

Our estimates regarding potential losses and naditgrare based on our judgment and assessmehné afdims utilizing currently available
information. Although we will continue to reassess reserves and estimates based on future devetdpnour objective assessment of the |
merits of such claims may not always be prediotivhe outcome and actual results may vary fromcourent estimates..

Refer to Note 4, "Discontinued Operations,” foridddal matters.
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28. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Supplemental cash flow information was as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Interest paid $ 132,94t 126,76« 126,91¢
Income taxes paid 13,06: 11,61 21,54:
Changes in accounts payable related to purchaseseafiue earning equipment 43,74" 27,52¢ 61,29(
Operating and revenue earning equipment acquirddrurapital lease8 5,69¢ 20,67( 39,27¢
Fair value of debt assumed on acquisition — 37¢ —

(1) The 2012 amount includes $20 million of capialses assumed in the Euroway acquisition.

29. SEGMENT REPORTING

We operate in two business segments: Fleet Managedodutions (FMS), which provides full servicedesy, contract maintenance,
contract-related maintenance and commercial reftalicks, tractors and trailers to customers ppiaity in the U.S., Canada and the U.K.; and
Supply Chain Solutions (SCS), which provides compnsive supply chain consulting including distribntand transportation services in North
America and Asia. The SCS segment also providegated services, which includes vehicles and dsiearpart of a dedicated transportation
solution in the U.S.

Our primary measurement of segment financial peréorce, defined as “Earnings Before Tax” (EBT) froomtinuing operations, includes
an allocation of CSS and excludes non-operatingiparcosts, restructuring and other charges, restritieed in Note 5, “Restructuring and Other
(Recoveries) Charges” and excludes the items disclisi Note 26, “Other Items Impacting Comparabili€SS represents those costs incurred
to support all business segments, including hureaources, finance, corporate services, publicraffaiformation technology, health and saf
legal and corporate communications. The objectitb@EBT measurement is to provide clarity onghafitability of each business segment
and, ultimately, to hold leadership of each busireegyment and each operating segment within eathdss segment accountable for their
allocated share of CSS costs. Certain costs atdmed to be overhead not attributable to any segiend remain unallocated in CSS. Included
among the unallocated overhead remaining within @®3he costs for investor relations, public a$faind certain executive compensation. CSS
costs attributable to the business segments ademieantly allocated to FMS and SCS as follows:

* Finance, corporate services, and health and safetgllocated based upon estimated and planned @satilization;

* Human resources- individual costs within this category are allain several ways, including allocation based on
estimated utilization and number of personnel suepo

» Information technology— principally allocated based upon utilization-tethmetrics such as number of users or
minutes of CPU time. Customer-related project castbexpenses are allocated to the business segesponsible
for the project; and

»  Other— represents legal and other centralized costeapenses including certain share-based incentive
compensation costs. Expenses, where allocatetasesl primarily on the number of personnel supgdorte

Our FMS segment leases revenue earning equipmerraides fuel, maintenance and other ancillaryises to the SCS segment. Inter-
segment revenue and EBT are accounted for atsambdar to those executed with third parties. ERTated to inter-segment equipment and
services billed to customers (equipment contribtere included in both FMS and SCS and then eliteth (presented as “Eliminations”). In
2013, we revised the methodology used to allocé¢ecompany earnings to SCS and recasted the 8TS&d Eliminations previously
presented in 2013 . The results in 2012 and 201& n@t materially impacted by the new methodology.
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Segment results are not necessarily indicativeefésults of operations that would have occuregtidach segment been an independent,
stand-alone entity during the periods presentedh Basiness segment follows the same accountinggmhs described in Note ISUdmmary o
Significant Accounting Policies.” Business segmevenue and EBT from continuing operations is #ev:

Years ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)

Revenue:
Fleet Management Solutions:
Full service lease $ 2,016,57 1,956,811 1,862,30.
Commercial rental 753,45t 738,56¢ 691,57:
Full service lease and commercial rental 2,770,02 2,695,37 2,553,87
Contract maintenance 178,00: 184,14¢ 181,00:
Contract-related maintenance 186,58( 170,32: 153,00
Other 72,02¢ 71,95¢ 69,12:
Fuel services revenue 829,58t 854,57¢ 887,48:
Total Fleet Management Solutions from external @ustrs 4,036,222, 3,976,38. 3,844,49i
Inter-segment revenue 458,46: 428,94 373,83
Fleet Management Solutions 4,494,68 4,405,32! 4,218,33
Supply Chain Solutions from external customers 2,383,06. 2,280,58! 2,206,03!
Eliminations (458,469 (428,94, (373,839
Total revenue $ 6,419,28 6,256,96' 6,050,53.
EBT:
Fleet Management Solutions $ 344,04 307,62t 265,69:
Supply Chain Solutions 129,95¢ 115,19: 104,89t
Eliminations (35,489 (29,269 (24,219
$ 438,51 393,55t 346,37
Unallocated Central Support Services (45,499 (42,349 (42,549
Non-operating pension costs (24,284 (31,429 (18,657)
Restructuring and other recoveries (charges), mtbther item$” 154 (16,66¢) (5,789
Earnings before income taxes from continuing opanat $ 368,89! 303,11° 279,38

(1) See Note 26, “Other Items Impacting Comparabilitipt a discussion of items, in addition to restureig and other (recoveries) charges, net thatexeluded from our
primary measure of segment performar
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The following table sets forth share-based compensalepreciation expense, gains on vehicle sakgsother non-cash charges, net,
interest expense (income), capital expenditured@atiassets for the years ended December 31, ,220% and 2011 as provided to the chief
operating decision-maker for each of Ryder’s regiue business segments:

FMS SCS CSs Eliminations Total
(In thousands)

2013
Share-based compensation expense $ 4,97¢ 4,93¢ 9,397 — 19,31(
Depreciation expensé” $ 926,72 29,56( 857 — 957,14
Gains on vehicles sales, net $ (96,017) (1649 — — (96,175
Other non-cash charges, nef $ 19,07: 3,64( 33,67¢ — 56,38¢
Interest expense (incomey $ 139,28t (1,864 (22¢§) — 137,19¢
Capital expenditures paid® $ 2,092,54. 22,67 25,24 — 2,140,46.
Total assets $  8,309,14 869,07: 160,24¢ (234,690 9,103,78.

2012
Share-based compensation expense $ 5,35¢ 4,43: 9,072 — 18,86+
Depreciation expengg $ 910,35: 28,27¢ 1,05( — 939,67
Gains on vehicles sales, net $ (89,079 (33) — — (89,109
Other non-cash charges, ffet $ 15,567 2,76¢ 30,87 — 49,20¢
Interest expense (incom@) $ 140,74 11 (201) — 140,55°
Capital expenditures paftl $  2,090,44 19,27¢ 23,51« — 2,133,23!
Total assets $ 7,556,50! 807,93! 144,35! (189,82() 8,318,97!

2011
Share-based compensation expense $ 5,38¢ 4,312 7,728 — 17,42
Depreciation expengg $ 842,09 29,11¢ 1,05( — 872,26.
Gains on vehicle sales, net $ (62,49¢) (383) — — (62,879
Other non-cash charges, et $ 16,27 3,21« 20,44 — 39,92¢
Interest expense (incom@) $ 133,24! (74) @) — 133,16«
Capital expenditures paftl $ 1,653,42! 30,20¢ 14,95¢ — 1,698,58!
Total assets $  6,815,40. 827,16¢ 198,47¢ (223,219 7,617,83!

(1) Depreciation expense associated with CSS assetallsaated to business segments based upon estiraateplanned asset utilization. Depreciation exgeetotaling$14
million , $12 million , and $9 million during 2012012 , and 2011 , respectively, associated wil$ @ssets was allocated to other business segments.

(2) Includes amortization expen:

(3) Interest expense was primarily allocated to the F8ment since such borrowings were used pringipalfund the purchase of revenue earning equipmesed in FMS
however, interest expense (income) was also reflaotSCS based on targeted segment leverage ratios

(4) Excludes acquisition payments$2 million , $5 million , and $362 million in 2012012 , and 2011 , respectively, comprised pritpai long-lived assets. See Note 3,
“Acquisitions,” for additional information.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

Geographic Information

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Revenue:
United States $ 5,411,37 5,231,89 5,075,43
Foreign:
Canada 455,44( 477,49! 481,59:
Europe 372,20¢ 384,10! 324,21
Mexico 161,27! 143,28 147,46«
Asia 18,98: 20,18¢ 21,83:
1,007,90 1,025,06! 975,10:
Total $ 6,419,28 6,256,96' 6,050,53.
Long-lived assets:
United States $ 5,996,641 5,261,62. 4,708,08!
Foreign:
Canada 529,88 557,35 481,13
Europe 568,85!( 534,72¢ 463,84t
Mexico 29,00¢ 24,97 19,93:
Asia 27¢ 787 847
1,128,01 1,117,83 965,76!
Total $ 7,124,66. 6,379,46. 5,673,85

Certain Concentrations

We have a diversified portfolio of customers acra$sll array of transportation and logistics smos and across many industries. We
believe this will help to mitigate the impact ofvatlse downturns in specific sectors of the econdbuy.portfolio of full service lease and
commercial rental customers is not concentratethinone particular industry or geographic regioe. &férive a significant portion of our SCS
revenue from the automotive industry, mostly fromnufacturers and suppliers of original equipmentsp®uring 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , the
automotive industry accounted for approximately 286% and 27% , respectively, of SCS total revenue
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

30. QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Earnings from

Continuing _
i Py
Continuing
Revenue Operations Net Earnings Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2013
First quarter $ 1,563,01 40,80: 39,92: 0.7¢ 0.7¢ 0.71 0.77
Second quarter 1,603,99 62,57¢ 62,19« 1.21 1.1¢ 1.2C 1.1¢
Third quarter 1,634,541 73,87¢ 71,067 1.41 1.4C 1.3¢€ 1.3
Fourth quarter 1,617,72! 65,94« 64,60" 1.2t 1.24 1.2t 1.22
Full year $ 6,419,28 243,19t 237,79. 4.67 4.65 4.57 4.5¢

2012
First quarter $ 1,536,27 34,87t 34,32: 0.6¢ 0.6¢ 0.67 0.67
Second quarter 1,563,86! 46,76 46,72 0.92 0.91 0.92 0.91
Third quarter 1,573,29! 64,31: 75,09: 1.2¢ 1.2¢ 1.47 1.47
Fourth quarter 1,583,53 54,94¢ 53,84« 1.07 1.07 1.08 1.0t
Full year $ 6,256,96 200,89¢ 209,97¢ 3.9¢ 3.91 411 % 4.0¢

Quarterly and year-to-date computations of peresharounts are made independently; therefore, theo$per-share amounts for the
quarters may not equal per-share amounts for the ye

See Note 4, “Discontinued Operations,” Note 5, tReguring and Other (Recoveries) Charges,” anceN@t “Other Items Impacting
Comparability,” for items included in earnings chgi2013 and 2012 .

Earnings in the first quarter of 2012 included @eoime tax benefit of $5 million , or $0.10 per thid common share, related to a favorable
resolution of a tax item from prior periods. Eagsrin the third quarter of 2012 included an incdemecharge of $1 million , or $0.G#r diluted
common share, relating to a tax law change in tke U
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARES

SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance at Transferred Balance
Beginning Charged to from (to) Other at End
Description of Period Earnings Accounts? Deductions® of Period
(In thousands)
2013
Accounts receivable allowance $ 15,42¢ 7,561 — 6,03t 16,95¢
Direct finance lease allowance $ 708 20% — 407 501
Self-insurance accruaf® $ 279,15 266,31 60,23 315,45: 290,25
Reserve for residual value guarantees $ 1,63¢ (413 — 98¢ 23¢
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets $ 38,18: 1,627 — 6,01¢ 33,79:
2012
Accounts receivable allowance $ 14,48¢ 10,47¢ — 9,53¢ 15,42¢
Direct finance lease allowance $ 90z 81z — 1,012 703
Self-insurance accruaf® $ 253,42. 272,35 57,28¢ 303,90¢ 279,15
Reserve for residual value guarantees $ 4,21¢ 17¢ — 2,762 1,63t
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets $ 41,324 1,061 — 4,20: 38,18:
2011
Accounts receivable allowance $ 13,86 7,46¢€ — 6,84¢ 14,48¢
Direct finance lease allowance $ 784 867 — 74¢ 90:s
Self-insurance accruafd $ 243,24¢ 217,98( 54,83: 262,63 253,42
Reserve for residual value guarantees $ 4,49 347 — 62¢ 4,21¢
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets $ 39,21¢ 672 — (1,43¢) 41,32«

(1) Transferred from (to) other accounts includes emp@docontributions made to the medical and dent&lissurance plans

(2) Deductions represent receivables wri-off, lease termination payments, insurance claiynpents during the period and net foreign curremepslation adjustment:

(3) Self-insurance accruals include vehicle liabilityorkers’ compensation, property damage, cargo ardioal and dental, which comprise our self-insupcograms.
Amounts charged to earnings include developmergsian year selected loss development factors whighefited earnings k$5 million , $1 million , and $4 million in

2013, 2012, and 2011 , respectively.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this repset,carried out an evaluation, under the supenviaitd with the participation of
management, including Ryder’s Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, of the effectivesed the design and operation of Ryder’s
disclosure controls and procedures (as definedila R3a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange AtB8#). Based upon that evaluation, the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officencluded that at December 31, 2013, Rygdisclosure controls and procedures (as de
in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities ExchangeoAt034) were effective.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Management’'s Report on Internal Control over FifglriReporting and the Report of Independent Regidt€ertified Public Accounting
Firm thereon are set out in Item 8 of Part Il a§ thorm 10-K Annual Report.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporthg

During the three months ended December 31, 20i&¥e were no changes in Ryder’s internal contret éwnancial reporting that has
materially affected or is reasonably likely to nighy affect such internal control over financiaporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 10 with respecéxecutive officers is included within Item 1 inrPlaunder the caption “Executive
Officers of the Registrant” of this Form 10-K AnrrReport.

The information required by Item 10 with respectli@ctors, audit committee, audit committee firiahexperts and Section 16(a)
beneficial ownership reporting compliance is inglddinder the captions “Election of Directors,” “Au@ommittee” and “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in oefiditive proxy statement, which will be filed withe Commission within 120 days after
the close of the fiscal year, and is incorporatein by reference.

Ryder has adopted a code of ethics applicables ©hief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Offic&opntroller and Senior Financial
Management. The Code of Ethics forms part of Ryderinciples of Business Conduct which are postethe Corporate Governance page of
Ryder’s website at www.ryder.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is included enthe captions “Compensation Discussion and Amaly$xecutive Compensation,”
“Compensation Committee,” “Compensation Committepétt on Executive Compensation” and “Director Cengation” in our definitive
proxy statement, which will be filed with the Conssiion within 120 days after the close of the fisear, and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS
AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 with respecséaurity ownership of certain beneficial ownerd aranagement is included under the
captions “Security Ownership of Officers and Dimgst and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficialners” in our definitive proxy
statement, which will be filed with the Commissiwithin 120 days after the close of the fiscal yaaud is incorporated herein by reference.
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The information required by Item 12 with respectatated stockholder matters is included withimitg in Part Il under the caption
“Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equityrensation Plans” of this Form 10-K Annual Report.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS,
AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is included enthe captions “Board of Directors” and “Relatezi$dn Transactions” in our
definitive proxy statement, which will be filed Wwithe Commission within 120 days after the clostheffiscal year, and is incorporated herein

by reference.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is included enthe caption “Ratification of Independent Auditor our definitive proxy statement,
which will be filed with the Commission within 12fays after the close of the fiscal year, and isriparated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Items A through H and Schedule Il are preskatethe following pages of this Form KOAnnual Repor

Page No.
1. Financial Statements for Ryder System, Inc.@orsolidated Subsidiaries:
A) Management’s Report on Internal Control overdricial Reporting 56
B) Report of Independent Registered Certified RuAticounting Firm 57
C) Consolidated Statements of Earnings 58
D) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Inqoss) 59
E) Consolidated Balance Sheets 60
F) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 61
G) Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity 62
H) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 63
2. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule ®iY#ars Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 114

All other schedules are omitted because they arapulicable or the required information is showrthie consolidated financial stateme
or notes thereto.

Supplementary Financial Information consistingelésted quarterly financial data is included inrt8 of this report.
3. Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed with this repont,avhere indicated, incorporated by reference (Fot®K, 10-Q and 8-K referenced
herein have been filed under the Commission’sNite 1-4364). Ryder will provide a copy of the extsHiled with this report at a nominal
charge to those parties requesting them.
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Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

3.1(a)

3.1(b)

3.1(c)

3.2

4.1

4.2(a)

4.2(b)

4.3

4.4

10.1(a)

10.1(b)

10.1(c)

10.1(d)

10.4(a)
10.4(b)

10.4(c)

10.4(d)

10.4(e)

The Ryder System, Inc. Restated Articles of Incoaion, dated November 8, 1985, as amended thrilayhl8, 1990,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
December 31, 1990, are incorporated by referertoetiis report.

Articles of Amendment to Ryder System, Inc. Restatdicles of Incorporation, dated November 8, 1985 amended,
previously filed with the Commission on April 3,9®as an exhibit to Ryder's Form 8-A, are incorfatdy reference into
this report.

Articles of Amendment to Ryder System, Inc. Restatdicles of Incorporation, dated November 8, 1985 amended,
previously filed with the Commission on May 9, 20ds8an exhibit to Ryder’s Current Report on Fori, &re
incorporated by reference into this report.

The Ryder System, Inc. By-Laws, as amended throdiagn 3, 2013, previously filed with the Commissianan exhibit to
Ryder's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with then@mission on May 9, 2013, are incorporated by ezfee into this
report.

Ryder hereby agrees, pursuant to paragraph (bj4)(item 601 of Regulation S-K, to furnish th@@mission with a
copy of any instrument defining the rights of haoklef long-term debt of Ryder, where such instruntes not been filed
as an exhibit hereto and the total amount of sgesrauthorized there under does not exceed 10%edbtal assets of
Ryder and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.Tdre Chase Manhattan Bank (National Associatiatgdias of
June 1, 1984, filed with the Commission on Novermir1985 as an exhibit to Ryder's Registratione®&tant on Form S-
3 (No. 33-1632), is incorporated by reference thte report.

The First Supplemental Indenture between RydereBysinc. and The Chase Manhattan Bank (Nationabéiation) dated
October 1, 1987, previously filed with the Commaissas an exhibit to Ryder's Annual Report on FoaKfor the year
ended December 31, 1994, is incorporated by referémo this report.

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.Tdre Chase Manhattan Bank (National Associatiet¢d as of
May 1, 1987, and supplemented as of November 19) 48d June 24, 1992, filed with the Commissioduly 30, 1992 a
an exhibit to Ryder's Registration Statement om+8¢3 (No. 33-50232), is incorporated by referente this report.

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.JaR. Morgan Trust Company (National Associatieted as of
October 3, 2003 filed with the Commission on Aug2&t 2003 as an exhibit to Ryder's Registratiotne®tant on Form S-3
(No. 333-108391), is incorporated by reference this report.

Consulting Agreement, dated as of December 13, 2fdiveen Ryder System, Inc. and Gregory T. Swigergeeviously
filed with the Commission as an exhibit to Rydé&grent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commigsitn December
17, 2012, is incorporated by reference into thiore

The Form of Amended and Restated Severance Agradarebhief Executive Officer and Executive Chaimareviously
filed with the Commission as an exhibit to Ryd€tsrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commissin February 14,
2013, is incorporated by reference into this report

The Form of Amended and Restated Severance Agrdédaresther named executive officers, previouslgdiwith the
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's Current RepofEorm 8-K filed with the Commission on Februady 2013, is
incorporated by reference into this report.

The Ryder System, Inc. Executive Severance Pléegtafe as of January 1, 2013, previously filednwtie Commission as
an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report on Form 8{&dfiwith the Commission on February 14, 2013, ¢®iporated by
reference into this report.

The Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compensation,Rieeviously filed with the Commission on March 2005 as
Appendix A to Ryder's Definitive Proxy Statement®chedule 14A, is incorporated by reference ini® riéport.

The Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compensation,Rieeviously filed with the Commission on March 2008, as
Appendix A to Ryder's Definitive Proxy Statement®chedule 14A, is incorporated by reference ini® riéport.

The Ryder System, Inc. Stock Purchase Plan for Byegls, previously filed with the Commission on Me29, 2010, as
Appendix B to Ryder System, Inc.'s Definitive Prd3tatement on Schedule 14A, is incorporated byeafe into this
report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to non-qualifiextktoptions granted under the Ryder System, In@5Zquity

Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consiua as an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report omF8+K filed with
the Commission on February 14, 2007, are incorpdrhy reference into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted stights granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 205t Compensation
Plan, previously filed with the Commission as ahibit to Ryder's Current Report on Form 8-K filedtwthe Commission
on February 8, 2008, are incorporated by referamoethis report.
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.4(f)

10.4(g)

10.4(h)

10.4())

10.4()

10.4(k)

10.4())

10.4(m)

10.4(n)

10.4(0)

10.4(p)

10.4(q)

10.4(r)

10.4(s)

10.4(t)

10.4(u)

10.4(v)

Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted statks granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 2005t ompensation Plan,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder's Current Report on Form 8-K filed witle tBommission on
May 11, 2005, are incorporated by reference iniriport.

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 Non#fe@ Stock Options granted under the Ryder Systeim 2005 Equity
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consiua as an exhibit to Ryder's report on Form 1®QHe quarter ended
March 31, 2012, are incorporated by referencetimtoreport.

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 Non#fe@ Stock Options granted to the Company's Chieécutive Officer
under the Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compemsdian, previously filed with the Commission asahibit to Ryder's
report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March2B12, are incorporated by reference into this mepo

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 Perdoce-Based Restricted Stock Rights granted undeRyider System, Inc.
2005 Equity Compensation Plan, previously filedhitie Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's repoff@am 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2012, are incorporateefgrence into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 Perfmece-Based Restricted Stock Rights granted to tmp@ny's Chief
Executive Officer under the Ryder System, Inc. 2BQbity Compensation Plan, previously filed witle Bommission as an
exhibit to Ryder's report on Form 10-Q for the ¢emended March 31, 2012, are incorporated by eefs into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 Perdmice-Based Cash Awards granted under the Rydegr8ykic. 2005
Equity Compensation Plan, previously filed with themmission as an exhibit to Ryder's report on Fbor® for the quarter
ended March 31, 2012, are incorporated by refererioehis report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 Perdmece-Based Cash Awards granted to the Companyes Executive
Officer under the Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equityrpensation Plan, previously filed with the Comnusasas an exhibit to
Ryder's report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endexdci 31, 2012, are incorporated by reference hitoreport.

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 ResttiStock Rights granted under the Ryder System 2005 Equity
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consiua as an exhibit to Ryder's report on Form 1®QHe quarter ended
March 31, 2012, are incorporated by referencetimtoreport.

Ryder System, Inc. 2012 Equity and Incentive Corsp&ian Plan, previously filed with the Commissianaam exhibit to Ryder's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commissan May 10, 2012, is incorporated by reference this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to non-qualifiextktoptions granted under the Ryder System, Int2 Equity and Incentive
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consiua as an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report omF8+K filed with the
Commission on May 10, 2012, are incorporated bgregfce into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to performance-dbasstricted stock rights granted under the Rygste3n, Inc. 2012 Equity
and Incentive Compensation Plan, previously filéthwhe Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's CurReport on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on May 10, 2012, are ipmyated by reference into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to performance-dbaash awards granted under the Ryder System20i2 Equity and
Incentive Compensation Plan, previously filed vitte Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's CurrentoRegn Form 8-K filed
with the Commission on May 10, 2012, are incorpetdiy reference into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted stights granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 204t and Incentive
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consiua as an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report omF8+K filed with the
Commission on May 10, 2012, are incorporated bgregfce into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted statiks granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 201#tFqnd Incentive
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consita as an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report omF8+K filed with the
Commission on May 10, 2012, are incorporated bgresfce into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to 2013 performdrased cash awards granted to named executiverffimder the Ryder
System, Inc. 2012 Equity and Incentive Compensd®ian, previously filed with the Commission as ahikit to Ryder's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commiss@n February 14, 2013, are incorporated by referémto this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to 2013 performdrased restricted stock rights granted to namedutixecofficers under th
Ryder System, Inc. 2012 Equity and Incentive Corspéan Plan, previously filed with the Commissianaa exhibit to Ryder's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commiss@n February 14, 2013, are incorporated by referémto this report.

Form of Terms and Conditions applicable to 2014uahoash incentive awards granted to named exexafficers under the
Ryder System, Inc. 2012 Equity and Incentive Corsp&ian Plan, previously filed as an exhibit to Rysl€urrent Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 2814, are incorporated by reference into this repor
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.5(a) The Ryder System, Inc. Directors Stock Award Péanamended and restated at February 10, 2005ppstyifiled with the
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's Annual Reporform 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2G0i#corporated by
reference into this report.

10.5(b) The Ryder System, Inc. Directors Stock Plan, asnaieé and restated at May 7, 2004, previously fiittl the Commission as
an exhibit to Ryder's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfe year ended December 31, 2004, is incorpotatgdference into this
report.

10.6 The Ryder System Benefit Restoration Plan, as aetbadd restated, previously filed with the Comnaissis an exhibit to
Ryder's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with then@imission on February 11, 2009, is incorporatedeligrence into this
report.

10.7 Form of Indemnification Agreement for independeineéctors, effective as of October 6, 2006, previptited with the
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's Current Repoform 8-K filed with the Commission on October 2006, is
incorporated by reference into this report.

10.10 The Ryder System, Inc. Deferred Compensation Riffective as of January 1, 2009, previously filethvthe Commission as
an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report on Form 8{Kdfiwith the Commission on February 11, 2009, é®iporated by reference
to this report.

10.14(a) Global Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of Bin2011, by and among, Ryder System, Inc., cesialisidiaries of Ryder
System, Inc., and the lenders and agents namegirthpreviously filed with the Commission as anibkio Ryder's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission ond@) 2011, is incorporated by reference into tbjort.

10.14(b) Amendment No. 1 dated as of April 20, 2012 to Glddevolving Credit Agreement, by and among Rydest&m, Inc., certain
Ryder System, Inc. subsidiaries, and the lendetsagents named therein, previously filed with thenthission as an exhibit to
Ryder's report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endedci 31, 2012, is incorporated by reference ini®réport.

10.14(c) Amendment No. 2 dated as of October 18, 2013 tdb&@IBevolving Credit Agreement, by and among Ry&lestem, Inc.,
certain subsidiaries of Ryder System, Inc., andehders and agents named therein, previously filida the Commission as an
exhibit to Ryder’s report on Form 10-Q for the geaended September 30, 2013, is incorporatedfeyerece into this report.

12 Statements re: Computation of Ratios.

211 List of subsidiaries of the registrant, with thatstor other jurisdiction of incorporation or orgaiion of each, and the name
under which each subsidiary does business.

231 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP consent to incorpordtyoreference in certain Registration StatementSams S-3 and S-8 of
their report on Consolidated Financial Statemeintacial statement schedule and effectivenesstefrial controls over
financial reporting of Ryder System, Inc.

241 Manually executed powers of attorneyefach of:

Robert J. Eck L. Patrick Hassey
Michael F. Hilton Tamara L. Lundgren
Luis P. Nieto, Jr. Eugene A. Renna
Abbie J. Smith E. Follin Smith
Robert E. Sanchez Hansel E. Tookes, Il
John M. Berra

31.1 Certification of Robert E. Sanchez punsta Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

31.2 Certification of Art A. Garcia pursuantRule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

32 Certification of Robert E. Sanchez and Art A. Ganpursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) Ehd.S.C. Section
1350.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documen

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculatiomkbase Document.

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition kimase Document.

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba3ecument.

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentatiokihase Document.
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(b) Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangem

Please refer to the description of Exhibits 10rbuigh 10.10 set forth under Item 15(a)3 of thiorefor a listing of all management
contracts and compensation plans and arrangeniletsvith this report pursuant to Iltem 601(b)(1®Regulation S-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1d&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

Date: February 13, 2014

RYDER SYSTEM, INC.

By: /s/ Robert E. Sanchez
Robert E. Sanchez
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpthe following persons on behalf

of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ttes indicated.

Date: February 13, 2014
Date: February 13, 2014
Date: February 13, 2014
Date: February 13, 2014
Date: February 13, 2014
Date: February 13, 2014
Date: February 13, 2014

By: /s/ ROBERT E. SANCHEZ

Robert E. Sanchez
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ ART A. GARCIA

Art A. Garcia
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer)

By: /s/ CRISTINA A. GALLO-AQUINO

Cristina A. Gallo-Aquino
Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

By: JOHN M. BERRA *

John M. Berra
Director

By: ROBERT J. ECK *

Robert J. Eck
Director

By: L. PATRICK HASSEY*

L. Patrick Hassey
Director

By: MICHAEL F. HILTON*

Michael F. Hilton
Director
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Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

February 13, 2014

February 13, 2014

February 13, 2014

February 13, 2014

February 13, 2014

February 13, 2014

February 13, 2014
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By: TAMARA L. LUNDGREN*

Tamara L. Lundgren
Director

By: LUIS P. NIETO, JR. *

Luis P. Nieto, Jr.
Director

By: EUGENE A. RENNA *

Eugene A. Renna
Director

By: ABBIE J. SMITH *

Abbie J. Smith
Director

By: E. FOLLIN SMITH *

E. Follin Smith
Director

By: HANSEL E. TOOKES, Il *

Hansel E. Tookes, I
Director

By: FLORA R. PEREZ

Flora R. Perez
Attorney-in-Fact



EXHIBIT 12

Ryder System, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Continuing Operations
(Dollars in thousands)

Years Ended

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
EARNINGS:
Earnings before income taxes 143,76¢ 186,30! 279,38 303,11° 368,89!
Fixed charges 204,52¢ 181,86( 183,94¢ 189,41: 188,14
Add: Amortization of capitalized interest 62C 742 722 71z 58¢
Less: Interest capitalized 1,361 19t 17 0 0
Earnings available for fixed charges (A) 347,55! 368,71: 464,04 493,24 557,62¢
FIXED CHARGES:
Interest and other financial charges 147,89: 130,65 133,49¢ 140,84: 137,46
Costs associated with sale of receivables 0 0 0 0 0
Portion of rents representing interest expense 56,63} 51,20¢ 50,45: 48,57 50,68:
Total fixed charges (B) 204,52¢ 181,86( 183,94¢ 189,41: 188,14
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES (A) /
(B) 1.70x 2.03x 2.52x 2.60x 2.96x




EXHIBIT 21.1

The following list sets forth (i) all subsidiarie$ Ryder System, Inc. at December 31, 2018 the state or country of incorporatior
organization of each subsidiary, and (iii) the nameder which certain subsidiaries do business.

Name of Subsidiary State or Country of Incorporation or Organization
3241290 Nova Scotia Company Nova Scotia
Associated Ryder Capital Services, Inc. Florida
CRTS Logistica Automotiva S.A. Brazil
Euroway Vehicle Rental Limited England
Euroway Group Holdings Limited England
Euroway Group Limited England
Euroway Vehicle Management Limited England
Euroway Vehicle Engineering Limited England
Euroway Vehicle Contracts Limited England
Far East Freight, Inc. Florida
Globe Master Insurance Company Vermont
Hill Hire Limited England
Network Vehicle Central, Inc. Florida
Network Vehicle Central, LLC Florida
Road Master, Limited Bermuda
RSI Holding B.V. Netherlands
RSI Purchase Corp. Delaware
RTI Argentina S.A. Argentina
RTRC Finance LP Canada

RTR Holdings (B.V.l.) Limited

British Virgin Islands

RTR Leasing I, Inc. Delaware
RTR Leasing Il, Inc. Delaware
Ryder Argentina S.A. Argentina
Ryder Ascent Logistics Pte Ltd. Singapore
Ryder Asia Pacific Holdings B.V. Netherlands
Ryder Asia Pacific Pte Ltd. Singapore
Ryder Australia Pty Ltd. Australia
Ryder Canadian Financing US LLC Delaware
Ryder Capital Ireland Holdings Il LLC Delaware
Ryder Capital Luxembourg Limited, S.A.R.L. Eaugdl
Ryder Capital Luxembourg Limited, Corp. Florida
Ryder Capital S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico
Ryder Capital Services Corporation Delaware
Ryder Capital UK Holdings LLP England
Ryder Chile Sistemas Intergrados de Logistica lantaf" Chile
Ryder Container Terminals Canada
Ryder CRSA Logistic® Canada
Ryder CRSA Logistics (HK) Limited Hong Kong
Ryder de Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico
Ryder Dedicated Logistics, Inc. Delaware




Name of Subsidiary

State or Country of Incorporation or Organization

Ryder Deutschland GmbH

Ryder Distribution Services Limited
Ryder do Brasil Ltda.

Ryder Energy Distribution Corporation
Ryder European B.V.

Ryder Europe Operations B.V.
Ryder Fleet Products, Inc.

Ryder Fuel Services, LLC

Ryder Funding LP

Ryder Funding Il LP

Ryder Global Services, LLC

Ryder Hungary Logistics LLC
Ryder Integrated Logistics, Iné

Ryder Integrated Logistics of California ContrastdrtLC

Ryder Integrated Logistics of Texas, LLC
Ryder International Acquisition Corp.
Ryder International, Inc.

Ryder Limited

Ryder Logistica Ltda.

Ryder Logistics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Ryder Mauritius Holdings, Ltd.
Ryder Mexican Holding B.V.

Ryder Mexican Investments | LP
Ryder Mexican Investments Il LP
Ryder Mexicana, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Ryder Offshore Holdings | LLC
Ryder Offshore Holdings Il LLC
Ryder Offshore Holdings 11l LLC
Ryder Offshore Holdings LP

Ryder Pension Fund Limited

Ryder Puerto Rico, Inc.

Ryder Purchasing LLC

Ryder Receivable Funding lll, L.L.C.
Ryder Services Corporatidh

Ryder Servicios do Brasil Ltda.
Ryder Servicios S. de R.L. de C.V.
Ryder (Shanghai) Logistics Co., Ltd.
Ryder Singapore Pte Ltd.

Ryder Supply Chain Solutions Asia Limited
Ryder System B.V.

Ryder System Holdings (UK) Limited
Ryder System (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Ryder Thailand I, LLC

Ryder Thailand II, LLC

Ryder Truck Rental Holdings Canada Ltd.

Germany
England
Brazil
Florida
Netherlands
Netherlands
Tennessee
Florida
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Hungary
Delaware
Delaware
Texas
Florida
Florida
England
Brazil
China
Mauritius
Netherlands
Delaware
Delaware
Mexico
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
England
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Brazil
Mexico
China
Singapore
Hdtong
Netherlands
England
Thailand
Florida
Florida
Canada




Name of Subsidiary State or Country of Incorporation or Organization

Ryder Truck Rental, In€® Florida
Ryder Truck Rental | LLC Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental Il LLC Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental Ill LLC Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental IV LLC Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental | LP Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental Il LP Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental Canada L{d Canada
Ryder Truck Rental LT Delaware
Ryder Vehicle Purchasing, LLC Delaware
Ryder Vehicle Sales, LLC Florida
Sistemas Logisticos Sigma S.A. Argentina
Spring Hill Integrated Logistics Management, Inc.

(in process being dissolved) Delaware
Tandem Transport, L.P. Georgia
Translados Americano S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico
Truck Transerv, Inc. Delaware

(1)  Chile: d/b/a Ryder Chile Limitada

(2) British Columbia, Ontario, Quebec: d/b/a &R Logistics
(©) Florida: d/b/a UniRyder
4) Ohio and Texas: d/b/a Ryder Claims Services Cormma

5) Aabama, Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, California, Catto, Connecticut, Delaware, District of Columbiorida, Georgia, Hawalii, Idaho, lllinois, Indian:
lowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, MarylaMdssachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippssburi, Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, N
Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, Noatiolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Reylvania, Rhode Island, South Carolina, Sc
Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virgit@shington, West Virginia, Wisconsin and WyomiriigiladRyder Transportation Servic

Maryland and Virginia: d/b/a Ryder/Jacobs
Michigan: d/b/a Atlas Trucking, Inc.
Michigan: d/b/a Ryder Atlas of Western Michigan
(6)  French Name: Location de Camions Ryder du Canade Lt
Canadian Provinces: d/b/a Ryder Integrated Logsstic
Ryder Dedicated Logistics,

Ryder Canada,
Ryder Carrier Management Services



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

W e hereby consent to the incorporation by refezénthe Registration Statements on Form S-3 (198:186486) and Forms S-8 (No.
333-19515, No. 333-26653, No. 333-69628, No. 33336@, No. 333-124828, No. 333-134113, No. 333-1833MN\». 333-177285 and No. 333-
181396) of Ryder System, Inc. of our report datedrbary 13, 2014 relating to the financial statetsiinancial statement schedule and the
effectiveness of internal control over financiglegting, which appears in this Form 10-K .

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Miami, Florida
February 13, 2014



EXHIBIT 24.1
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of thedensigned, being directors of Ryder System, InElpada corporation,
hereby constitutes and appoints Robert D. Fat®lara R. Perez and Julie Azuaje, and each of thésyor her true and lawful attorney-in-fact
and agent, with full power of substitution and testitution, for the undersigned and in his or heeme, place and stead, in any and all capacities,
to sign the Ryder System, Inc. Form 10-K (Annugb®&tépursuant to the Securities Exchange Act o#) 93 the fiscal year ended December
31, 2013 (the “Form 10-K™and any and all amendments thereto, and to filsahee, with all exhibits thereto and other docuséntonnectio
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comignisand with the New York Stock Exchange and afgostock exchange on which the
Company's common stock is listed, granting untdeadd attorney-in-fact and agent full power antharity to perform every act requisite and
necessary to be done in connection with the exaeatind filing of the Form 10-K and any and all adments thereto, as fully for all intents and
purposes as he or she might or could do in petemepy ratifying all that each said attorney-intfaicd agent, or his or her substitute or
substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be dongitiye thereof.

This Power of Attorney may be signed in any nundferounterparts, each of which shall constitut@@aginal and all of which, taken
together, shall constitute one Power of Attorney.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hasurep set his or her hand effective the 13th ddyetfruary, 2013.

/s/ John M. Berra /sl Robert J. Eck
John M. Berra Robert J. Eck

/sl L. Patrick Hassey /sl Michael F. Hilton
L. Patrick Hassey Michael F. Hilton
/s/ Tamara L. Lundgren /sl Luis P. Nieto, Jr.
Tamara L. Lundgren Luis P. Nieto, Jr.
/sl Eugene A. Renna /sl Robert E. Sanchez
Eugene A. Renna Robert E. Sanchez
/s/ Abbie J. Smith /sl E. Follin Smith
Abbie J. Smith E. Follin Smith

/s/ Hansel E. Tookes, Il
Hansel E. Tookes, I




EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Robert E. Sanchez, certify that:

1.

2.

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Ryder System, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoany untrue statement of a material fact ot énstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nigiaglisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtti@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportiag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingared;

b) designed such internal control over finanaglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataree with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrafisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period covmréklis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finaieceporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer anbave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuetimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitac@mmmittee of the registrant’s board of directspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the ttegig’s ability to record, process, summarize abrt financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslvnanagement or other employees who have a sa@niifiole in the registrant’s

internal control over financial reporting.

February 13, 2014 /sl Robert E. Sanchez

Robert E. Sanchez
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

[, Art A. Garcia, certify that:

1.

2.

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Ryder System, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoany untrue statement of a material fact ot énstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nigiaglisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtti@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportiag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingared;

b) designed such internal control over finanaglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataree with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrafisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period covmréklis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finaieceporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer anbave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuetimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitac@mmmittee of the registrant’s board of directspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the ttegig’s ability to record, process, summarize abrt financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslvnanagement or other employees who have a sa@niifiole in the registrant’s

internal control over financial reporting.

February 13, 2014 /sl Art A. Garcia

Art A. Garcia
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32
CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of Ryder Systénc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31, 2013 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ordéte hereof (the “Report”), Robert E. Sanchez,iéees and Chief Executive Officer of the

Company, and Art A. Garcia, Chief Financial Officdithe Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.ti8acl350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefttion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA1934; an
2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@abition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Robert E. Sanchez

Robert E. Sanchez
President and Chief Executive Officer

February 13, 2014

/sl Art A. Garcia

Art A. Garcia
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

February 13, 2014



